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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution:

A bill relating to a housing incentive fund and a financial institutions tax credit for
investments in the fund; and to provide a continuing appropriation.

Minutes:
Recording starts in the middle of testimony — time 20:52 of job #15472.

Representative Wayne Trottier: . . .. the number of government agencies that testified
here also. |think | run out at 6 and ! just thought if we took some of the money from those
departments not just federal, state such as economic development, North Dakota housing,
McHenry County Housing Authority, project direct for North Dakota Medicaid, infrastructure
grant, that money would go a long way in housing. There out supporting these here but
there's a pile of money in those.

Representative Steven L. Zaiser: The gal from New Rockford was not from a
government agency and they talked about making this program work.

Representative Lonny B. Winrich: I'm not sure whether Representative Trottier thinks
Senator Wardner represents a government agency or not. | wouldn't consider it as such.
The Vice President of the Economic Development Association of North Dakota does not
represent a government agency. The ARC of Bismarck and Red River Valley are not
government agencies.

Representative Glen Froseth: | guess what really got me worried about this bill a bit is
the lady from New Rockford that testified on their success. Mr. Anderson from the housing
agency noted in his testimony that if they lost one month’s payment, they would be in a
negative situation to pay off the project. That's cutting it pretty thin on the margin to keep
that a viable or not. By this chart that he presented, on a 20 year payback, most of the
rents are from $800 to $1100 so there not talking low income anymore. You're talking high
end wage earners that are going to be able to afford to stay in these apartments. | don't
know if it's solving a low income housing need. Maybe if you can get the people that can
afford to pay that kind of rent into these units it will open up some older homes. |I'm not
sure.
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Representative Patrick Hatlestad: |f | understand what Mike Anderson said is that we
would end up subsidizing low income housing. It costs a thousand a month to maintain it.
Low income rent that you could charge would be under $500 so someone’s going to have
to make up that additional money. I'm guessing we have rent subsidies that would have to
be paid to keep the project viable.

Representative Steven L. Zaiser: | recognize that. It seems like we are in a dilemma
here if the government or we the State wants to put too much money into help low income
folks with their housing, then we complain about spending too much money on these poor
people and yet we give tax breaks to many, many wealthy folks. If a program comes in
where its very tight, where it's hard to make a profit if it can even be seen and we criticize
that because it's not viable enough. Where do we go? How do you provide housing for the
people who just can’t afford? Two people are on minimum wage. You tell me how they're
going to make payments on a regular house. I'd like to see somebody describe to me how
anybody can make it with two people on minimum wage, even an apartment to pay rent.

Representative Dave Weiler: The gal from New Rockford said they did these good things
in New Rockford but they didn’t use this program. 1t was eluted to that under this program,
they've done some good things and that was not under this program. That was not under
this program. That was under what the North Dakota housing finance agency is currently
doing and they are doing a good job. I'd like Representative Zaiser to understand that we
understand there are problems out there. This bill just does not do it. If you give me
$100,000 and | give you $20,000 a year for 5 years, would you do that? This is not going
to work. | hope that someday we can come up with something that will work. | think the
North Dakota Housing Finance Agency is doing some good things out there. This bill just
doesn't cut it.

Representative Shirley Meyer: That was a pilot project at New Rockford with the Housing
Finance Agency to see if a program such as this would work on funding the appraisal gap.
This would continue that project. She came forward because it has worked effectively and
this would continue the program. There have been investors. In our area, if you can come
up with any kind of solution, we have no housing. When you talk about government
intervention, we have families that were living on a lake in a tent. These are families,
Mothers with little kids. Guess who's on our county welfare rolls right now when it got cold.
You can pay for it on the front end or the back end. It's not like it just goes away and we're
going to save all this money till the free market comes in and builds apartments. Our
welfare rolls in Stark County have tripled. In Dunn County, they've quadrupled. That's
what our tax payers are faced with. If you have a housing project, we could alleviate some
of that.

Representative Dave Weiler: From Ms. Wobbema's testimony, she says that this is how
the funding came about. The Eddy County Housing Authority and New Rockford Area
Betterment Corporation partnered in 2009 to develop four multifamily rental units in New
Rockford. The rural housing investment incentive program, which is a pilot program
administered by the North Dakota Housing Finance Agency, used $50,000. This is the
housing incentive fund. This is not that same fund.
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Representative Shirley Meyer: That was a pilot project and it was my understanding that
this piece of legislation was going to expand it. It's not identical but that was a pilot project
to see, because the Housing Finance Agency was challenged that this wouldn't work, if it
would work. Yes it did work. Whether it technically says it or not, this bill was supposed to
expand this program to all areas of the state.

Representative Dave Weiler: This bill is to incentivizing banks and investors to help with
this and that's not what was used in New Rockford.

Representative Lonny B. Winrich: | think there was additional funding in New Rockford
that came from private sources. The $50,000 that came from the Housing Finance Agency
was gap funding, precisely the kind of gap funding that's addressed in here. Mr. Anderson
testified that they used $400,000 of their reserve in order to fund this pilot project. That
$400,000 leveraged 6.8 million dollars in construction. That means that it supported jobs
and it also produced a fair amount of sales and use tax for the construction materials that
we've argued about on other bills.

Representative Dave Weiler: The $400,000 that was used to leverage and get the 6.4
million was not the New Rockford project. That is what they've done . . .. It's not!

Representative Lonny B. Winrich: $50,000 of it was.

Representative Steven L. Zaiser: The word “gap” is sort of ironic because we're trying to
fill a gap. There's very badly needed housing needs all over the State, not only in the oil
patch but in rural North Dakota even on the eastern part of the State. Tell me what we're
going to do for these people. We don't have any other programs. Let's have higher
amounts of State funding then to build a program. What are we going to do? Like
Representative Meyer indicated, are we going to pay on the front end or the back end?
These people need help from the State in some other way. They're going to be on the
welfare rolls. Nobody likes that.

Chairman Wesley R. Belter: This is a piece of legislation however well intended, it's
absolutely unusable as written. | see no reason for anybody to invest in it

Representative Shirley Meyer: With the Keiser amendments?
Chairman Wesley R. Belter: That's a different situation. | haven't looked at the Keiser

amendments that closely myself so | would suggest that people look at those tonight. ['ll
close this hearing.
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution:

A bill relating to a housing incentive fund and a financial institutions tax credit for
investments in the fund; and to provide a continuing appropriation.

Minutes: See attached testimony #1, #2, #3, #4, #5, #6, #7,
#8, #9 and proposed amendment.

Senator Wardner: Introduced bill. Please refer to attached testimony #1. This bill came
into the senate and when we had it drafted it was a $4 million direct appropriation from the
general fund. It probably wouldn’t have made it out of the senate written that way so with
Senator Grindberg’s help we came up with some creative financing and came up with this
plan. | already know there is another amendment that you are going to be entertaining but
if | explain this diagram to you it will help with the new amendments too. This is about
helping lower to middle income people in the state of North Dakota. It was easy for me to
become involved because out in the western part of the state we have a real issue, housing
and affordable housing for people. Anything we can do to help 1 was interested. I'm not
going to go through the bill and talk about all the criteria but | would like to go over this
diagram so you know the general concept on how this would work. The way it starts out is |
put down four banks and we set it up that banks would provide an investment to the
investment fund. The investment fund that is on there would be operated by the Bank of
North Dakota, they would facilitate this thing. For purposes of explaining | just said you had
four banks and they all decided to invest $1 million into this fund because at the end of the
first year they could get a $500,000 tax credit. They put in the money and the total would
be $4 million in the fund. Then ! gave an example of how that would be used. In project 1
we are assuming that we have $1 million construction cost. If you live in the smaller
communities and that's where this housing is needed, communities of 800-1,500 in
popuiation but the minute you build a facility there it's not worth as much as it cost to build
it. You build it for $1 million and the appraiser says this apartment house is actually worth
$800,000. When you go to the bank they are not going to give you the full loan on the
$800,000, they usually give you 75% of the appraisal loan to value which is $600,000. One
thing that | didn't put in this is equity. Whoever is the sponsoring entity they need to have
some skin in the game. Usually they need to put in 25% and in this example that would be
$250,000. You can get $600,000 from the bank but then you have a gap and that is where
you come with this gap funding. The gap in this case is $150,000. To get the financing
they go to any bank and they agree to a 5% rate on a $600,000 bank loan. The sponsoring
agent puts in their equity of $250,000 and then you have this $150,000 gap funding and
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that comes from the investment fund. This is just an example for teaching purposes as no
bank would loan you this money with the return. We are pretending that we have a 12 unit
apartment and the rent is $3900 a month so we would end up getting $10,800. The debt
service on that, for example, | pay $7,500 on my note to the bank each month and the
$250,000 equity would get $2,500 which goes back to the sponsoring agent. The
sponsoring agent could be a nonprofit, a housing authority, a for-profit, or anybody. The
way we drafted this is that there would be a claw back provision or a payback on the gap
funding and that would back into the investment fund. It could be re-appropriated but the
way this is set up after 10 years the bank gets their $1 million back and that is a stretch with
my numbers here but this is just so you see the idea. The banks wouid put in $1 million
and let's say after 10 or 15 years, whatever worked out, and then they would get their
$500,000 tax credit. We thought that would entice them. From the time it has passed the
senate until it came over here the Housing Authority and HAND have done some checking
and also Senator Grindberg did some checking and the banks aren't real excited about this.
That is why you will get a new amendment to this which will be similar but | will let the
people who proposed the amendment explain that. All | ask is that you put a little elbow
grease into this thing and see if you can make it work. The people in the industry are
willing to work with you and try to come up with something. | know that it's not only in the
oil areas that are looking for housing for lower income or middle income people and we
could help out here.

Representative Dwight Wrangham: In your diagram when do the taxpayers of North
Dakota get their $2 million back?

Senator Wardner: They wouldn't as it is a tax credit and it would be a fiscal note to this.
Instead of a direct appropriation of $4 million we used $2 million to leverage $4 million.
There is a fiscal note. The $2 million that wouid go out in tax credits from the financial
institution tax, the 7% and 2% goes to the state and 5% of it goes to the counties, it would
come out of there. That would be their part in the game. 1 didn't mean to not mention it.

Representative Patrick Hatlestad: In the bill the loan can be up to $200,000 at no
interest but the bank gets to charge a fee. Why don't we charge a fee to cover that cost?

Senator Wardner: That is correct that the gap funding could be up to $250,000, which
would be the limit. These are people and you want to make the project go so that is why
there is no interest on that. If you can’t keep the cost down they are not going to be abie to
live in those places. The bank has a minimal fee for administration of it and that is the way
things are because they need some kind of a fee for administering the fund. You're
absolutely correct that there is no interest in the gap part of it to keep it as low income as
you can. You're right; the $2 million that would be the tax credit is kind of the key to
keeping it here.

Vice Chairman Craig Headland: | was going over the fiscal note and it mentions that the
language is not clear in whether the intent is to be $4 million every year or a limit of $4
million.

Senator Wardner: That is correct. The tax department sent me that same notice. |If |
knew it was going to stay | would have an amendment to correct that.
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Vice Chairman Craig Headland: It wouid be your intent that it would be the $4 million
once?

Senator Wardner: That is correct.
Chairman Wesley R. Belter: Distributed proposed amendments.

Tom Alexander, Project Director of the ND Medicaid Infrastructure Grant with Minot
State University: Support. Please refer to attached testimony #2. | believe the
amendments that are being handed out reflect my testimony but | haven't seen the official
hard copies yet. | think they came from the recommendations of the HAND members
(Housing Alliance of ND) through Representative Kaiser.

Representative Shirley Meyer: Could you refresh my memory? How was the funding for
the housing that happened last year in Williston accomplished?

Tom Alexander: I'm not sure what you are speaking of?

Representative Shirley Meyer: The Williston development and the apartments in the
state of North Dakota partnered with them to build those apartments.

Tom Alexander: | think there are other people in the room who could answer that in detail
because | wasn't involved with that.

Representative Glen Froseth: On page 1 subsection 2, it says 25% of the fund must be
used to assist communities not more than 10,000 individuals and 50% of the fund must
benefit households with not more than 50% of the median income. Is that low income in
communities with less than 10,000 people or is that a separate category?

Tom Alexander: It's the same.

Representative Glen Froseth: In your testimony you said 50% of the targeted families
with low income...these aren’t going to be feasible to build unless there is some assistance
to help pay the rent gap between what low income can pay and the cost of building these
projects. Is housing assistance also available for these units?

Tom Alexander: The way it is structured if an entity builds a unit and folks with low to
moderate income come in the folks that have skin in the game have certain amount of
funds that need to be income on a monthly basis to pay the remaining back. By having this
gap assistance it lowers that need for a higher set of income coming in on a monthly basis
therefore, keeping rental prices down so that folks can afford them. | also have some
testimony from John Phillips who couldn’t be here today because of an energy conference
(see attached testimony #3) and also from Doreen Riedman, ND Association of Builders
(see attached testimony #4).

Cal Klewin, Economic Development Association of North Dakota: Support. Please
refer to attached testimony #5 and #6 (Maria Hanson, McHenry County Jobs Development
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Authority). 1 also want to mention another point; | am a practicing Real Estate Broker and |
have a multi-family management company that | deal with and i think you want to recognize
the definite need as | come from an oil producing county, Bowman County, and there is a
certain need out there in these smaller communities for gap financing. | think this financing
has to be recognized on multi-family and single family dwellings. However we can
recognize that in the state and provide some type of assistance to assist developers in
moving those issues forward is very important for our state to grow. There is a huge range
of housing needs out there and a lot of the housing that is available in communities is
inadequate for families. | just wanted to point that out for myself and practicing in real
estate and also seeing that as economic development.

Amy Wobbema, Executive Director of the New Rockford Area Betterment
Corporation: Support. Please refer to attached testimony #7.

Representative Steven L. Zaiser: First | want to commend you on making things happen.
Now that you've got those four units are you intending to build more units?

Amy Wobbema: | believe that we are... (Speaker was turned off so the rest of her answer
was inaudible).

Representative Glen Froseth: Have you checked with your bank in New Rockford to see
if they participate in this program?

Amy Wobbema: | have not visited with them.

Representative Steven L. Zaiser: Would you need this gap funding to go ahead with
these additional units?

Amy Wobbema: Yes, | believe we would. Any project that we build in New Rockford is
going to have a gap because of the few new units that have been built. It will be an
ongoing concern and need. '

Representative Lonny B. Winrich: You said the gap funding for the existing project was
provided a pilot program by the North Dakota Housing Finance Agency. s that program
terminated now?

Amy Wobbema: | believe that the North Dakota Housing Finance Agency plans to
continue that program provided that SB 2210 passes then they would use proceeds from
that fund to continue the program.

Veronica Zietz, Executive Director of the Arc of Bismarck: Support. Please refer to
attached testimony #8.

Diane Sheppard, Executive Director of North Dakota: Support. | am aware of many
elderly women in Larimore, Northwood, and Hatton who have worked their whole careers in
these local nursing homes for barely more than minimum wage. Now they are widowed
and elderly living on social security and in need of low income housing. They are no longer
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able to keep up their homes that they shared with their husbands and | think this bill if it
passes would definitely help a lot of these women that | am aware of.

Mike Anderson, Executive Director for ND Housing Finance Agency: Neutral
testimony. Please refer to attached testimony #9. Housing isn’'t simple anymore it is a lot
different than they were decades ago and it makes it more difficult to accomplish affordable
housing in all income levels.

Representative Bette Grande: When somebody qualifies for this particular program how
long does the investor need to hold the rent to the level for low and medium income before
they can change it up to the higher levels making it unaffordable for those that initially
gualified? It was stated earlier that there are housing areas where we had people that were
qualified and now it is unaffordable housing. What happened and how can they be forced
out of there subsidized housing?

Mike Anderson: The bill itself doesn’t define “affordability period” but | will go back to what
we've been doing with our tax credit programs. Federal tax credit programs could have an
affordability period up to 30 years and they would have to stay affordable for that period of
time if that were the case. | think you need to look at the level you are trying to target and
what the need is then you establish the affordability period and you would lock that in either
with debt or land use restriction agreement so that they couldn’t raise their rents beyond an
affordability level for those tenants.

Representative Steven L. Zaiser: Would you say this is one of your most flexible
programs given the fact that you can tailor it to the various needs and niches?

Mike Anderson: Flexibility always helps on this side of the equation because the needs
you have today may differ next year or the following year. With some flexibility it makes it
easier for us to operate a program or its fund. The federal low income tax credits define
broad parameters and they let the state define priorities within their state in terms of how
they are going to use those. But you have to be comfortable if you're going to entrust us
with your resources that we are also meeting your objectives.

Representative Lonny B. Winrich: You said that the $400,000 that you used for the pilot
project leveraged $6.5 million in housing?

Mike Anderson: $6.8 million.
Representative Lonny B. Winrich: Is that $6.8 million for the costs of the projects?
Mike Anderson: That is correct.

Representative Patrick Hatlestad: What percent of your operation is federally funded
and what percent is state?

Mike Anderson: All of our programs are either funded through federal funds or federal
authorization through the tax code. Very little is self funded within our reserves so | would
say 90% at least of our programs that we operate are funded on a federal basis. This late
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summer or early fall there was a federal low income housing tax credit project that we
allocated credits too.

Representative Scot Kelsh: In your brochure describing median home prices by city,
does that include a rental cost to or is that just the average price of a single family unit or
condominium?

Mike Anderson: The median price would be home ownership. When that report was
done we used fair market rents in terms of rental affordability.

Joe Becker, ND Tax Department: Neutral testimony. Last week we had an opportunity to
see a revised draft of the bill with the proposed amendments in place. Max Wetz of the
Housing Finance Agency contacted me asking our office to look those over. We sent him a
number of recommended changes assuming you were to adopt these amendments you
were just given. I'm assuming that the amendments you have are going to do what we
were looking at because my review indicates that is what they are going to do. | just
wanted to let the committee know that assuming you proceed with this bill and adopt those
amendments we would like to see some changes made as we think some are
recommended.

Mike Anderson: I'm going to apologize as Max has been out of the office and | know that
you had talked but | haven't seen those so we need to take a look at those and get together
with Kaiser and Wardner and blend them in.

Representative Mark S. Owens: In going over the amendments | have a few questions
on what you are saying; the credits that increase to 100% rather than 50% is geared to take
up to 20% of the credit per taxable year which would suggest a five year but if you only take
10% there is no limit on a five year so it could extend to 10 years as it's allowed to be
carried forward. The limit on the tax credit is now $4 million instead of $2 million and it's
coming out of the general fund portion of the tax and not the financial institution tax, is that
correct?

Joe Becker: Yes, but the amendments are also going to expand the credit into the income
tax world and not just the financial institution world.

Representative Lonny B. Winrich: You said the amendments would expand the tax
credit into the income tax credit?

Joe Becker: What I'm saying is that the amendments that were handed out this morning
to change the bill are what we saw last week and they are going to expand it into the
income chapter as well.

Representative Dwight Wrangham: Wil we see a changed fiscal note with these
amendments?

Joe Becker: Probably not. We are not sure to what extent taxpayers would put money
-into the fund so it is unknown.
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. Chairman Wesley R. Belter: No further testimony. Closed hearing on SB 2212.
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investments in the fund; and to provide a continuing appropriation.

Minutes: No attachments.

Representative Shirley Meyer: We are so desperate for housing in the western part of
the state that we are to the place where we don’t know what to do. I'm not saying that the
state has to build homes but this has worked in Harvey and in other places. Unless we do
some kind of incentive you aren’t going to get an investor to come into Killdeer, North
Dakota and build a fabulous place when they could be building in Palm Beach. We just
can't get the financing to build it.

Representative Dave Weiler: | think the real problem with the housing out west is
because of the increased money the people are making the rent leveis are going up also
because there is no room anywhere. The problem lies with the peopie who are on fixed
incomes whether they are elderly or whatever. These people are getting kicked out of their
apartments because they can't afford to keep up. | understand that there is a problem with
housing however this bill does not get it done. This bill says if you give me a $100,000 | will
give you $20,000 for five years. Is any investor in the world going to take that deal? In all
honesty we could pass this bill but it will never get used. If | invest $100,000 | don’t even
own part of a building. I'm investing $100,000 to get $20,000 a year for five years. That
makes your 4% in the legacy fund look like a great deal.

Chairman Wesley R. Belter: You're absolutely right and that's why the Keiser
amendments were brought forward to try and sweeten the pot so that banks might take a
second look at it. That was the reason for the Keiser amendments. | don’t necessarily
agree with the amendments but that was the goal.

Representative Wayne Trottier: In looking what they did in New Rockford and those
other places, they are about $130,000 per apartment for the investment. How much are
mobile homes now days? Are they ever thought of? Do people not want to live in a mobile
home anymore? That person with the lower income would own the mobile home then and
they aren’t $100,000 are they?



House Finance and Taxation Committee
8B 2210

March 15, 2011

Page 2

Representative Dave Weiler: They can be if you get a super deluxe double-wide but
there are $15,000 mobile homes as well.

Representative Roscoe Streyle: | can guarantee you that there is no bank that is going
to do this because it makes absolutely no sense whatsoever. Furthermore, we finance stuff
in small towns and all we say is put more money up and we'll finance it then they go out
and find the investors and they do it if it makes economic sense, the free market will do it.

Representative Dwight Wrangham: Government manipulation of markets never works
whether it's through interest rates or gap financing, there's always something that's going to
come back and bite you. Fanny May Freddie Mac.

Chairman Wesley R. Belter: No further discussion.
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Vice Chairman Craig Headland: Distributed amendments from the North Dakota Housing
Authority.

Representative Dave Weiler: As the bill came to us it had a 50% tax credit and there
were some rumors of amendments from Representative Keiser that was going to change it
to 100% and that's what | see on here. If | give this fund $100,000 | get $20,000 back for
five years in a row. There is still no incentive for me to pay my taxes up front for a five year
period. I'm wondering if there is somebody who drafted the amendments could explain
these to me further.

Donnita Wald, General Counsel for Office of State Tax Commissioner: You are
correct they do get their money back in what they invested in over a five year period of
time. We hog housed the bill because we thought it would be a little bit easier for the
committee to see exactly what you were passing. Reviewed amendments.

Representative Lonny B. Winrich: The limit here in subsection 5 and 6 is $4 million a
biennium and that's on the credit, correct?

Donnita Wald, General Counsel for Office of State Tax Commissioner: Yes, $4 million
in tax credit.

Representative Lonny B. Winrich: That's $2 million a year and you can carry it forward
10 years so the maximum tax credit would be $20 million, is that correct?

Donnita Wald, General Counsel for Office of State Tax Commissioner: No because
the 20% is how you calculate the $4 million. It wouldn’t be 20% over five years; it is still
that one 20%. You don’t re-add the 20%. That $4 million is not per year it could be used
up in the first year of the biennium. You asked if the 20% is going to be over five years with
it being $20 million but that isn’t how the carry it forward language works, it's just being
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spread out over five years. The credit amount stays the same; the $4 million per biennium
will stay the same. We're just spreading it out past the biennium. It doesn’'t make that $20
million,

Representative Lonny B. Winrich: Is there a maximum total tax credit?

Donnita Wald, General Counsel for Office of State Tax Commissioner: There is a $4
million cap per biennium on the number of credits that can be claimed.

Representative Lonny B. Winrich: So it's not a cap on the individual credit but on the
total credits claimed under this bill?

Donnita Wald, General Counsel for Office of State Tax Commissioner: Yes. That's a
statewide cap per biennium. That $4 million is not being split up; $2 million in the first year
and $2 million in the second year.

Representative Dave Weiler: |If we pass this bill and some individual donates $10 miilion
to this fund they are going to get $2 million per year for five years. Does that take care of
the cap?

Donnita Wald, General Counsel for Office of State Tax Commissioner: The $2 million
in tax credit wouid reduce the statewide cap by $2 million so there would only be $2 million
left. That $2 million would be split out over those five years. From a fiscal reporting
standpoint that $2 million would be taken out that first year, right now.

Representative Dave Weiler: If somebody donated $10 million they would use up that $2
million per year cap and nobody else could donate to the fund because the cap has already
been reached.

Donnita Wald, General Counsel for Office of State Tax Commissioner: Someone
could invest enough money to take up that whole $4 million in this first year and that would
be it for the biennium. it is not limited by fiscal year.

Representative Dave Weiler: It's $4 million a biennium so they would have to donate $8
million a biennium.

Donnita Wald, General Counsel for Office of State Tax Commissioner: On subsection
5 does yours read the aggregate amount of tax credit allowed to all eligible contributors is
limited to $4 million per biennium or do you have that for all years?

Vice Chairman Craig Headland: Per biennium.

Representative Dave Weiler: When Senator Wardner proposed this bill he had a chart
and there were four banks and they all donated $1 million and their tax credit was $500,000
because it was at 50%. Now under these amendments it's a 100% tax credit. So these
banks under this same scenario would donate $1 million each and they would each get $1
million tax credit which means $200,000 a year for five years. The bank is basically loaning
them to build the project so do they get a 5% rate of return on that loan? When | was
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discussing this with someone else they said the bank doesn't actually own the building so
they don't get money back on that loan. It's not like borrowing money to buy a house. All a
bank is doing is giving $1 million and they don’t own the building.

Donnita Wald, General Counsel for Office of State Tax Commissioner: That is correct.

Representative Dave Weiler: If Representative Zaiser donates $100,000 he doesn't own
any part of the building.

Donnita Wald, General Counsel for Office of State Tax Commissioner: That's correct.
Representative Dave Weiler: And that has not changed with these amendments.

Donnita Wald, General Counsel for Office of State Tax Commissioner: The first bill as
introduced used the word “investment” and because this isn’t really an investment because
they are not getting a return on their dollar we changed it to “contribution.” Truly it is a
contribution to the fund and the way we understand it there will be no return on the money
to the investors. They may get a federal tax deduction for making a charitable contribution.
We're not sure what the federal tax consequences of this are either.

Vice Chairman Craig Headland: Could you essentially say they are paying 100% of their
taxes up front?

Donnita Wald, General Counsel for Office of State Tax Commissioner: | guess you
could say that.

Representative Dwight Wrangham: On page 2 of the amendment it says “"assistance
from the fund may be used solely for...” Feasibly one entity could own the property today
and after we pass this bill sell it to a sister entity and then they would be able to claim these
credits, is that correct?

Donnita Wald, General Counsel for Office of State Tax Commissioner: | don’t know.
First of all you would have to qualify. That qualifier would be determined by the Housing
Finance Agency. It's not an issue we discussed with them. I'm assuming they would try to
prevent that type of situation from happening and then wouldn't qualify the investment for
the tax credit.

Representative Glen Froseth: On page 1 subsection 1 the original bill says the loans
may not bear interest but the Bank of North Dakota may retain and administer the
administrative fee of not more than %%. There is nothing in that section now. It says if
interest can be charged or administration fee can be charged. On page 2 this bill started
out as a tool for a method of financing new housing basically in western North Dakota. |f
you're going to leave subsection a in there about rehabilitation or requisitions that is not
building new housing that is just giving straight off the tax deduction for an investment so
that doesn’t do anything for a new building. If we do pass this amendment | think we
definitely need a sunset clause.
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Donnita Wald, General Counsel for Office of State Tax Commissioner: | know the first
bill had the Bank of North Dakota retaining an administration fee. Housing Finance Agency
still may collect a reasonable fee for administration of the fund and that is on the top of
page 2. | don't really have an answer for you on the rehabilitation and acquisition of that.
The sunset would be something the committee would have to decide on.

Representative Shirley Meyer: Dickinson had a tornado that virtually wiped out all our
low income housing on the south side of the city. With this there were looking at the muiti
family acquisition and it's not that they are trying to gain the system but if there were some
dollars involved some of the multifamily projects that weren't low income could be used. |
think that sentence there was trying to deal with the Dickinson situation when they lost all
theirs to the tornado.

Representative Steven L. Zaiser: This creates the opportunity that if there were damage
then it could be acquired and rehabilitated for low income purposes.

Vice Chairman Craig Headland: If the committee addresses this amendment and puts it
on the bill there is no need to look at the Keiser amendment, right?

Donnita Wald, General Counsel for Office of State Tax Commissioner: Yes, that is
correct. Representative Keiser's amendment is in this draft.

Representative Lonny B. Winrich: When a financial institution contributes to this fund
that is a contribution they aren't investing in the properties. It's the Housing Finance
Agency that administers the fund and decides if they are going to acquire another building
or build something, is it not?

Donnita Wald, General Counsel for Office of State Tax Commissioner: That's correct.
A contributor does not get an ownership interest in the fund or in the projects that are
approved by the Housing Finance Agency.

Representative Lonny B. Winrich: So the scenario of buying something from one
institution and then buying it from another institution and getting an additional tax credit
couldn't happen.

Donnita Wald, General Counsel for Office of State Tax Commissioner: The bank
could try and get an investment if that's where they thought the money was going but not
the Housing Agency. You're right.

Representative Lonny B. Winrich: Under Senator Wardner's scenario he proposed with
four banks contributing $1 million each to this fund so they have a $4 million fund. Are the
tax credits a sign at the time the contribution is made?

Donnita Wald, General Counsel for Office of State Tax Commissioner: That is correct.
That is one of the things that is very different in how this particular tax credit is
administered. It is Housing Finance that will give the financial institution or the other
investors a certificate showing their 20% and then have to attach that to the return. This
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came in as only for financial institutions who could invest in that but that has been
expanded to allow corporations and individuals to invest.

Representative Lonny B. Winrich: So basically a contribution to the fund then up to $4
million a biennium generates this tax credit. That is essentially what the institution or the
individual gets back on the basis of that contribution. It's not like making a loan and
collecting interest plus principle, basically you get the principle back and that's it.

Donnita Wald, General Counsel for Office of State Tax Commissioner: That's correct.
No interest on that.

Representative Dave Weiler: | will move the amendment.

Representative Bette Grande: Seconded.

A voice vote was taken: MOTION CARRIED.

Representative Dave Weiler: | am going to move a DO NOT PASS AS AMENDED.
This bill should not pass in my opinion; however, if it does pass it's not going to make any
difference because | don’t know of any financial institution, corporation, or individual that
would give somebody $100,000 for a $20,000 tax credit for five years. This is not an
investment this is a gift. Under current law | don’t believe there is anything to disallow
somecne to give any money to the North Dakota Housing Finance Agency.
Representative Glen Froseth: | would like to further amend this.

Vice Chairman Craig Headland: Would you withdraw your motion?

Representative Dave Weiler: Yes, | will withdraw my motion.

Representative Glen Froseth: | would like to further amend to add the two year
sunset.

Representative Dwight Wrangham: Seconded.

A voice vote was taken: MOTION CARRIED TO FURTHER AMEND.
Representative Dave Weiler: | move a DO NOT PASS AS AMENDED ON SB 2210.
Representative Roscoe Streyle: SECONDED.

Representative Steven L. Zaiser: | think there are generous and good hearted people in
this state that may be sensitive to what is going on particularly in the western part of the
state and in rural areas of the state that would like to help and assist in getting housing in
areas where needed for low income folks. So | don't think this is a big loss. If nobody
invests then nobody invests. | don’t see any harm here. In short of putting a lot of money
into it this is another alternative.
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Representative Dwight Wrangham: The person that does the investing may not be a
winner but there are losers in this bill and those are the taxpayers of North Dakota. They
are going to lose the revenue that they had coming in that income tax charge revenue due
for five years or whatever it is. We are transferring money from the taxpayers of North
Dakota to the housing fund. Do we need a housing fund? Maybe so but then let's do it
straight up and not play these little games to take the money out of the citizens’ pockets.

Representative Glen Froseth: | agree with part of the statement that Representative
Wrangham made. | think a better incentive is to offer an interest buy down or an interest
reduction on the money rather than an income tax credit.

Representative Lonny B. Winrich: I'm going to resist the Do Not Pass. There are
already incentives built into the tax code to encourage contributions to all sorts of people.
In most cases those incentives reduce your taxable income, we call them deductions. |
don’t know anybody who files anything other than the very short income tax form and
usually it has a list of the contributions they have made to various charitable organizations
and so on. This gives a little bit stronger incentive in the form of a tax credit rather than
simply reducing your taxable income. This would give you a tax credit for this kind of
contribution. | don't see that is a great difference from what is going on now. It is certainly
using the tax code in the same way that it has been used for years. We certainly had
ample testimony as to the housing needs, not only in the western part of the state but
throughout. This seems to be a reasonable way to address them. | would hope we could
give some support to this bill.

Representative Patrick Hatlestad: To me this is not a contribution as you are getting all
your money back. What have you contributed?

Representative Lonny B. Winrich: What have you gained? Nothing.

Representative Patrick Hatlestad: Where is this generous nature that you are actually
helping somebody? You're getting all your money back. Where's the help?

Representative Lonny B. Winrich: People are already making contributions. | think
virtually every corporation or every company in the state has some sort of fund that they
administer for the benefit of the community or whatever they contribute to various
organizations. That does happen for some people, they are pretty generous. In this case
we are attempting to form public policy admittedly. It doesn’t cost you anything but it
doesn't profit you anything either, it simply allows some of the tax policy to be used in the
direction of providing housing.

Representative Shirley Meyer: If we Kkill this bill then we have absolutely nothing.
Housing is critical in Dickinson and other surrounding areas. If we kill this we have nothing
to go to a conference committee with. An interest buy down might be a better idea. | would
hope you could resist a Do Not Pass.

Representative Steven L. Zaiser: The general discussion a few weeks ago was why we
would even want to have this bill because there is no reason to invest. Now we’re saying
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. that there is too much in terms of a contribution. 1 think the good amendment is the sunset
so we could look at it again in a few years. | would hope we could resist the Do Not Pass.

Representative Dave Weiler: This bill as it came to us didn't have a fiscal note but keep
in mind this is a $4 million fiscal note.

Vice Chairman Craig Headland: You are correct it could reduce revenues by up to $4
million a biennium.

Representative Wayne Trottier: | understand low income and relatively cheaper housing
for people but this doesn’t create any kind of incentive for anybody to get out of low cost or
low income housing. Maybe I'm naive to think they could buy a $50-60,000 mobile home
and then be able to own it then be able to move up to something better to create an
incentive for these people. | understand many people don't want to live in them but they
own nothing and | thought this was part of the whole movement in the United States to get
people in houses. They need to start with something they can own. | would be willing to
look at a tax break for someone or an incentive for banks or financial institutions to support
where they could own their own home but this does nothing for that.

A roll call vote was taken: YES9 NO4 ABSENT1
MOTION CARRIED FOR DO NOT PASS AS AMENDED.

. Representative Dwight Wrangham will carry SB 2210.
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Amendment to:

FISCAL NOTE
Requasted by Legislative Council
03/24/2011
Engrossed
SB 2210

1A. State fiscal effect: /dentify the state fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations compared to

funding levels and appropriations anticipated under current iaw.

2009-2011 Biennium

2011-2013 Biennium

2013-2015 Biennium

General Fund| Other Funds

General Fund

Other Funds

General Fund

Other Funds

Revenues

Expenditures

Appropriations

1B. County, city, and school district fiscal effect: /dentify the fiscal effect on the appropriale political subdivision.

2009-2011 Biennium

2011-2013 Biennium

2013-2015 Biennium

Counties

School

Cities Districts

Counties

Cities

School
Districts

Counties

Cities

School
Districts

2A. Bill and fiscal impact summary: Frovide a brief summary of the measure, including description of the

provisions having fiscal impact (limited to 300 characters).

Engrossed SB 2210 with House Amendments creates a housing incentive fund that the ND Housing Finance Agency
ay use to assist with unmet housing needs. Sections 4 through 7 of the bill create a new tax credit for income and
inancial institution tax purposes for contributing to the fund.

B. Fiscal impact sections: /dentify and provide a brief description of the sections of the measure which have
fiscal impact. Include any assumptions and comments relevant fo the analysis.

Sections 4 through 7 of the bill create a new tax credit for income and financial institution tax purposes. With respect
to the financial institution tax, the credit only offsets the state general fund portion of the tax.

The credit is equal to the amount contributed to the new housing incentive fund, but no more than 20 percent (or
one-fifth) of the total credit may be used in any tax year. If the credit exceeds the tax for the year, the unused portion
may be carried forward up to 10 tax years.

The bill sets a ceiling on the fiscal impact to the state general fund of $4 million for 2011-13 biennium; however, the
actual decrease, if any, in state general fund revenues cannot be determined because the extent to which taxpayers
will contribute to the new housing incentive fund is not known.

3. State fiscal effect detail:

For information shown under state fiscal effect in 1A, please:

A. Revenues: FExplain the revenue amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each revenue type and
fund affected and any amounts included in the executive budget.

B. Expenditures: Explain the expenditure amounts. Provide detall, when appropriate, for each agency, line
item, and fund affected and the number of FTE positions affected.

. C. Appropriations: Explain the appropriation amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency




and fund affected. Explain the relationship between the amounts shown for expenditures and
appropriations. Indicate whether the appropriation is also included in the executive budget or relates to a
continuing appropriation.

Name: Kathryn L. Strombeck Agency: Office of Tax Commissioner

Phone Number: 328-3402 Date Prepared: 03/25/2011




FISCAL NOTE
Requested by Legislative Council
02/22/2011

Amendment to; SB 2210

1A. State fiscal effect: /dentify the state fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations compared o
funding levels and appropriations anticipated under current /aw.

2009-2011 Biennium 2011-2013 Biennium 2013-2015 Biennium
General Fund| Other Funds |General Fund| Other Funds |General Fund| Other Funds

Revenues
Expenditures
Appropriations

1B. County, city, and school district fiscal effect: /dentify the fiscal effect on the appropriate political subdivision.
2009-2011 Biennium 2011-2013 Biennium 2013-2015 Biennium

School School School

Counties Cities Districts Counties Cities Districts Counties Cities Districts

2A. Bill and fiscal impact summary: Provide a brief summary of the measure, including description of the
provisions having fiscal impact (fimited to 300 characters).

Engrossed SB 2210 creates a housing incentive fund from which no-interest loans may be made, as directed by the
ND Housing Finance Agency, for unmet housing needs or shortages. Section 4 of the bill creates a new tax credit
against the financial institution tax for investments into the new fund.

B. Fiscal impact sections: /dentify and provide a brief description of the sections of the measure which have
fiscal impact, Include any assumptions and comments relevant to the analysis.

Section 4 of the bill creates a new tax credit against the North Dakota financial institution tax under N.D.C.C. ch.
57-35.3. The credit is equa! to 50 percent of the investments made during the tax year by a financial institution into the
new housing incentive fund. While the bill's language places a $4 million limit on the total amount of credits allowed, it
is not clear from the language whether the limit is intended to be an annual limit or a limit for all years.

Note: The bill's language appears to indicate that the credit is intended to be allowed against both the state general
fund and the financial institution distribution fund portions of the financial institution tax. Of the total 7 percent tax,
current law distributes 2/7ths to the state general fund and 5/7ths to the financial institution distribution fund. The
5/7ths portion placed in the financial institution distribution fund is, in turn, distributed to the counties. Except for
certain tax credits available under the North Dakota Renaissance Zone Program, tax credits currently allowed under
the financial institution tax law are only allowed to offset the 2/7ths state general fund portion of the tax.

The potential decreases in the state general fund and in the county revenue from the financial institution tax
attributable to the new tax credit (in Section 4 of the bill) cannot be determined as it is not known to what extent
financial institutions will invest in the new housing incentive fund {created by Section 1 of the bill}.

3. State fiscal effect detail: For information shown under state fiscal effect in 1A, please:
A. Revenues: Explain the revenue amoumnts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each revenue lype and
fund affected and any amounts included in the executive budget.

B. Expenditures: Explain the expenditure amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency, line
item, and fund affected and the number of FTE positions affected.




C. Appropriations: Explain the appropriation amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency
and fund affected. Explain the relationship between the amounts shown for expenditures and
appropriations. Indicate whether the appropriation is also included in the executive budget or relates to a
continuing appropriation.

[Name: Kathryn L. Strombeck Agency: Office of Tax Commissioner

Phone Number: 328-3402 Date Prepared: 02/22/2011
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PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED SENATE BILL NO. 2210

Page 1, line 1, after "A BILL" replace the remainder of the bill with "for an Act to create and
enact two new sections to chapter 54-17, a new subdivision to subsection 2 of section
54-60.1-01, a new subsection to section 57-35.3-05, a new section to chapter 57-38,

_and a new subdivision to subsection 7 of section 57-38-30.3 of the North Dakota
Century Code, relating to a housing incentive fund and tax credits for contributions to
the fund; to amend and reenact subsection 2 of section 54-17-07.2 and section
57-35.3-07 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the definition of multifamily
housing facility and payment of the financial institutions tax; to provide a continuing
appropriation; to provide an effective date; and to provide an expiration date.

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF NORTH DAKOTA:

SECTION 1. AMENDMENT. Subsection 2 of section 54-17-07.2 of the North
Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

2. "Multifamily housing facility" means any facility containing fivefour or more
residential dwelling units; provided, that at least twenty percent of the units
in each facility must be held for occupancy by persons or families of low
and moderate income for suchthe period of time as the industrial
commission may determine and may include suehthe related public or

. private facilities intended for commercial, cultural, recreational, community,
or other civic purpose as the commission may approve.

SECTION 2. Two new sections to chapter 54-17 of the North Dakota Century
Code are created and enacted as follows:

Housing incentive fund - Continuing appropriation.

1. The housing incentive fund is created as a special revolving fund at the
Bank of North Dakota. The housing finance agency may direct

disbursements from the fund and a continuing appropriation from the fund
is_provided for that purpose.

After a public hearing, the housing finance agency shall create an annual
allocation plan for the distribution of the fund. At least twenty-five percent
of the fund must be used to assist developing communities with a
population of not more than ten thousand individuals to address an unmet

housing need or alleviate a housing shortage. At least fifty percent of the

fund must be used to benefit households with incomes at not more than

fifty percent of the area median income. The agency may collect a

reasgnable administrative fee from the fund.

0o

[0

The housing finance agency shall adopt guidelines for the fund so as to
address unmet housing needs in this state. Assistance from the fund may

be used solely for:
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New construction, rehabilitation, or acquisition of a muitifamily housing
project;

Gap assistance, matching funds, and accessibility improvements:

© =

Assistance that does not exceed the amount necessary to qualify for a

loan using underwriting standards acceptable for secondary market
financing or to make the project feasible; and

o

Rental assistance, emergency assistance, or targeted supportive
services designated to prevent homelessness.

[+

Eligible recipients include units of local, state, and tribal government: local
and tribal housing authorities; community action agencies; regional
planning councils; and nonprofit organizations and for-profit developers of

multifamily housing. Individuals may not receive direct assistance from the
fund.

jon

Except for subdivision d of subsection 3. assistance is subject to

repayment or recapture under the guidelines adopted by the housing
finance agency. Any assistance that is repaid or recaptured must be

deposited in the fund and is appropriated on a continuing basis for the
purposes of this section.

Report,

Upon request, the housing finance agency shall report to the industrial
commission on the activities of the housing incentive fund.

SECTION 3. A new subdivision to subsection 2 of section 54-60.1-01 of the
North Dakota Century Code is created and enacted as follows:

Assistance from the housing finance agency through housing
incentive funds.

SECTION 4. A new subsection to section 57-35.3-05 of the North Dakota
Century Code is created and enacted as follows:

There is allowed a credit against the tax imposed by sections 57-35.3-01
through 57-35.3-12 in an amount equal to the contribution to the housing
incentive fund under section 2 of this Act. The taxpayer may not claim
more than twenty percent of the credit for each separate contribution made
in_any taxable year. For the purposes_of the credit aliowed in this

subsection, subsections 2 through 8 of section 6 of this Act apply.

SECTION 5. AMENDMENT. Section 57-35.3-07 of the North Dakota Century
Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

57-35.3-07. Payment of tax.

Two-sevenths of the tax before credits allowed under section 57-35.3-05, less
the ereditcredits allowed under subsection 1 of section 57-35.3-05_and section 4 of this
Act, must be paid to the commissioner on or before April fifteenth of the year in which
the return is due, regardiess of any extension of the time for filing the return granted
under section 57-35.3-06. Five-sevenths of the tax before credits allowed under section
57-35.3-05, less the credit allowed under subsection 2 of section 57-35.3-05, must be
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paid to the commissioner on or before January fifteenth of the year after the return is
due. Payment must be made by check, draft, or money order, payable to the
commissioner, or as prescribed by the commissioner under subsection 15 of section

57-01-02.

SECTION 6. A new section to chapter 57-38 of the North Dakota Century Code
is created and enacted as follows:

Housing incentive fund tax credit.

1

[

|0

[~

o

|

[~

oo

A taxpayer is entitled to a credit as determined under this section against
state income tax liability under section 57-38-30 or 57-38-30.3 for
contributing to the housing incentive fund under section 2 of this Act. The
amount of the credit is equal to the amount contributed to the fund during
the taxable year. The taxpayer may not claim more than twenty percent of

the credit for each separate contribution made in any taxable year.

North Dakota taxable income must be increased by the amount of the
contribution upon which the credit under this section is computed but only
to the extent the contribution reduced federal taxable income.

The contribution amount used to calculate the credit under this section

may not be used to calculate any other state income tax deduction or
credit allowed by law.

If the amount of the credit exceeds the taxpayer's tax liability for the

taxable year, the excess may be carried forward to each of the ten
succeeding taxable years.

The aggregate amount of tax credits allowed to all eligible contributors is
limited to four million dollars per biennium. This limitation applies to all
contributions for which tax credits are claimed under section 57-35.3-05
and this section.

Within thirty days after the date on which a taxpayer makes a contribution
to the housing incentive fund, the housing finance agency shall file with
each contributing taxpayer, and a copy with the tax commissioner,
completed forms that show as to each contribution to the fund by that
taxpaver the following:

a. The name address, and social security number or federal employer
identification number of the taxpayer that made the contribution.

b. The dollar amount paid for the contribution by the taxpayer.
€. The date the payment was received by the fund.

To receive the tax credit provided under this section, a taxpayer shall claim
the credit on the taxpayer's state income or financial institutions tax return

in the manner prescribed by the tax commissioner and file with_the return a
copy of the form issued by the housing finance agency under subsection 6.

Notwithstanding the time limitations contained in section 57-38-38, this
section does not prohibit the tax commissioner from conducting an
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examination of the credit claimed and assessing additional tax due under
section 57-38-38.

|

A parinership, subchapter S corporation, limited partnership, limited liability

company, or any other passthrough entity making a contribution to the
housing_incentive fund under this section is considered to be the taxpayer
for purposes of this section, and the amount of the credit allowed must be
determined at the passthrough entity level. The amount of the total credit
determined at the entity level must be passed through to the partners

shareholders, or members in proportion to their respective interests in the
passthrough entity.

SECTION 7. A new subdivision to subsection 7 of section 57-38-30.3 of the
North Dakota Century Code is created and enacted as follows:
Housing incentive fund tax credit under section & of this Act,

SECTION 8. EFFECTIVE DATE - EXPIRATION DATE. Sections 1, 2, and 3 of
this Act are effective through June 30, 2013, and are thereafter ineffective. Sections 4,
5, 6, and 7 of this Act are effective for the first two taxable years beginning after
December 31, 2010, and are thereafter ineffective.”

Renumber accordingly
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REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE
SB 2210, as engrossed: Finance and Taxation Committee (Rep. Belter, Chairman)
recommends AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when s0 amended, recommends
DO NOT PASS (SYEAS, 4NAYS, 1ABSENT AND NOT VOTING).
Engrossed SB 2210 was placed on the Sixth order on the calendar.

Page 1, line 1, after "A BILL" replace the remainder of the bill with "for an Act to create and
enact two new sections to chapter 54-17, a new subdivision to subsection 2 of
section 54-60.1-01, a new subsection to section 57-35.3-05, a new section to
chapter 57-38, and a new subdivision to subsection 7 of section 57-38-30.3 of the
North Dakota Century Code, relating to a housing incentive fund and tax credits for
contributions to the fund; to amend and reenact subsection 2 of section 54-17-07.2
and section §7-35.3-07 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the definition
of multifamily housing facility and payment of the financial institutions tax; to provide
a continuing appropriation; to provide an effective date; and to provide an expiration
date.

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF NORTH DAKOTA:

SECTION 1. AMENDMENT. Subsection 2 of section 54-17-07.2 of the North
Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

2. "Multifamily housing facility" means any facility containing fivefour or
more residential dwelling units; provided, that at least twenty percent of
the units in each facility must be held for occupancy by persons or
families of low and moderate income for suehthe period of time as the
industrial commission may determine and may include sushthe related
public or private facilities intended for commercial, cultural, recreational,
community, or other civic purpose as the commission may approve.

SECTION 2. Two new sections to chapter 54-17 of the North Dakota Century
Code are created and enacted as follows:

Housing incentive fund - Continuing appropriation.

1. The housing incentive fund is created as a special revolving fund at the
Bank of North Dakota. The housing finance agency may direct

disbursements from the fund and a continuing appropriation from the
fund is provided for that purpose.

After a public hearing, the housing finance agency shall create an annual
allocation plan for the distribution of the fund. At least twenty-five percent
of the fund must be used to assist developing communities with a
population of not more than ten thousand individuals to address an

unmet housing need or alleviate a housing shortage. At least fifty percent

of the fund must be used to benefit households with incomes at not more
than fifty percent of the area median income. The agency may collect a
reasonable administrative fee from the fund.

[

The housing finance agency shall adopt guidelines for the fund so as to

address unmet housing needs in this state. Assistance from the fund may
be used solely for:

a. New construction. rehabilitation. or acquisition of a multifamily
housing project;

b. Gap assistance, matching funds, and accessibility improvements;

o

(1) DESK (3) COMMITTEE Page 1 h_stcomrep_51_015
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Assistance that does not exceed the amount necessary to qualify for
a loan ysing underwriting_standards acceptable for secondary
market financing or to make the project feasible; and

[©

d. Rental assistance, emergency assistance, or targeted supportive
services designated to prevent homelessness.

o

Eligible recipients include units of local, state, and tribal government;
local and tribal housing authorities; community action agencies; regional
planning councils; and nonprofit organizations and for-profit developers
of multifamily housing. Individuals may not receive direct assistance from
the fund. .

5. Except for subdivision d of subsection 3, assistance is subject to
repayment or recapture under the guidelines adopted by the housing
finance agency. Any assistance that is repaid or recaptured must be
deposited in the fund and is appropriated on a continuing basis for the
purposes of this section.

Report.

Upon request, the housing finance agency shall report to the industriai
commission on the activities of the housing incentive fund.

SECTION 3. A new subdivision to subsection 2 of section 54-60.1-01 of the
North Dakota Century Code is created and enacted as follows:

Assistance from the housing finance agency through housing
incentive funds.

SECTION 4. A new subsection to section 57-35.3-05 of the North Dakota
Century Code is created and enacted as follows:

There is allowed a credit against the tax imposed by sections 57-35.3-01
through 57-35 3-12 in an amount equal to the contribution to the housing
incentive fund under section 2 of this Act. The taxpayer may not claim
more than twenty percent of the credit for each separate contribution

made in any taxable year, For the purposes of the credit allowed in this
subsection, subsections 2 through 8 of section 6 of this Act apply.

SECTION 5. AMENDMENT. Section 57-35.3-07 of the North Dakota Century
Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

57-35.3-07. Payment of tax.

Two-sevenths of the tax before credits allowed under section 57-35.3-05,
less the ereditcredits allowed under subsection 1 of section 57-35.3-05_and section 4
of this Act, must be paid to the commissioner on or before April fifteenth of the year
in which the return is due, regardiess of any extension of the time for filing the return
granted under section 57-35.3-06. Five-sevenths of the tax before credits allowed
under section 57-35.3-05, less the credit allowed under subsection 2 of section
57-35.3-05, must be paid to the commissioner on or before January fifteenth of the
year after the return is due. Payment must be made by check, draft, or money order,
payable to the commissioner, or as prescribed by the commissioner under
subsection 15 of section 57-01-02.

SECTION 6. A new section to chapter 57-38 of the North Dakota Century
Code is created and enacted as follows:

(1) DESK (3) COMMITTEE Page 2 h_stcomrep_51_015
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Housing incentive fund tax credit.

1

fra

o

[~

jon

o

i~

o=

o

A taxpayer is entitled to a credit as determined under this section against
state income tax liability under section 57-38-30 or 57-38-30.3 for
contributing to the housing incentive fund under section 2 of this Act. The
amount of the credit is equal to the amount contributed to the fund during
the taxable year. The taxpayer may not claim more than twenty percent

of the credit for each separate contribution made in any taxable year.

North Dakota taxable income must be increased by the amount of the

contribution upon which the credit under this section is computed but only
to the extent the contribution reduced federal taxable income.

The contribution amount used to calculate the credit under this section
may not be used to calculate any other state income tax deduction or

credit allowed by law,

If the amount of the credit exceeds the taxpayer's tax liability for the
taxable year, the excess may be carried forward to each of the ten
succeeding taxable years.

The aggregate amount of tax credits allowed o all eligible contributors is
limited to four million_dollars per biennium, This limitation applies to all
contributions for which tax credits are claimed under section 57-35.3-05
and this section.

Within thirty days after the date on which a taxpayer makes a contribution
to the housing incentive fund, the housing finance agency shail file with

each contributing taxpayer, and a copy with the tax commissioner,
completed forms that show as to each contribution to the fund by that
taxpayer the following:

a. JThe name, address, and social security number or federai employer
identification number of the taxpayer that made the contribution.

b. The dollar.amount paid for the contribution by the taxpayer.

¢. The date the payment was received by the fund.

To receive the tax credit provided under this section, a taxpayer shaill
claim the credit on the taxpayer's state income or financial institutions tax

return in the manner prescribed by the tax commissioner and file with the
return a copy of the form issued by the housing finance agency under
subsection 6.

Notwithstanding_the time limitations_contained_in section 57-38-38, this
section does not prohibit the tax commissioner from conducting an
examination of the credit claimed and assessing additional tax due under
section 57-38-38.

A partnership, subchapter S corporation, limited partnership, limited
liability company, or any other passthrough entity making a contribution
o the housing incentive fund under this section is considered to be the
taxpayer for purposes of this section. and the amount of the credit
allowed must be determined at the passthrough entity level. The amount
of the total credit determined at the entity level must be passed through
to the partners, shareholders, or members in proportion to their
respective interests in the passthrough entity.

(1) DESK (3) COMMITTEE Page 3 h_stcomrep_51_015
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SECTION 7. A new subdivision to subsection 7 of section §7-38-30.3 of the
North Dakota Century Code is created and enacted as follows:

Housing incentive fund tax credit under section_6 of this Act.

SECTION 8. EFFECTIVE DATE - EXPIRATION DATE. Sections 1, 2, and 3
of this Act are effective through June 30, 2013, and are thereafter ineffective.
Sections 4, 5, 6, and 7 of this Act are effective for the first two taxable years
beginning after December 31, 2010, and are thereafter ineffective.”

Renumber accordingly

(1) DESK (3) COMMITTEE Page 4 h_stcomrep_51_015
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2011 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES

Senate Appropriations Committee
Harvest Room, State Capitol

SB 2210
January 21, 2011
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution:

A bill requesting an appropriation relating to an affordable housing fund.

Minutes: See attached testimony #1 - 14

Chairman Holmberg called the committee hearing to order on SB 2210.
Brady Larson - Legislative Council; Lori Laschkewitsch - OMB

Senator Wardner, District 37, Dickinson
Testimony attached - # 1. Testified on behalf of SB 2210.

This bill deals with housing and finding gap funding for housing. We have a shortage of
affordable housing in the western part of the state and also throughout the state. | want to
point out that the wrong version of the bill accidently got printed so we're amending it.
We've passed out the bill with the corrections on it. | have the amendments and | will let
others explain the core of the bill.

Rep. Lonnie Winrich, District 18, Grand Forks
Testified on behalf of SB 2210.

| became interested in this issue in the last legislative session when | was contacted by the
director of the Grand Forks Housing Authority and urged to support a similar bill that was
introduced in the House by Rep. Kaiser. | did decide to support that bill and in the process
of looking at those things, | discovered that there is a serious problem out there. We hear a
lot about problems in western ND, but they exist throughout the state. Like Senator
Wardner, | will defer to those people who will go through the details of the bill but | was
pleased to be asked to sign on as a co-sponsor and | would urge you to recommend a do
pass.

Tom Alexander, Project Director, ND Medicaid Infrastructure Grant.
Testimony attached - # 2. Testified in favor of SB 2210.

Reading from testimony —
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Senator Grindberg asked if this bill was introduced in the last legislative session. He was
told yes, that the bill was introduced on the House side in 2009.

Senator Grindberg: Couldn’t the Bank of ND put a revolving loan fund in place?

Tom Alexander said the first draft of the bill was asking for $10M from Bank of ND funds
and it did not pass. It came out of committee as a do not pass.

Senator Grindberg: Do you know why or have an opinion as to why and Tom Alexander
replied that he had no idea. He offered amendments to lower the amount of funds. Those
amendments were not accepted.

Senator Grindberg asked if the Bank of ND opposed the bill and Tom Alexander said
they were neutral.

Tom Alexander handed out list of organizations that support SB 2210.
Testimony attached - #3.

Senator Bowman asked if someone could take him through the process. Do you borrow
the whole amount or is it a guarantee loan for the bank? He was told that there are
several who will be testifying with the answers to his questions.

John Phillips, Vice President, Economic Development North Dakota
Testimony attached - # 4. Testified in favor of SB 2210.

Reading from testimony —

Cal Kiewin, Economic Development of ND
Testimony attached - #5 Testified in favor of SB 2210.

Reading from testimony -

Jessica Thomasson, Director, Lutheran Social Services Housing, Inc.
Testimony attached - # 6. Testified in favor of SB 2210.

Reading from testimony -

Senator Robinson - Is it also a factor that financial institutions are fimiting the number of
years they will amortize the loan. No longer are we looking at 20,25,or 30, but in some
instances 7, 10 and 12 years. That must have a significant impact on the repayment
schedule.

Jessica Thomasson said her experience may have been a little atypical because they
come into the community with a very intentional long term commitment. They intend to run
the projects into the foreseeable future. Most of the debt they have secured is in the 20
year range with rates that reset every 5 years. She's seen examples where a lender says |
want to do this in 10. We'll balloon it and we'll see where we end up.
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Jessica Thomasson: The debt has to be a significant part of all the projects. You're not
going to get most of them done with 90% grant dollars. Having a local lender willing to
partner with you on a project they believe in is one of the more important things in the
evaluation of the community. We've been fortunate to pilot a project with the Bank of ND
where they partnered with a local lender on one of our projects to take half the debt. The
loan was too big for that local lender to do on their own, so the Bank of ND stepped in and
partnered with them to be able to make the project go. There are a lot of creative ways to
do this if you can bring in enough equity to make that project financially feasible.

Senator Bowman state that you come in and assist someone in developing a project and
you put up X amount of dollars. How does the state get reimbursed back? Are they first on
the list, second on the list, or are we last on the list when it comes to pay back to the state
because we're putting part of the risk up for this venture?

Jessica Thomasson said part of the answer to your question is how the Housing Finance
Agency structures that allocation plan and proceeded to explain the mechanics of the
loans.

Senator Wanzek asked if most of these projects are multi unit dwellings or sometimes
single units.

Jessica Thomasson said the pilot program also assists with single family developments
but they just do multi-dwelling, not single dwelling units.

Veronic Zietz — Executive Director, The Arc of Bismarck, Lobbyist #99
Testimony attached - # 7. Testified in favor of SB 2210.

Reading from testimony -
Royce Schultze, Executive Director, Dakota Center for Independent Living, Inc.
Testimony attached - # 8. Testified in favor of SB 2210

Reading from testih"nony -

Neutral testimony —
Mike Anderson, Director, ND Housing Finance Agency
Testimony attached - # 9.

The ND Housing Finance Agency would be the administering agency for the Affordable
Housing Fund. His testimony details the public hearing process as the annual allocation
plan is developed and also describes the responsibilities of the Agency as it would manage
the funds.

Senator Grindberg asked if there were any tax credits available. Has there ever been
discussion on state income tax credit on an investment with a project like this? In a lot of
the real estate deals, there might be a group of investors that front the money. To my
knowledge, there’s no program that allows them to capture an income tax credit on their
investment on equity. Has that ever come up?
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Mike Anderson: During the last legislative session, our agency proposed a state housing
tax credit and it did not pass. Talking afterwards, they felt it was confusing and received
cold reception. Since that session and now, we wonder if we should’'ve tried to resurrect
that and the decision was not to do that.

Doreen Riedman, Executive Officer, North Dakota Association of Builders
Testimony attached - # 10. Testified in favor of SB 2210.

Reading from testimony -

Paul Ronningen, President, North Dakota Conference of Social Welfare,

Chairman, North Dakota Economic Security and Prosperity Alliance

State Coordinator, Children’s Defense Fund

(Paul Ronningen’s testimony was read by Amy Armstrong, Private Coordinator, Center

for Persons with Disabilities, Minot State University)
Testimony attached - # 11. Testified in favor of SB 2210.

Additional testimony received —

Jesse L. Quinn, Executive Director, Missouri Valley Habitat for Humanity
Testimony attached - # 12. Testified in favor of SB 2210.

Michael Carbone, Executive Director, North Dakota Coalition for Homeless People
Testimony attached - # 13. Testified in favor of SB 2210.

Amy Wobbema, Executive Director, New Rockford Area Betterment Corporation
Testimony attached - # 14 . Testified in favor of SB 2210

Chairman Holmberg closed the hearing on SB 2210.
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Explanation or reason for introduction of billlresogtion:

A committee vote on SB 2210 relating to an affordable housing fund.

Minutes: You may make reference to “attached testimony.”

Chairman Holmberg opened the hearing on SB 2210.

Senator Wardner said this bill came directly to appropriations. It had a $4M dollar direct
appropriation for gap funding in housing. We found another way to fund this with an
income tax credit.

Senator Wardner moved the amendments 11.0630.01004
Senator Grindberg seconded
A Roll Call vote was taken. Yea: 13 Nay: 0 Absent: 0

Senator Wardner moved Do Pass as Amended on SB 2210
Senator Warner seconded.

A Roll Call vote was taken. Yea: 13 Nay: 0 Absent: 0
Senator Wardner will carry the bill.
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution:

A DISCUSSION ON AFFORDABLE HOUSING (CONCUR) Several other bills were
discussed on this Job — SCR 4003, SB 2018, HB 12686.

Minutes:

You may make reference 1o “attached testimony.”

Chairman Holmberg opened the discussion on SB 2210 regarding Affordable Housing. Lori
Laschkewitsch, OMB and Becky J. Keller, Legislative council were also present.

Chairman Holmberg asked what the wishes are on SB 2210.

Senator Wardner: | will check with Mike Anderson in Housing Authority, but we are leaning
towards concurring.

The discussion was closed on SB 2210.
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Title. . Senator Wardner _
' February 15, 2011

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO SENATE BILL NO. 2210
Page 1, line 1, replace the second "and" with a comma |
Page 1, line 2, after "54-60.1-01" insert , and a new subsection to section 57-35.3-05"
Page 1, line 2. remove “an"
Page 1, line 3, replace "affordable” with "a"
Page 1, line 3, after "housing" insert "incentive"

Page 1, line 3, after "fund” insert "and a financial institutions tax credit for investments in the
fund"

Page 1, line 3, replace "an appropriation” with "a continuing appropriation"
Page 1, line 7, replace "Affordable housing” with "Housing incentive"

Page 1, line 7, replace "Appropriation” with "Continuing appropriation”

Page 1, line 8, remove "affordable”

Page 1, line 8, after "housing" insert "incentive”
Page 1, line 8, after "special" insert "revolving"

Page 1, line 8, replace "in the state freasury.” with "at the Bank of North Dakota. Loans may be
made from the fund as directed by the housing finance agency and a continuing

appropriation from the fund is provided for that purpose. Loans from the fund may be
made in accordance with this section but a loan may not exceed two hundred thousand

dollars for a_gualifying housing project in this state. Loans may not bear interest, but
the Bank of North Dakota may retain an administrative fee not exceeding one-half of

one percent.
2;“

Page 1, line 10, replace "seventy-five" with "twenty-five"
Page 1, remove line 11

Page 1, line 12, replace "the area median income" with "assist developing communities with a
population of not more than ten thousand individuals to address an unmet housing

need or alleviate a housing shortage"

Page 1, remove lines 14 and 15

Page 1, line 16, remove "needs."
Page 1, line 17, replace “2." with "3."
Page 1, line 17, replace "rules” with "quidelines"

Page 1, line 17, remove "affordable”

Page 1, line 18, remove "through loans, forgivable loans, grants. subsidies, quarantees, and"

Page No. 1 11.0630.01004



Page 1, line 19, remove "credit enhancements”
- Page 1, line 20, replace "an affordable” with "a"
Page 1, line 20, remove "or 8"
Page 1, line 21, replace "single-family residence” with “housing project”
Page 1, line 22, after the underscored semicolon insert "and”
Page 1, line 23, replace "Single-family downpayment or gap” with "Gap financing”

Page 2, line 1, remove "|f there is a profit from a sale, either a proportion or"

Page 2, remove lines 2 through 5

Page 2, line 6, replace "3." with "4."

Page 2, line 8, replace "affordable” with "multifamily”
Page 2, line 10, replace "4." with "5."

Page 2, line 10, remove "within the biennium the assistance was paid”

Page 2, line 11, remove "for the biennium in which it was"

Page 2, remove lines 12 and 13 '

Page 2, line 14, replace "earnings” with “on a continuing basis for the purposes of this section”
Page 2, line 18, replace "The" with "Upon request, the"

Page 2, line 19, after "the" insert "housing incentive"

Page 2, line 22, remove "affordable”

Page 2, line 22, after the second " housing" insert “incentive”

Page 2, replace lines 24 through 28 with:

"SECTION 4. A new subsection to section 57-35.3-05 of the North Dakota
Century Code is created and enacted as follows:

There is allowed a credit against the tax imposed by sections 57-35.3-01
through 57-35.3-12 in an amount equal to fifty percent of the agdregate
amount of investments made by the taxpayer during the taxable year in the
housing incentive fund. Any unused credit may be carried forward for up 1o
five taxable years. The total amount of credits allowable under this
subsection is four million dollars."

Renumber accordingly

Page No. 2 11.0630.01004
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REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE

SB 2210: Appropriations Committee (Sen. Holmberg, Chairman} recommends
AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends DO PASS
(13 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). SB 2210 was placed on the
Sixth order on the calendar.

Page 1, line 1, replace the second "and" with a comma

Page 1, line 2, after "54-60.1-01" insert", and a new subsection to section 57-35.3-05"

Page 1, line 2, remove "an"

Page 1, line 3, replace "affordable" with "a"

Page 1, line 3, after "housing" insert "incentive”

Page 1, line 3, after "fund” insert "and a financial institutions tax credit for investments in the
fund"

Page 1, line 3, reptace "an appropriation” with "a continuing appropriation”

Page 1, line 7, replace "Affordable housing” with "Housing incentive"

Page 1, line 7, replace "Appropriation” with "Continuing appropriation"

Page 1, line 8, remove "affordable”
Page 1, line 8, after "housing" insert "incentive”
Page 1, line 8, after "special” insert "revolving”

Page 1, line 8, replace "in the state treasury.” with "at the Bank of North Dakota. Loans may
be made from the fund as directed by the housing finance agency and a continuing
appropriation from the fund is provided for that purpose. Loans from the fund may be
made in accordance with this section but a loan may not exceed two hundred
thousand dollars for a qualifying housing project in this state. Loans may not bear
interest._but the Bank of North_Dakota may retain an administrative fee not exceeding
one-half of one percent.

;u

Page 1, line 10, replace "seventy-five" with "twenty-five"

Page 1, remove line 11

Page 1, line 12, replace "the area median income" with “assist developing communities with
a population of not more than ten thousand individuals to address an unmet housing
need or alleviate a housing shortage"

Page 1, remove lines 14 and 15

Page 1, line 16, remove "needs."

Page 1, line 17, replace "2." with "3."

Page 1, line 17, replace "rules" with "guidelines"
Page 1, line 17, remove "affordable”

Page 1, line 18, remove "through ioans, forgivable loans, grants, subsidies guarantees, and”

{1} DESK (3) COMMITTEE Page 1 s_stcomrep_34_007
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Page 1, line 19, remove "credit enhancements”
Page 1, line 20, replace "an affordable” with "a"
Page 1, line 20, remove "or a"

Page 1, line 21, replace "single-family residence" with "housing project’

Page 1, line 22, after the underscored semicolon insert "and"

Page 1, line 23, replace "Sinale-family downpayment or gap" with "Gap financing”
Page 2, line 1, remove "|f there is a profit from a sale, either a proportion or"
Page 2, remove lines 2 through 5

Page 2, line 8, replace "3." with "4."

Page 2, line 8, replace "affordable” with "multifamily”

Page 2, line 10, replace "4." with "5."

Page 2, line 10, remove "within the biennium the assistance was paid”

Page 2, line 11, remove "for the biennjum in which it was"
Page 2, remove lines 12 and 13

Page 2, line 14, repiace "earnings" with "on a continuing basis for the purposes of this
section”

Page 2, line 18, replace "The" with "Upon request, the"

Page 2, line 19, after "the" insert "housing incentive”

Page 2, line 22, remove "affordable”
Page 2, line 22, after the second "housing" insert “incentive”
Page 2, replace lines 24 through 28 with:

"SECTION 4. A new subsection to section 57-35.3-05 of the North Dakota
Century Code is created and enacted as follows:

There is allowed a credit against the tax imposed by sections 57-35.3-01
through 57-35.3-12 in an amount equal to fifty percent of the aggregate
amount of investments made by the taxpayer during the taxable year in the
housing incentive fund. Any unused credit may be carried forward for up to
five taxable years. The total amount of credits allowable under this
subsection is four million dollars ”

Renumber accordingly

(1) DESK (3) COMMITTEE Page 2 s_stcomrep_34_007



2011 TESTIMONY

SB 2210



i 550000 7&:0?4'} o&fi‘f—d—@ ?OM SR N

S ..In.vesTMe.ﬂT
o L Fund yoM

e e e IH e e e N
e e PT‘O/ CCT .
y E . . _A.SS.'_q__mﬁans 1.0 M Con.s'rruc.'f"on CO\ST
— _ . 800 OOD A/O/D'f'aSrq ] o

75% Lean Zo Yalue = 500 000

. el Gap=irse 000

FH!'la nCing
,’técflo 400 ... 5ar:](10au @‘?’ﬁ.fe) Ben
] 50 400 .. (Ezu.'f:!) - SPOAS@(HQ(, AL.«._
fl,@(} 000  Gap Funding ,,,:7‘..”.‘% Frnd
Aledlooo  Tota

e

______________________________ I?cﬂhfv___ 12 wnids X 700Fr/z'o4?’k = /0 3'00
ORI | I B&bw\wce e S S
00,000 Mote t7ep"
%50 sp MTe b 500

.ﬁ L 50,000 Fpud, @eher e vritocnt) *Js‘aa




. Testimony

Senate Bill 2210 - Housing Incentive Fund
House Finance & Taxation
Representative Belter, Chairman
March 15, 2011

Chairman Belter, members of the House Finance & Taxation Committee, |
am Tom Alexander, Project Director for the ND Medicaid Infrastructure Grant, a
project of the North Dakota Center for Persons with Disabilities at Minot State
University. | am providing testimony today in support of SB 2210 as Chair of the
Housing Alliance of North Dakota (HAND) board of directors.

The Housing Alliance of ND is a statewide network (please see a list of
current HAND members) established to identify and address the diverse unmet

. housing needs of North Dakotans. Some general principles which HAND operates

from include the following:

o ‘Works to promote the fact that housing is a basic human need;
o Works to make housing a top priority for all North Dakotans;

o Fducate others to see that without housing all other activities, including
work, are unattainable;

e Works to achieve the development and adoption of a uniform, statewide
housing policy; and

o Works to encompass a full range of unmet housing needs for all
populations, in all areas of the state.

(See HAND brochure for more information.)

A safe and decent place to live is the cornerstone of a high quality of life.
North Dakota is a great place to live, but rehabilitation and replacement of aging
housing stock will be key to maintaining livability in many North Dakota

communities. New and refurbished housing adds to the value of the

neighborhood and community and further enhances the quality of life for

l|Fapge
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. everyone. Housing is an investment that yields returns and creates revenue at all
levels—income taxes from construction jobs; sales taxes on materials; property
taxes; and ongoing participation in the local economy by the new residents and
those who are able to afford to continue living in a community. Investment in
housing proVides substantial financial benefits for a community as well as the
basic benefit of having new and available housing options for families.

SB 2210 would establish a Housing Incentive Fund. The housing incentive
fund is created as a special revolving fund at the Bank of North Dakota. Assistance
may be disbursed from the fund as directed by the Housing Finance Agency and a
continuing appropriation from the fund is provided for that purpose. After a
public heafing the Housing Finance Agency shall create an annual allocation plan
for the distribution of the fund. At least twenty-five percent of the fund must be

. used to assist developing communities with a population of not more than ten
thousand individuals to address an unmet housing need or alleviate a housing
shortage. At least fifty percent of the fund must be used to benefit households
with incomes at not more than fifty percent of the area median income. The

agency may collect a reasonable administrative fee from the fund.

The agency shall adopt guidelines for the fund so as to address unmet

housing needs in this state. Assistance from the fund may be used solely for:

a. New construction, rehabilitation, or acquisition of a multifamily
housing project;

b. Gap assistance, matching funds, and accessibility improvements;
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c. Assistance that does not exceed the amount necessary to qualify for
a loan using underwriting standards acceptable for secondary market
financing or to make the project feasible; and

d. Rental assistance, emergency assistance, or targeted supportive
services designated to prevent homelessness.

Eligible recipients include units of local, state, and tribal government; local

and tribal housing authorities; community action agencies; regional planning

councils; and nonprofit organizations and for-profit developers of multifamily

housing. Individuals may not receive direct assistance from the fund.

With the exception of subdivision (d) of subsection 3 of this section,

assistance is subject to repayment or recapture pursuant to the guidelines

adopted by the agency. Any assistance that is repaid or recaptured must be

deposited in the fund and is appropriated on a continuing basis for the purposes

of this section.

Housing incentive fund tax credit.

1

A credit against state tax liability as determined under sections 57-35.3-01
through 57-35.3-12, 57-38-30, or 57-38-30.3 is allowed for investments in
the housing incentive fund. The amount of the credit is equal to the
amount invested in the fund during the taxable year. Not more than twenty
percent of the credit may be claimed by the taxpayer in a taxable year. The
amount of credit that can be claimed in any taxable year which exceeds a
taxpayer's tax liability for the taxable year may be carried forward after the

taxable year in which the investment was made.

3|Page
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A partnership, subchapter (S) corporation, limited partnership, limited

fro

liability company, or any other pass-through entity entitled to the credit
under this section must be considered to be the taxpayer for purposes of
this section, and the amount of the credit allowed must be determined at
the pass-through entity level. The amount of the total credit determined at
the entity level must be passed through to the partners, sharehaolders, or

members in proportion to their respective interests in the pass-through

entity.

3. A taxpayer may not be delinquent in payment of any state and local tax
liability to be eligible for a tax benefit under this section.

4. The aggregate amount of tax credits allowed under this section to all

eligible investors is limited to four million dollars.

Within thirty days after the date on which an investment in the housing

|on

incentive fund is made, the Bank of North Dakota shall file with the tax
commissioner and the director and provide to the investor completed
forms prescribed by the tax commissioner which show as to each
investment in the fund the foliowing:
a. The name, address, and social security number or federal employer
identification number of the taxpayer who made the investment.
b. The dollar amount paid for the investment by the taxpayer.
c. The date on which full consideration was received by the fund for the
investment.
Upon request, the state housing finance agency shall report to the

industrial commission on the activities of the housing incentive fund.

4| Fage



"Multifamily housing facility" means any facility containing four or more
residential dwelling units; provided, that at least twenty percent of the units in
each facility must be held for occupancy by persons or families of low and
moderate income for such period of time as the industrial commission may
determine and may include such related public or private facilities intended for
commercial, cultural, recreational, community, or other civic purpose as the

commission may approve.

Why do we need ND state funds for housing issues? Aren’t there enough

Federal programs to fund all of ND's needs? While it may appear that there are

-more than enough Federal funds available, many of these funds have restrictions
on their use that makes them unavailable or limits the availability; some are one-
time only funds; and the amount available to ND is generally the smallest portion
{due to ND’s small population). The need in energy-impacted areas of ND is
pushing the ability of the state to respond: all Federal funds are in use and the tax
credits are oversubscribed (of 14 applications, only 5 could be funded). Many
Federat funds have matching requirements and ND State funds would extend the
use of Federal dollars by being used as match.

Isn’t this a hodge podge of unrelated items? The bill is crafted to allow the

greatest flexibility in addressing the housing needs in ND and provides a list of
tools to address needs as they change. Focusing on a single issue today could
outdate the fund tomorrow.

What are the needs in ND? They range from workforce housing in the

" energy impacted areas of the west to the special needs populations across the
state, and include the increasing homeless population as well as the increasing

senior population.

S|ltage
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Why doesn’t the bill focus on the energy impacted areas of western ND?

All forms of housing are related: as demand increases, rents and housing prices
rise, forcing lower income families and the elderly to seek other housing, which
may not be available or suitable. Flexibility in the bill is key — housing needs
change and this bill can accommodate those changes. The Housing Finance
Agency has a great track record in developing allocation plans for distribution of
tax credits that are responsive to the changing needs of the state. This bill would
use this expertise to make sure the Housing Incentive Fund dollars are similarly

targeted.

Why does the Fund target 50% to families with incomes less than 50% of

Median Family Income (MF1}? The rising number of high-paying jobs, especially in

western ND, is putting pressure on the number of units available for low income
individuals, families and the elderly. These units are harder to build and maintain
due to the lower rent structure and special building needs. By specifying a portion
of the funds to be available for households with incomes not more than 50% of

MFI, assistance will be available for this population.

Why do private and non-profit developers need public funds? Making
public funds available encourages private and non-profit developers to develop
housing that carries more risk: lower rents, elevators, accessibility features, and

unusual configurations such as group homes.

Why do communities with populations of 10,000 or less need a set-aside?

Communities with higher populations attract goods and services with the net
result of decreasing cost. Setting aside a portion of the funds for smaller
communities should encourage these communities to become more viable.

6lPage
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Affordable housing should be a priority in public policy. Affordable housing
options for all residents of our communities is needed so that no one has to
choose between basic necessities like food or medication and housing. The
elderly, people with disabilities, and disadvantaged are part of all communities
and require certain services including appropriate housing choices. Housing policy
should center on providing the opportunity for all to have access to safe, decent
and affordable housing. Currently, ND does not have a public policy statement on
housing (please see HAND Public Policy Platform).

Rural areas of the staté face unique challenges in developing housing.
Finding suitable housing in many rural North Dakota communities is a very
difficult task. In some areas, it has been a generation since new homes or
apartments were built. In that time, both the economy and the needs of the
people have changed. In many rural communities, the cost to develop new
housing or to refurbish existing housing often exceeds the final valuation of the
home upon completion. Because of this valuation gap, there are few developers
willing to speculate on new housing in rural communities without assistance. To
ensure the affordability of housing, financial and technical support from
government and non-profit organizations is needed in rural areas.

That concludes my testimony. On behalf of the HAND we encourage you to
recommend a do pass on SB 2210. 1 would be happy to answer any questions that

you have at this time.



SB 2210 - Housing Incentive Fund
Organizational Support

AARP of ND

Abused Adult Resource Center

Beyond Shelter, Inc.

Centre, Inc.

Children's Defense Fund

Community Action Partnership - Dickinson/Williston

Community Action Partnership-Minot

Community Action Program Reg. VIl - Bismarck

Community Action Region VI - Jamestown

Continental Homes - Grand Forks

Dakota Center for Independent Living

Dakota Prairie Community Action - Devils Lake

Eastern Dakota Housing Aliiance

Economic Development of North Dakota

Fargo Housing and Redevelopment Authority

Fargo-Moorhead Coalition for Homeless Persons

Grand Forks Homes

Grand Forks Housing Authority

Homestead Place - Grand Forks

interagency Program for Assistive Technology’'s Consumer Advisory Committee

Lutheran Social Services of North Dakota

Minot Area Homeless Coalition

Minot Housing Authority

Missouri Valley Habitat for Humanity

ND Council on Abused Women's Services

ND Homeless Coalition

ND Protection & Advocacy Project

North Dakota Association of Builders

North Dakota Association of Community Providers

North Dakota Association of Persons in Supported Employment

North Dakota Center for Persons with Disabilities

North Dakota Conference of Social Welfare

North Dakota Disabilities Advocacy Consortium

North Dakota Economic Security & Prosperity Alliance

North Dakota League of Cities

North Dakota Women's Network

Prairie Harvest Mental Health - Grand Forks

Red River Valley Community Action - Grand Forks

Region V Community Development Corporation, Fargo

Rehab Services, Inc. - Minot

Updated: 3-11-11
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. Southeastern North Dakota Community Action Agency - Fargo
Youthworks

Updated: 3-11-11
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Become .. member of HAND:
Who can belong?

Any individual or organization that has a
concern with housing issues in the state -
whether those issues are homelessness,
affordability/limited income, special
needs/accessibility, availability, etc.

. \Housing Allnce

_"North Dakota

Benefits of joining HAND
* Increase awareness of housing
opportunities for North Dakota citizens;

s Ensure every North Dakotan has access
to decent, safe, affordable, accessible
place to live;

e Positively impact Community Develop-
ment and housing for North Dakota citi-
zens;

¢ Build stronger and longer term housing
relationships;

e Assist in the development of statewide
housing policy; and

e Strengthen the link between housing
and economic stability.

Ensuring every North
Dakotan has access to a
decent, sdfe, affordable,
accessible place to live.

Tom Alexander
Email: tom.alexander@minotstateu.edu
Phone: 1.800.233.1737

Alliance

N m'lhg Dakola

Housin

N

Or visit the HAND website at:
www.housingallianceofnd.or:

o Ava in Alternative Formats
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HOUSE FINANCE & TAXATION COMMITTEE
TESTIMONY IN SUPPORT OF SB 2010: “Housing Incentive Fund”
Tuesday, March 15, 2011, 9:00 AM — Fort Totten Room

As a rural ND community developer I would like to address the housing needs

communities are experiencing throughout the state.

I realize the housing needs in the oil impact area have been studied and are well defined
but the needs are boarder. I think you will all recognize the availability of affordable
housing is a fundamental element that provides North Dakota Communities the ability
to sustain their community as well as stimulate economic development. With the
present economic conditions in the state, a number of “RURAL” communities have
been able to create economic activity thus creating jobs. But what are the limitations to
further development and opportunities? Why do the rural communities so often get
“passed over” by businesses relocating to the state or expanding? The primary
question is “WHERE WILL WE LIVE*? Without quality “AFFORDABLE”
housing our communities have limited sustainability options, no growth
opportunity, the rural areas continue to lose population, the schools close and the

communities viability continues to expire.

Throughout the state of North Dakota the existing housing inventory is aging and there
is very limited new housing being constructed. In many of our meetings with economic

developers, city councils and housing boards we continue to ask what are the problems

to achieve housing development?

The problems that typically occur in the rural North Dakota communities are:

v" Developers typically perceive there is greater risk building in a smaller
community and do not enter those markets
v' Size of projects limit the economic returns

v" Building in rural communities can sometimes be more costly
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. o Limited availability to materials and labor
v Financing housing projects in rural communities typically present unique
challenges
o Comparable sales are limited or non-existent which creates a significant
appraisal gap
o Sécondary Markets will not buy the loans
o Loan to value ratio is often 30-40 percent which limits the lenders
participation
v’ State and Federal programs that might be able to assist are ofien complex and

developers/lenders will shy away from them.

It is critical we address this housing need. In many communities rental units are non-
existent or if they are available they are very small income based units, typically dated

and in need of renovation. Housing is critical to the future growth of the state.

. This past year the North Dakota Housing Finance Agency established a pilot program to
provide incentives intended for private sector investment in housing development
within difficult to develop areas in the state. The program provided for housing project
financing incentives. The consensus of developers and communities was it worked and
provided opportunities for project development in rural communities that otherwise
would not have been accomplished. This bill would provide the NDHFA funding to

continue that model program.

Rural communities would encourage your support of SB 2010 that will provide

“Dollars” for the “Housing Incentive Fund”.

John Phillips, Vice President
Economic Development North Dakota
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Testimony on Senate Bill 2210

Housing Finance & Taxation Committee
March 15, 2011

Doreen Riedman, Executive Officer
North Dakota Association of Builders

'

Chairman Belter and members of the House Finance &
Taxation Committee, the North Dakota Association of Builders
(NDAB) supports Senate Bill 2210, relating to a Housing Incentive

Fund for our state.

The NDAB represents nearly. 2,000 members stétewide'with
employees numbering 46,589, We areaffiliated with six local builders

associations in Bismarck-Mandan, Dickinson, Farge-Mecorhead, Grand

Forks, Minot, and Willis'ton; and are all part of a larger federation, the

National Association of Home Builders (NAHB) which has over 160,000

members.

We are proud members of the Housing Alliance of North
Dakota .and believe this Housmg Incentive Fund is a smart step in
the right direction. It will assist with housmg for low-income
farmhes, for housmg in rural areas, providing gap financing for
projects, and perhaps could be the last piece of the puzzle that will
help ensure that housing projects go forward.

In addition, any profits will go back into the fund to help it
working for future housing needs. Having the North Dakota
Housing Finance Agency as the oversight agency makes this effort
even stronger and more sensible.

We respectfully ask this committee to Support Senate Bill

2210 to provide for a Housing Incentive Fund in our state.

1720 Burnt Boat Drive, Suite 207 * Bismarck, ND 58502-080] © 2014222-240] ® Fux: 701/222-3009 ¢

www.ndbuild.com



Economic DeveLOPMENT AsSOCIATION OF NORTH DAKOTA -...

ED=

. =TS PO BOX 2639 + BISMARCK, NORTH DAKOTA 58502

Testimony of
Economic Development Association of North Dakota
SB 2210
March 15, 2011

Chairman Belter and members of the commiittee, my name is Cal Klewin. [ am
representing the Economic Development Association of North Dakota (EDND).

EDND is the voice of the state’s economic development community and provides
networking for its 80 members, which include development organizations, communities,
businesses and state agencies. Our mission is to increase economic opportunities for
residents of the state by supporting primary sector growth, professionalism among
economic development practitioners and cooperation among development organizations.

. EDND recognizes that the availability of housing, particularly affordable housing, is a
fundamental element that provides North Dakota communities the ability to foster
economic development. EDND supports the efforts of North Dakota communities and
regions to advance legislation that will promote the development of affordabie housing in
areas where the lack of affordable housing is limiting primary sector growth.

EDND supports SB 2210.
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. McHenry County
Jobs Development Authority

PO Box 408 * Velva ND 58790 * 701-626-2551*www.mchenrycountynd.com

Testimony of Maria Effertz Hanson
McHenry County Jobs Development Authority
5B 2210
March 15, 2011

Chairman Belter and members of the committee my name is Maria Effertz Hanson and | am here today
supporting incentives that aid in housing development, in particular in rural areas of the state.

Housing development in rural North Dakota is at a critical need. This is especially true in the
communities on or near the oil impacted areas, including McHenry County. We receive 3-4 phone calls
a day looking for housing in most of my communities. We are missing an opportunity to find homes for

. the new families that are moving to our area, who will place students in our schools, provide the much
needed labor and grow our region.

Although developers are busy in some parts of the state, stepping into the rural parts of our state is
close to impossible for developers because of the gap in financing that is so large. The demand is there,
but without assistance, the cost of building affordable housing is beyond the rate of return. In most of
the communities in the county, the newest home was built 30+ years ago, which makes comparables
another factor when they are assessed for home loans.

McHenry County is receiving the impact, yet our benefits at this time in terms of direct oil funds are

non-existent. If we can build homes, add families to our county and increase our property values
through new housing construction, we will have leng-term benefits.

Thank you and | would be happy to answer any questions via phone or email,
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Chairman Belter and Members of the House Finance & Tax Committee:

I am Amy Wobbema, Executive Director from the New Rockford Area Betterment Corporation
in New Rockford. I am testifying in support of the Housing Incentive Fund bill, SB 2210. As a
rural economic developer, 1 see firsthand the effects that lack of adequate housing has on
economic development activities across the state.

Approximately 20 of my colleagues in economic/community development have convened
several discussions in 2010 to identify the most pressing issues that affect a rural community’s
ability to attract business and workforce. Housing was one of four target areas we identified as
statewide concerns. -

A large number of North Dakota’s communities have housing infrastructure that is aging, and
therefore expensive to rehabilitate and/or replace. Since very few new housing units have been
built in the last 20 years, appraisal values of newly constructed homes and multi-family
properties are often lower than development costs. This leaves little room for public housing
entities to cash flow rural projects, much less for developers to make a profit.

“The Housing Incentive bill will provide much needed assistance to communities in their efforts

to provide affordable housing for the state’s workforce.

I would like to provide one example of how SB 2210 can help improve housing conditions
across the state:

The Eddy County Housing Authority and New Rockford Area Betterment Corporation partnered
in 2009 to develop four multi-family rental units in New Rockford. The Rural Housing
Investment Incentive Program, a pilot program administered by the North Dakota Housing
Finance Agency which could be funded through the Housing Incentive fund, provided $50,000
to our project. Funds from this program were combined with a HOME program allocation
through the Eastern Dakota Housing Alliance and essential function bonds purchased by a local
bank. The Eddy County Housing Authority and NRABC both contributed local equity funds to
the project. In addition, the county and city will forego taxes on the properties. As a result,
construction has begun on the first multi-family rental properties built in New Rockford since
1980. Demand for the units has far exceeded expectations, as our waiting list has enough names
on it to fill the units at least five times. Occupancy is not expected until July of this year.

Just for some perspective, I offer to you the bottom line on the New Rockford Rental Project.
The two-bedroom units will be rented at $475 per month. The tenant will pay for heat and
electricity, estimated at $140 per month, based on HUD utility cost calculations. Therefore, the
total housing cost is $615. This is at the top of the affordability level for a household who works
for average wages in New Rockford. The current average wage in Eddy County i1s $11.78 per
hour, or $24,600 per year. This is considered very low income (50% of median) at the state level.



The residents who work for $11.78 or less are servers in our restaurants, clerks at our grocery
stores, and cooks and aides at our schools. We need these people in our communities to keep our
economic engines running. Also, many senior citizens on social security also fall into this
category. We also need them to stay in our small towns to support our local businesses, utilize
local services, and pay sales tax to run city government. Therefore, 1 ask that the legislature
remember these good citizens in your decision making and strongly consider ways to provide
housing for them.

Private developers will not build affordable housing in New Rockford or most other small towns
in North Dakota simply because it would be difficult, if not impossible, to cash flow at current
financing terms and property tax rates. In fact, a private developer would need to charge at least
$900 per month to make the New Rockford Rental Project break even. A resident would need to
have income of at least $37,600 annually to afford the rent. Nearly half of Eddy County’s
residents are in households with incomes of less than that.

I strongly encourage you to support SB 2210, as relocation starts with a home. If we want 10
attract new people to our state, provide workforce for our growing economy, increase the
enrollment at our public schools, and ultimately grow and sustain our communities, we need to
offer housing that meets the needs of families across all income levels. The Housing Incentive
Fund can and will be the catalyst for the construction of that housing.

Sincefel Y,

UA(\MU Q@ﬁmwu

Amy Wobbema, Executive Director
New Rockford Area Betterment Corporation
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Testimony of Support Senate Bill 2210
House Finance & Tax Committee
March 15, 2011

Good morning Chairmen Belter and members of the Finance & Tax Committee. My name is Veronica
Zietz (#99); | am the Executive Director at The Arc of Bismarck and I'm here today representing both
The Arc of Bismarck and The Arc of Cass County. The Arc is an organization that provides education
and advocacy to people with disabilities to foster empowerment and full inclusion in the community.

The Arc supports Senate Bill 2210 which establishes an affordable housing fund within the state
treasury. This fund would provide opportunities for low to moderate income families and individuals in
North Dakotan to obtain affordable housing. This will aid individuals, especially those with disabilities
in the areas of gap assistance and accessibility improvements. This is necessary because people with
disabilities often have difficulty finding affordable housing that meets their individual needs. For
example, in 2008, the annual income of a single individual receiving 551 payments was 58,016, that is
equal to about 18 percent of the national median income for a one-person household and almost 30
percent below the 2008 federal poverty level of $10,400. This gap between income and housing
expense leads to many problems for people with disabilities; for instance, it leaves many people unable
.J jive independently or leaves them living in substandard environments all of which lead to poor
uality of life, increased health issues and dependency on government programs.

The Supreme Court Olmstead decision states that people with disabilities need to be in the least
restrictive setting possible, this means that people need to be living independently in the community;
one barrier to this federal mandate is a lack of affordable housing in North Dakota. A recent economic
boom has pushed many locals including those with disabilities out of their homes, in order to
accormmodate transient workers with greater incomes. While the laws of supply and demand are
obviously at work here, North Dakota residents need to have access to safe and affordable housing. |
believe this bill could help remedy the problem of housing shortages and rising housing costs.

This bill will not only help people with disabilities obtain housing, but may also provide benefits to
communities. First, this bill will provide local businesses and agencies the opportunity to develop
affordable housing, which could boost job opportunities and enhance economic growth by employing
local developers and contractors to build and refurbish housing. Second, this bill will also aid
communities in dealing with problems such as homelessness and blight that can be seen in many of
North Dakota’s towns that have affordable housing shortages.

| believe Senate Bill 2210 is an opportunity for all North Dakotans, especially people with disabilities.
This bill holds many benefits for communities in our state by addressing the issue of affordable
housing. | urge the committee to support Senate Bill 2210. Thank you for your time and consideration.
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SB 2210 March 15, 2011
North Dakota Housing Finance Agency

Division of the State Industrial Commission

Testimony by Michael Anderson, Executive Director

House Finance and Taxation Committee

Chairman Beiter and members of the House Finance and Taxation Committee:

My name is Mike Anderson, executive director for the North Dakota Housing Finance Agency
(Agency). SB 2210 names NDHFA as the administering agency for the Housing Incentive Fund
(Fund). Therefore, | am here today to offer our perspective on the proposed Fund, as well as
answer any questions.

The general goals and objectives of the Fund are consistent with our mission and statutory
authority set forth in NDCC 54-17. That is to provide housing finance programs for persons and
families of low- or moderate-income or to otherwise assist a developing community address an
‘'unmet housing need or alleviate a housing shortage.

} Further, | can say with confidence that the Agency has the capacity to administer the Fund and
carry out the activities contemplated in the bill with minimal cost and without the need of
additional FTE authority at this time. We currently have internal program delivery systems in
place that are compatible with the proposed processes of this legislation - establishing an
annual allocation plan, review and scoring of project proposals, and awarding and providing
follow up monitoring on successful projects.

We have used these systems for annually allocating federal Low Income Housing Tax Credits,
awarding Rural Housing Investment Incentive Pilot Program funds last year, as well as awarding
Neighborhood Stabilization Program funds that were allocated to the Agency.

The bill requires the Fund proceeds be awarded through an annual allocation plan that is
developed and scrutinized through a public hearing process. This process gives stakeholders,
policy makers, and the general public the opportunity to provide input on how and where the
Funds will be allocated. As we do with the aforementioned proegrams, we anticipate this process
would include a review of a draft plan by our Advisory Board both before and after public
hearings. The Advisory Board would then make a recommendation to the Industrial Commission
for its final adoption.

In addition to the set aside requirements defined in the bill, an allocation plan for the Fund
should further define the priorities for its use. These could be defined geographically, by housing
type and tenure, by type of assistance, by population segments, or a combination of some or all
of the above. The plan should also provide for a scoring mechanism for achieving these
priorities and uitimately application selections.

2674 Vermont Svenue © PO Box 1535 « Bismarck, North Dakota 58502-1538 www.rdhia.org
Ph: 701/328-8080 « Fax: 701/328-BD30 « Toll Free: 800/292-8621 < 800/366-6888 (TTY) tnfo@ndhfa.ory
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We believe an allocation strategy could limit to projects in underserved areas and difficult to
develop areas. Underserved could be rural areas or urban areas where there is not enough
housing for low and very low income households. Difficult to develop would be anywhere where
there is an appraisal gap. In any event, these would be areas where projects could not get done
without the additional assistance. It is our philosophy that the amount of assistance should be
limited to only what is necessary to make a project economically feasible for its targeted market.
In other words, this Fund should be considered the last piece of the puzzle to make the project
work.

An allocation plan should also include provisions for recapture or repayment whenever possible
yet feasible. These provisions could be enforced utilizing soft debt with deferred payment or
land use restriction agreements. We currently us both mechanisms for some of our programs.

The various strategies | mentioned have been emplioyed by the Agency in its history of
distributing public funds entrusted to it to administer. This system has transparency which leads
to accountability, it maximizes leveraging of public funds, it spreads risk, and probably most
importantly it incentivizes private investment.

We anticipate the Fund will be used to fill an appraisal gap, an affordability gap, or a
combination of both. An appraisal gap will require additional equity by the developer in order to
meet the lender requirements of traditional debt financing. An affordability gap will require the
developer to secure additional equity in order to reduce debt service such that the project
remains economically feasible while achieving its targeted lower rent stream.

Inciuded with to my testimony are several spread sheets depicting economic scenarios for muiti-
family new construction models. They break down project construction costs, financing
scenarios, and provide an abbreviated pro forma on operations cost. | believe they speak for
themselves for the need for additional soft debt or equity.

A good example of how we envision an allocation plan for this Fund would be to mimic a pilot
project our Agency conducted last year. The pilot goal was to demonstrate that you can
incentivize private investment into housing in difficult to develop areas. The pilot, called the
Rural Housing Investment Incentive Pilot Program (Pilot), utilized $400,000 of the Agency's
reserves to match local investment in housing projects. In response to our RFP we received
thirteen applications requesting approximately $1 miliion of matching funds. Seven were
approved once it was determined in each case 1) a gap did exist; 2) the project wouid be
feasible once the gap was fill, and 3) the project would not have been completed without the
additional funding from the Agency. The Pilot limited matching funds to no more than 50% of the
gap or 10% of project costs, whichever was less.

We believe the pilot proved its stated purpose and further demonstrated significant leveraging
power. The $400,000 of public funds generated $6.8 million in housing related economic activity
— approximately a 17 to 1 ratio. | reported the Pilot results to the Legislative Council Budget
Section last December. That report concluded with the recommendation that the program
.should be replicated and expanded, however, a sustainable expansion of the program would
require additional funding from outside of the Agency. A copy of that report was also handed out
with my testimony.



SB 2210 has morphed from that introduced in the Senate from seeking an appropriation of
general funds to authorizing a tax credit against the financial institutions tax. That is the version
that passed the Senate by unanimous decision.

At the beginning of this hearing you were presented additional amendments to change the tax
credit structure. These amendments change the tax credit from 50% of the investment that is
claimed all at once with carryover provisions to a 100% tax credit that is claimed proportionately
over five years. The changes also including expanding the tax credit to anyone or entity with a
state income tax liability rather than limiting it to financial institutions only. These changes are
being put forth for good reason.

For the Housing Incentive Fund to be successful its provisions need to be attractive on both
sides of the equation. It needs to entice contributions into the Fund. And the terms of its
utilization must work and make a difference in order to spur housing deveiopment. | believe the
most current proposal accomplishes both more than any other version of the bill.

Following the bill passing the Senate, the group behind the bill reached out to Banking industry
as to the viability of the proposed financial institutional tax credit and received lukewarm
response. If contributions to the Fund were considered an investment, the return of the
investment (10 years or longer), as well as return on the investment (zero interest loans) was
not attractive enough to entice participation.

However, under the current scenario a contribution to the Fund by a tax payer would be offset
by a corresponding amount of tax credits over a period of years and thus make the tax payer
whole. | see the tax payer rationalizing he/she would be making a payment to the tax
department to satisfy his/her tax liability or to the Fund and spur housing development. It's a
contribution versus making an obligatory payment.

The latest proposal also adds a degree of flexibility for repayment, if any, to the Fund by the
sponsor of the housing project. Since the contributor would be made whole independent of
project operations, repayment terms could be commensurate with the targeted level of
affordability of the project. The lower the income targeting the longer the project sponsor would
have for repayment.

I am not advocating for or against this bill, but rather am providing to you the benefit of our
experiences and information we have garnered by being on the ground so as to make this
legislation a good investment for all parties, including the state. | believe the concept of this
legislation is worthy of consideration and would be glad to work with the sponsors of the bill and
members of this committee in improving the bill to make it an effective tool for our North Dakota
communities.
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Chairman Holmberg and members of the ND Legislative Council Budget Section Interim
Committee, my name is Mike Anderson and | am Executive Director of the North Dakota
Housing Finance Agency. | come before you today to provide a report on the Rural Housing
Investment Incentive Pilot Program.

The Agency was directed in its 2008-2011 biennium budget, $B2014 section 17, to establish a
pilot project using funds available at the Agency to provide an incentive for private sector
investment in single-family and multifamily housing development in difficult to develop areas of
the state. | am here today tc report on the results and current status of the pilot project.

First, the purpose of the pilot was to demonstrate that by providing incentives for private
sector investments in housing you can, in fact, spur housing development in difficult to develop
areas of the state. The Agency committed $400,000 of its own reserves to carry out the pilot.

A pilot program Request for Proposals (RFP) was developed and approved by the Agency’s
Advisory Board and the Industrial Commission in October of last year. The RFP was published
in December of 2002 with a deadline of written proposals set for February 12, 2010. Some of

. the key program provisions of the RFP included:

e Difficult to Develop Areas. defined as communities with a population of 5,000 or less
and who can demonstrate an unmet housing need or housing shortage.

¢ Eligible Investors/Contributors: inciudes individuals, corporations, financial
institutions, municipal governmental entities.

* Eligible Investments. includes cash, donated land and infrastructure, buiidings,
property tax and other municipal incentives that would reduce the gap on the project.

» Eligible projects: new construction of single family or multifamily projects or substantial
rehabilitation of existing uninhabitable structures that create additional housing units.

+ Matching Funds: the Agency would provide a dollar for dollar match to help cover the
projected gap between the cost of the project and its appraised value. The maximum
combined eligible investment and matching funds could not exceed 20 percent of total
project costs (50 percent of costs for substantial rehab projects).

Agency matching funds would be limited to a maximum of $100,000 per project and no more
than one award per community would be allowed. The Agency committed to using its best
efforts to allocate 50 percent of the funds to single family projects and 50 percent to multifamily
projects.

The matching funds would be subject to recapture. In the case of a single family project, if the
sale price resulted in a lower than anticipated gap, the excess gap assistance will be repaid at
the time of sale. Any remaining gap would be assumed by the home buyer and subject to
repayment using a shared equity relationship with the Agency during the first five years of

. ownership that would be proportionately forgiven each year.
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In the case of multifamily, a recapture could occur upon completion of the project if the final
appraisal or cost certification resulted in a lower than the anticipated gap. Any remaining match
will be struciured as a deferred loan and become payable out of positive cash flows after
appropriate reserves are fully funded.

_All recapture provisions would be enforced through subordinate liens. The recapture
provisions did not seem to deter applicants from applying for the funds.

The Agency received fourteen project proposals requesting $1,063,634 of matching funds.
Total projected project costs were $22.3 million with a projected gap of $4,177 million.

Ten proposals were for multifamily projects and four were single family projects. All single
family proposals were new construction. Six of the multifamily proposals were new construction,
three were rehab projects, and one was a combination of new construction and rehab.

Seven projects, one single family and six multifamity, were approved. Total project costs were
$6.7 million and the estimated gap on approved projects was $3.2 million. Eligible matching
equity and other local contributions totaled more than $2.1 million. Attached to this report is a
spreadsheet showing details of applications received and those funded.

» The value gap was clearly demonstrated in the proposals where, in some cases the gap
was more than 50 percent of the project costs. All funded projects have at least a 20
percent gap.

» The average rents of the multifamily projects were decreased from $27 to $168 per
month per unit as a result of the equity from the pilot and local matching funds.

e Project proposals were geographically dispersed around the state signaling gap issues
and housing needs all across North Dakota.

* We received an assortment of applicant types including for-profit and non-profit entities,
economic development corporations, local housing authorities, Native Americans, and
local governments.

» Project proposals had a variety of focus including both single family and multifamity,
market rate and income targeted housing, assisted living, senior friendly, and workforce
housing.

e Funded projects created 65 new housing units through both new construction and major
rehabilitation of existing structures.

¢ Local investment came from a variety of sources and in a number of forms including
developer cash contributions and donated labor; tax abatements, donated land and
infrastructure through local government; cash contributions from employers, economic
development corporations, local housing authorities, and philanthropic organizations.

e Projects used a variety of debt financing instruments including bond financing,
conventionai loans from local banks, loan participations, and the NDHFA Rural Rehab
Loan Program.

We believe the level of response to the pilot is indicative of not only the need for housing in
rural North Dakota, but potential for housing development in these areas. We allowed only 45
days from publishing the RFP to submission of proposals and gave priority to projects that were
shovel ready. So, most all of the project proposals were already on the drawing board and all
they needed was that last infusion of capital for the projects to be feasible and for them to move
ahead. Thus, the pilot did prove that providing an incentive for local investment can spur
housing development in difficult to develop areas.

One of the things about the pilot that we heard consistently from participating developers and
community leaders was their appreciation for the fiexibility the program offered. Each of the
communities that were awarded an allocation had a different housing need and this program
was able to assist in meeting those needs. For example, the community of Maddock was in
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need of rental housing for its growing workforce. Because their focus was workforce housing
and federal housing programs typically have income restrictions, traditional federal programs did
not work for Maddock. The pilot program, without income restrictions, was able to help in this
case. The pilot program is flexible enough to help meet the gap needs that traditional funding
sources cannot.

The pilot further demonstrated significant leveraging power. It utilized $400,000 of public funds
to generate $6.8 million in housing related economic activity — nearly a 17 to 1 ratio. Therefore,
it is my recommendation that the Rural Housing Investment Incentive Program should be
replicated and expanded. However, a sustainable expansion of the program would require
additional funding from outside of the Agency.
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Rural Housing Investment Incentive Pilot Program (RHIIP)

Projected RHIP Eligible
. . . - # Total Project |value Gap (Cost| RHIIP Funding X Matching Other Equity Sources of Debt | Sources
t D
City Applicant Project Description Units Cost Minus Final Requested M::ah_:m. Total Debt Equity Contribution Financing E
Appraisal) warde Contribution
Underwood |Building Single Family 1 $ 186,000 | § 36,000 | % 20,000 | $ 18,000 | § 150,000 | § 18,000 | $ - Conventional lpcal bank O.E:E con
Innovations, LLG |New Construction lean City & locz
paymentg
Velva Whitetaii Muiti-Family 3 153,464 88,464 70,000 38,366 50,098 65,000 - Personal loan from owners|trwner cor
Properties, LLC i of the development
1 company.
& |Maddock LSS Housing Multi-Family 8 371,900 180,300 50,000 50,000 271,900 50,000 - |Conventional local bank  [Gash contr
% Maddock, LLC lean; NDHF A loan. business {
umJ 1
Ly
- Parshall LSS Housing Multi-Family New 20 2,344,000 1,344,000 100,000 100,000 1,500,000 100,000 644,000 |Bond; Federal HOME Local Hou:
@ Parshall, LLC Construction Program; Local Housing  |and infras!
3 . Authority. Cwner cor
5 NSP: Dave
L |Stanley LSS Housing Multi-Family 17 2,004,700 1,100,000 100,000 100,000 909,700 510,000 485,000 |Bong; Federal HOME Local Hou:
Stanley, LLC Rehabilitation Pregram; Local Housing  jinstitution.
' Authority. donors am
HOME and
New Eddy County Muiti-Family New 4 525,000 225,000 100,000 50,000 415,000 60,000 R Bond, Federal HOME Local _.....w:,
Rockford Housing Construction Frogram. Economic
Authority Corporatic
Beach LSS Housing Multi-Family New 12 1,195,350 265,350 43,634 43,634 954,750 44,600 152,366 |NDHFA loan; USDA- Land from
Beach, LLC and Rehabilitation guaranteed loan. contributic
USDA prog
. “ s Total - Funded Projects:] 65°'$* 6,780,414') $+ 3,239,714 { $ 483,634 | $- 400,000 | $ 4,251,448 | $ 847,600:| $ 1,281,366
. ‘ . - X . Projected Value RHIP Funding RHNP Funding Eligible Matching Other Equity Praposed Sources of
City Applicant Project Description |# Units] Total Project Cost Gap Requested Awarded Total Debt Equity Contibution Debt
Buffalo City of Buffalo Multi-Family New 6 |3 626,510 | $ 116,510 | $ 100,000 | § - $ 350,000 % 100,000 | § 76,510 |Conventional local bark  |Gwner cor
Construction loan. from City;
Underwocod |Building Multi-Family New 4 500,000 20,000 40,000 - 384,000 76,000 0 |Conventional facal bark | Land from
' Innovations, LLC [Construction logn. Unspecifie
.m Parshall Fort Berthold Singfe Family 40 7,625,464 | Information was not ._oo_ooo - 0 400,000 7,125,464 [None indicated, Tribal busi
R Housing New Construction provided sasm programs, 1
5 Authority appiicstion.
. |Hazen Hazen Muiti-Family New 20 1,951,000 801,000 100,000 - 850,000 800,000 201,000 |Bond Owner cor
’ Community Construction corporatio
Development
[Wishek Wishek Home Multi-Family New 8 1,400,000 0 100,000 - 600,000 700,000 ¢ |Participatory loan from | Owner cor
3 for the Aged Construction local bank and BND.
" JUnderwood |Buiiding Single Family 2 420,000 0 40,000 - 350,000 30,000 0 [Conventional locat bank  |Land from
: Innovations, LLC [New Construction loan.
Garrisan 3-Mite High LLC [Single Family 20 3,000,000 0 100,000 - 2,800,000 100,000 0 {Unspecified Qwner cor
New Construction
. Total - Unfunded;Projects:] -100.|-§, <°15,522,974{. % '".937,510:|.§ - . '580,000°( $:. '$° 15,334,000 | $. -2,206,000:{:% . .7,402,974
otal ZAI’Applications] 165::$7522,303;388:[1$-74:17.7, 285 1,063,634,]-$ :/400,0003]; $9:585;448[:$7_3;053;



Pilot Program (RHIIP)

Eligible
inding | TP Matching | Other Equity | Sources of Debt | Sources of Equity (Matehing| Impact of RHIIP and
Funding Total Debt . e . ] I ;
wsted Equity Contribution Financing Equity in Bold) Matching Funds
Awarded A
Contribution

20,000 | $ 18,000 | § 150,000 | S 18,000 1 S ——TCorventional locat bank | Owner contribution; Land from Encourage specuiative
loan:. City & tocal EDC; City down development by reducing valug]

payment grant. gap risk.

70,000 38,366 £0,098 65,000 - Personal loan from owners|Qwner contribution Reduced debt allows average
of the development unit rert reduction of $169,
company. ensuring affardability for area

. |median income househalds.
50,000 50,000 271,900 50,000 - Conventional local bank | Cash contributions from lacal Reduced debt allows average
Joar, NDHFA lean. business & EDC. unit rent reduction of $82,
enabling iow-income
QCCURANCY.
100,000 100,000 1,500,000 100,000 644,000 |Bond; Federal HOME Local Housing Authority; Land |Reduced debt allows average
Program; Local Housing  and infrastructure from City; unit rent reduction of $119,
Authority. Owner contribution; Federal enabling low-income
NSP_ Develppgr concassion, QCCUpANcy.
100,000 100,000 909,700 510,000 485,000 |Bond; Federal HOME Local Housing Authority; Reduced dett allows average
Program, Locat Housing  [institutional Philanthropy; Lacal |unit rent reduction of $58,
Authority. donors and investors; Federal enabling low-income
HOME and CD8G Programs. OCCUPANCY.
400,000 50,000 415,000 60,000 - Bong; Federal HOME Local Housing Authority; Local Reduced debt allows average
Program. Economic Devetlopment unit rent drop of $126,
Corporation. enabling low-income
: DGCUpPAnCY.
43,634 43,634 954,750 44,600 152,366 NDHFA loan; USDA- Land from City; Owner Reduced debt need hefps keep]
guaranteed loan. contribution; Federal HOME and required rents affordable.
LUSDA programs.
383634 § 400,000 | $ 4,251,448 $ 847,600 | § 1,281,366
Funding RHIIP Funding Eligible Matching Other Equity Proposed Sources of .
\uested Awarded Totat Debt Equity Contribution Debt Proposed Sources of Equity
100,000 ' $ - $ 250,000 | $ 100,000 | $ 76,510 Conventional local bank  |Owner contrbution; Local investors; Land & tax abatement
i9an. from Gity; Gther unspecified assistance.

40,000 - 384,000 76,000 0 | Conventional local bank _|Land from Lacal Housing Authority; Local EDC grant;

loan. Unspecified private investor.
100,000 - [} 400,000 7,125,464 None indicated. Tribal business council; LIHTC; HUD frsttime homebuyer
programs; unspectied state and federal programs.
100,000 - 850,000 800,000 201,000 |Bond Gwner contributien; Local cammunity develepment
carporation; City contributlon; Other unspecified sourcas.
100,000 - 600,000 700,000 0 |Participatory ioan from Owner contribution; Local lax abatement.
jocal bank and BND.

40,000 R 350,000 30,000 0 |Cenveniiona! focal bank  |Land frem City; Local EDC down payment grant.
loan.

100,000 - 2,800,000 100,000 0 |Unspecified Owner contribution of land.
580,000 | $ - $ 5,334,000 $ 2,2060001% 7,402,974

£0631634'[:5.:4 ©$779585/448 " $.;3;053,600:] $7 8:684,340, ,
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EXECUTIVE SUMMARY ¥q

North Dakota is showing positive growth in a variety of economic factors - the lowest
unemployment rate in the country, home value increases amang the highest in the nation,
and overall increases in median income. We are seeing progress in closing our housing
; affordability gap, but work still needs £o be done.

With steady growth in income and a mooeration of home price increases, the affordability
gap is flattening. Median home price expansion still outpaces the rise in median household
\ incame but at a slower rate than previous years.

‘ In the energy-impacted areas of western North Dakota where housing demand exceeds
’ Supp!y. data provided by the North Dakota Assaociation of Realtors shows significant price
increases. As puhblic and private investment in housing increases capacity, it is expected
that market conditions should normatize.

Workers at all skill levels and in sll wage ranges are needed in any community. And, job
! growth and economic development cannot happen without adegquate housing. Coemmunities
need to have an adeguate balance of hausing stock including options for low- and moderate-
income famities to ensure that the community can graw and prosper.

Several common occupations - found in every community throughout the state —pay more
than 30 percent of their income for housing, which is a commaonly accepted guideline for
housing affardability.

: When looking at occupation incomes and the amount available to spend on housing costs
: found an Page 7, keep in mind that nearly 59 percent of households in Narth Dakata rely
. on one or fewer wage earners. For some cccupations, this can push hcusing costs out

of reach without & second earnen

Much focus in the discussion of housing in North Dakota has been on shortages. This is a
significant issue that needs a thorough discussion. However, the intent of this report is
; to provide a comparison between income and housing costs. While each community’s level
] of demand is different, affordability is an issue that resonates throughout the state.

For continued and sustainable economic growth throughout Narth Gakota, housing must
be a priority. The state needs to establish a comprehensive public policy that addresses
housing demands while also prigritizing affordabilicy. This report seeks to pravide reliable
information to facilitate that discussion.

; The data provided in this report is the most current information available at the time
of printing. Much has been happening in the state since this information was collected.
More data being gathered will continue the evalution of this multi-faceted discussian on
housing in North Dakata.
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NORTH DAKOTA HOME PRICES VS. OTHER STATES

North Dakota is enjoying greater increases in home prices than a majority of the nation. The American Community
Survey estimate currently ranks the state at tenth up from 16™ the year befere. North Dakota has placed in the top

twenty since 2005.

RANK/STATE HOME PRICE INCREASE 2007-08
1 Wyoming 9.2%
2 Utah 7.9%
3 South Dakota 6.3%
' “4*  Pennsylvania 6.3%
5 New Mexico ' 6.2%
6 Oregon 6.2%
7 Montana 6.1%
8 North Carolina - 6.0%
9 Tennessee 6.0%
10 North Dakota 5.3%
23 Nebraska 3.5%
34 lowa 2.4%
39 Minnesota 0.1%
41 Connecticut
42 Michigan -1.2%
43 Maryland -1.7%
44 New Jersey =2.2%
45 Rhode Island -2.3%
46 Massachusetts -3.5%
47 Arizona -3.6%
48 Florida -5.1%
49 California «12.3%
50 Nevada 7 -12.8%
United States T 1.7%
] i | | | | [ [ l ]
-15%  -12% -9% -6% -3% 0% 3% 6% 9% 12%
Source:

U.5. Census Bureay. 2005-2008. American Cammunity Survey 1-Year Estimates, "R2510. Median Housing Value of Owner-Decugied Housing Linits.”
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MEDIAN HOME \IAiUES VS. MEDIAN HOUSEHOLD INCOME

The American Community Strvey estimates that the rate at which North Dakota's median home values change has
modereted and household income is steadily increasing. While income is still growing at a slower pace than home
values, more equitable increases help reduce the housing affordability gap.

$120,000 —

" $100,000 F
$88.600

$80,000 [~ $74,400

$41,030

112,500
$106,800 $112,

$99,700
7.1%

$41.019  $43,753 $45,685
| — - -

$40,000 $34,604
$23,213

229 44%  A4%

520000 —4990" 2000 2005

—8&— Median Home Value

Scurce:
U.8. Census Bureau. 2005-2008. Amarican Community Survey 1-Year Estimates, "R1901. Median Household Income (In Inflation-
Adusted Dollars)” and "H2510. Median Housing Value of Owner-Occupied Housing Units.”

U.5. Census Bureau. 2000. Decennial Census, "DP-3. Profile of Selacted Economic Characteristics” and "DP-4. Profile of Selected Housing
Charactenistics.”
.8, Census Bureau. 1990. Deceanial Census, "HO238. Median Value" and “POBOA. Median Household Income.”

2006 2007 2008

—&— Mediar Household Income
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AVERAGE HOME PRICES BY CITY

Eastern North Dakota communities have experienced relatively unremarkable price changes over the past five years.
The marketplaces seeing large price increases have all been in the west, particularly in energy-impacted areas, where
housing demand continues to exceed the supply.

North Dakota s
Bismarck-Mandan |
Dickinson
Fargo-Moorhead |
Grand Forks juss N —
Jamestown i

Minot jem

Wahpeton-Breckenridge i ————

Williston

ey 1210001

$120.000  $160,000

$0 $40000  $80.000

2005

Note:

in the energy-impacted areas, the availability of housing appears to be affecting affordability. Private and public investment in housing is continuing to
increase housing capacity. As communities work to return housing demand to & reasonable level, it is expected that market conditions will normalize.

The average home price displeved en the graph will differ from the 2008 report due to & change in the manner that the Multipie Listing Service
(MLS} data is gathered. In previous years the information was manually submittad by the local real estate boards. Now it is gathered directly from
the MLS providers and their programs,

Source:
Morth Dakota Associetion of Realtors. 2005-20089. "Multiple Listing Service."
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$157,556

[—

$160,000

iing is continuing to
ions will normalize.

isting Service
red directly from

: MEDIAN HOME PFIICES BY CITY

From 2007 to 2009, the median home prices rose more quickly than the averages with the exceptions of Bismarck-Mandan and
Fargo-Meorhead. This trend suggests that the housing market. is becoming move normalized with a greater balance between high-
cost and low-cost housing.

Bismarck-Mandan

- Dickinson m—
Fargo-Moorhead SRS
Grand Forks

Jamestown

Wahpeton-Breckenridge } —

A

Williston

e TR s L g s SRS 00

$0 $40.000  $80.000

2000 [ 2007

$120.000  $160,000

Notes:
In the energy-impacted areas, the availability of housing appears to be affecting affordabilicy. Private and public investment, in housing is continting to
inerease housing capacity. As communities work to return heusing demand to a reasonable fevel, it is expected that markel conditions will normalize,

Source:
North Oakota Association of Realtors. 2005-2009. "Multiple Listing Service.”
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RENTAL AFFORDABILITY (CASHIER/MEDIAN WAGE)

A commonly accepted guidetine for housing affordability is costs that are no more than 30 percent of household income.
In North Dakota, the American Community Survey estimated that 37.% percent of renter househalds, like the Cashier
ilustrated below, have to put 31 percent or more of their income toward housing.

It shauld be noted that the rental information shown uses the Fair Market Rent published by the US Department cof
Housing and Urban Development to represent current rent levels.

Monthly [ncome Availabie

_ Rent Payment

$800
$700
$600
$500
$400
$300
$200
$100 : ,

$0 i ' .

North Dakota Bismarck-Mandan MSA  Fargo-Moorhgad MSA Grand Forks M3A Far West Region Wesl Central Region

Notes:

« Median typica! manthly wage was derived from the 2003 Oceupational Employment Statistics typical median annual wage, by dividing by 12 (not
seasonally adjustad). Trua median monthly wage infarmation was not available.

« Metropolitan Statistical Areas (MSA) have at least one urbanized area of 50,000 or more pogulation, plus adjacent territory that has a high
degree of social and economic integration with the core as measured by commuting patterns.

« The Far West Region consists of Adams, Billings, Bowman. Divide. Dunn, Galden Valley, Hettinger, McKenzie, Slope, Sterk, and Williams counties: it
glso includes the cities of Wilistan and Dickinsan. All counties in the Far West Regicn have an FMR of $518 for a 2-bedroom apartment.

« The West Central Region consists of Bottineau (3533), Burke ($539), Burleigh ($565), Emmons {$539), Grant (3318), McHenry 1$539), Mclean
($539), Mercer (3518), Morton ($565), Mountrail ($539), Ofiver 1$518), Pierce (3539), Renville ($539), Sheridan ($539), Sioux ($318], and
Ward ($831) counties. FMRs for a 2-bedroom aparsment in these counties are shown in parentheses. The Bismarck-Mandan MSA is exciuded
from the West. Central Region's wage data.

Sources:
Job Service North Dakota. 2009, “ Decupational Employment. Statistics.”
U.8. Department of Housing & Urban Development. 2010. "The Final FY 2010 North Dakota Fair Market Rent Summary.”
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HOUSING AFFORDABILITY BY OCCUPAT-IONS (MEDIAN WAGE)

The 10 pcoupations with the highest number of employees represent more than 20 percent of the North Dakota's
workforce.  While these positions are essential to our economy, some occupations don't pay enough to adequately
cover housing costs.

NORTH DAKOTA

53

able f
" Housing

..
%

$589

$563

5422

$1,329

The number of Norch Dakota's retired workers who have another source of income besides Social Security benefits and the number wha are alone in
their household are unknown. if Social Security is a retired worker's only source of income, it will be chalienging to pay menthly housing costs.

2010 Fair Market Rent Range for 2-bedroom apartment for Morth Dakota: $518-3631 {$538 Average)
2009 Monthly Paymant on Median Priced Home for ND: $985

Notes:

+ The percent of ND fabor force is derived from the 2009 Loca! Ares Unemployment Statistics North Dakota civilian labor farce statistic of 364,970
(not seasonally adjusteds.

+ The monthly wage for retired workers is an average, not a median.

* Assumes second esrner’s wage to be BO% of the primary's wage

« Assumes 5% down payment, 5.5% interest rate on a 30-year, fixed-rate mortgage, plus allocation of 25% of the monthly payment Lo property
taxes, insurance and other costs such ss PM!. Number based on Multiple Listing Service data.

+ Just over one-third, 36.4%, of all households had only one wage earner in 2008; 22.3% had no warkers {retired workers, receiving benefits other
thar regular wages, or unemployed}; 35.4% had two wage earners; and 5.7% had three cr more wage earners.

Sources:

U.5. Department of Housing & Urban Development. 2010. “The Final FY 2010 Nerth Dakota Fair Market Rent Summary.”

Narth Dakota Association of Realters. 2009. "Multiple Listing Service.”

Jab Service North Dakota. 2008, *Occupatianal Employment Statistics” and “Local Area Unemployment Statistics.”

Sacial Security Administration; Office of Retirement and Disability Policy. 2009, “Annug! Statistica! Summary: Old Age, Survivars, and Disability Insur-
ance, Benefits in Gurrent Payment Status, Geographic Data,”

U.5. Census Bureau. 2008. American Commurity Survey 1-Year Estimates, “BOB202. Household Size by Number of Workers in Household.”

Institute for Women's Policy Research. 2010. “Fact Sheet: The Wage Gap: 2008

2010 RERPDRT | 7
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Amount Availenle for | NI BRI
Housing e Housing -
'*

2010 Fair Markst Rent for 2-badroom apartment for Fargo MSA: $584
2009 Maonthly Payment on Median Priced Home for Fargo: $932

Note:
» Metropolitan Statistical Areas (MSA) have at. least one urbanized area of 50,000 or more nopulation, plus adjacent tarritory that has & high
degree of social and economic integration with the core 8s measured by commuting patterns.

Source:

Job Service North Dakota. 2009, "Occupational Employment Statistics.”

1.8, Census Bureau. 2008. American Comrmunity Survey 1-Year Estimates, "PUMS File.”

U.5. Department of Housing & Urban Development. 2010. “The Final Y 2010 North Dakota Fair Market Rent Summary.”

Nerth Dakota Association of Aealcors. 2003, “Multiple Listing Service.”

Social Security Administration: Office af Retirement. and Disability Policy. 2003, “Annual Statistical Summary: O'd Age, Survivars, and Disabilicy
Insurance, Bengfits in Current Payment. Status, Geographic Data.”

Institut for Women's Policy Research. 2010. "Fact Sheet: The Wage Gap: 2009
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hmount Available for | hally i ; ! Amount Avattabie f
Housing 7 | i Housing
5895 Rt | B
$762 _ £Cishiars il : $424

$1,082 rSinglAHe St i 2% 8504 :
S0 ' §745
. |IIIIIIIIIIIIIII

5903 - ianitors & Clogd ' [ 8542

b |

$2.128 : il : ,
2010 Fair Market Rent far 2-bedroom apartment for Grand Forks MSA: $606

2009 Manthly Payment on Median Priced Home for Grand Forks: 5963

Notes:
* Due to confidentiality in this region, no information: was available from the OES regarding registered nurses.
« Metropolitan Statistical Areas (MSA) have st least one urbanized area of 50,000 or more popufation, plus adjacent territory that has a high

that has & high degree of social and ecoromic integration with the care as measured by commuting patterns.

Source:
Job Service North Dakota. 2009, "Oceupational Employment Statistics.”
U.5. Census Bureau. 2008. American Community Survey 1-Year Estimates, "PUMG File.”
U.5. Department of Housing & Urban Development. 2010, “The Final FY 2010 North Dakota Fair Market Rent Summary.”
North Dakata Association of Realtors. 2009. "Multiple Listing Service.”
5, and Disability Social Security Administration; Office of Retirement and Disability Policy. 2009. "Annual Statistical Summary: Old Age, Survivors, ang Cisability
Insurance, Benefits in Current Payment Status, Geographic Data.”
Ingtitute for Women's Policy Research. 2010. "Fact Shest: The Wage Gap: 2009

2010 REPORT | 11
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Amount Availabie for
Housing

2010 Fair Market Rent for a 2-bedroom apartment for Far West Region: $518
2009 Manthly Payment on Median Priced Home for the Dickinson Region: $364
2009 Manthly Payment on Median Priced Home for the Williston Ragion: $935

Notes:

* In the energy-impacted areas, the avaitability of housing appears to be affecting affardability. Private and public investment in housing is continuing
to increase housing capzcity. As communities work to return housing demand ta & reasonable level, it is expected that market conditions will
ngrmalize,

* The Number of Persons is the sum of the labor forces of the counties within the Far West Regton.

= The Far West Region consists of Adams, Bilfings, Bowman, Divide, Dunn, Golden Valley, Hettinger, McKenzie, Slope, Stark, and Williams counties; it
also includes the cities of Williston and Dickinson. Al counties in the Far West Region have an FMR of $518 for a 2-bedroom apartment.

* Assumes second earner's wage to be B0% of the primary's wage.

Source:

Jab Service North Dakota. 2009. “Occupational Employrment Statistics.”

U.5. Census Bureau. 2008. American Community Survey 1-Year Estimates, "PUMS File."

L1.5. Department of Housing & Urban Development. 2010. "The Final FY 2010 North Dakota Fair Market Rent Summary.”

North Dakota Association of Realtors. 2009, "Muttiple Listing Service.”

Social Security Administration; Office of Retirement and Disability Policy. 2003, “Annual Statistica! Summary: Oid Age, Survivors, and Disability
Insurance, Benefits in Current Payment Status, Geegraphic Data.”

Institute for Women's Palicy Research. 2010. "Fact Sheet: The Wage Gap: 2009

12 | 2610 REPORT




CENTRAL REG

AN i

fimount. Available for

$B845
§753

. $1.835 *
$720
$1,113

$1.381

101
5818

i $1.008 - .
'

.

32,394

$1,575 : 2010 Fair Market Rent Range for a 2-bedroom apartment for West Central Region: $518-$631 ($543 Average)

2009 Monthly Payment on Medisn Priced Home for the Minot Region: $1,006

juy
=]
=
=]

Notes:

* In the energy-impacted areas, the availabiity of housing appears to be affecting sffordability. Private and public investment in housing is continuing
housing is continuing to increase housing capacity. As communities work to return housing demand to a reasonable |evel, it is expected that market conditions wil
: cenditions will normalize.

* The Number of Parsons is the sum of the labor forcas of the counties within the West Central Region.
- o » No datz from the OES regarding combined faod prep and serving workers was available for the West Central Region.
Wiliams counties: it * The West Central Regions consists of Bettineau ($539), Burke ($539), Burleigh ($565), Emmons (3539), Grant (3518), McHenry ($539),
partment. McLean ($5339], Mercer ($518), Morton ($565), Mountrall {$538), Qiver ($518), Pierce ($539), Renvile ($539), Sheridan ($5331, Sioux
($518), and Ward ($631) counties. FMRs for a 2-bedreom apartment in these counties are shown in parentheses.

Source:
Job Service North Dakota. 2009. “Decupational Employment. Statistics,”
U.S. Census Bureau. 2008. American Community Survey 1-Year Estimates, "PUMS File.”
U.S. Department of Housing & Urban Development. 2010. “The Final FY 2010 North Dakota Fair Market Rent Summary.”
North Dakata Association of Realtors. 2009, "Multiple Listing Service.”
3, and Disability Sucial Security Administration: Office of Retirement and Disability Palicy. 2009, "Annual Statistical Summary: Old Age, Survivors, and Disahility
Insurance, Benefits in Current Payment Status, Geographic Data.”
Institute for Wemen's Policy Research. 2010. "Fact Sheet: The Wage Gap: 2009
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Prepared for the House
Finance and Taxation Committee
March 18,2011

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED SENATE BILL NO. 2210

Page 1, line 1, after “A BILL” replace the remainder of the bill with “for an Act to create and

enact two new sections to chapter 54-17, a new subdivision to subsection 2 of section 54-
60.1-01, a new subsection to section 57-35.3-05, a new section to chapter 57-38, and a
new subdivision to subsection 7 of section 57-38-30.3 of the North Dakota Century Code,
relating to a housing incentive fund and tax credits for contributions to the fund; to amend
and reenact subsection 2 of section 54-17-07.2, and section 57-35.3-07 of the North
Dakota Century Code, relating to the definition of multifamily housing facility and payment
of the financial institutions tax; to provide an effective date; and to provide a continuing
appropriation.

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF NORTH DAKOTA:

SECTION 1. AMENDMENT. Subsection 2 of section 54-17-07.2 of the North Dakota
Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

2. “Multifamily housing facility” means any facility containing five four or more
residentia! dwelling units; provided, that at least twenty percent of the units in
each facility must be held for occupancy by persons or families of low and
moderate income for sueh the period of time as the industrial commission may
determine and may include sueh the related public or private facilities intended
for commercial, cultural, recreational, community, or other civic purpose as the
commission may approve.

SECTION 2. Two new sections to chapter 54-17 of the North Dakota Century Code
are created and enacted as follows:

Housing incentive fund - Continuing appropriation.

1. The housing incentive fund is created as a special revolving fund at the Bank of

North Dakota. Assistance may be disbursed from the fund as directed by the
housing finance agency and a continuing appropriation from the fund is
provided for that purpose.

[h2

After a public hearing the housing finance agency shall create an annual
allocation plan for the distribution of the fund. At least twenty-five percent of the
fund must be used to assist developing communities with a population of not
more than ten thousand individuals to address an unmet housing need or
alleviate a housing shortage. At least fifty percent of the fund must be used to
benefit households with incomes at not more than fifty percent of the area

1
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Gap assistance, matching funds, and accessibility improvements;

&

Assistance that does not exceed the amount necessary to gualify for a

loan using underwriting standards acceptable for secondary market
financing or to make the project feasible: and

|2

Rental assistance, emergency assistance, or targeted supportive
services designated to prevent homelessness.

|~

Eligible recipients include units of local, state, and tribal government; local and
triba}l housing authorities; community action agencies; regional planning
councils; and nonprofit organizations and for-profit developers of multifamily
housing. Individuals may not receive direct assistance from the fund.

o

Except for subdivision d of subsection 3, assistance is subject to repayment or
recapture under the guidelines adopted by the housing finance agency. Any

assistance that is repaid or recaptured must be deposited in the fund and is
appropriated on a continuing basis for the purposes of this section.

Report.

Upon request, the housing finance agency shall report to the industrial commission on

the activities of the housing incentive fund.

l"/SECTION 3. A new subdivision to subsection 2 of section 54-60.1-01 of the North

Dakota Century Code is created and enacted as follows:

Assistance from the housing finance agency through housing incentive funds.
“’SECTION 4. A new subsection to section 57-35.3-05 of the North Dakota Century

Code is created and enacted as follows:

There is allowed a credit against the tax imposed by sections 57-35.3-01 through 57-
35.3-12 in an amount equal to the contribution to the housing incentive fund under

section 2 of this Act. The taxpayer may not ¢laim more than twenty percent of the credit

for each separate contribution made in_any taxable year For the purposes of the credit
allowed in this subsection, subsections 2 through 8 of section 6 of this Act apply.

SECTION 5. AMENDMENT. Section 57-35.3-07 of the North Dakota Century Code is

amended and reenacted as follows:

57-35.3-07. Payment of Tax.

Two-sevenths of the tax before credits allowed under section 57-35.3-05, less
the ereditcredits allowed under subsection 1 of section 57-35.3-05 and section 4 of this
Act, must be paid to the commissioner on or before April fifteenth of the year in which
the return is due, regardless of any extension of the time for filing the return granted
under 57-35.3-06. Five-sevenths of the tax before credits allowed under section 57-
35.3-05, less the credit allowed under subsection 2 of section 57-35.3-05, must be paid
to the commissioner on or before January fifteenth of the year after the return is due.
Payment must be made by check, draft, or money order, payable to the commissioner,
or as prescribed by the commissioner under subsection 15 of section 57-01-02.

l/SECTION 6. A new section to chapter 57-38 of the North Dakota Century Code is

created and enacted as follows:

Page No. 2 11.0630.02003



5§7-35.3-07. Payment of Tax.

Two-sevenths of the tax before credits allowed under section 57-35.3-05, less
the credit credits aliowed under subsection 1 of section 57-35.3-05 and section 4 of
this Act, must be paid to the commission on or before April fifteenth of the year in
which the return is due, regardiess of any extension of the time for filing the return
granted under 57-35.3-06. Five-sevenths of the tax before credits allowed under
section 57-35.3-05, less the credit allowed under subsection 2 of section 57-35.3-05,
must be paid to the commissioner on or before January fifteenth of the year after the
return is due. Payment must be made by check, draft, or money order, payable to the
commissioner, or as prescribed by the commissioner under subsection 15 of section
57-01-02.

SECTION 6. A new section to chapter 57-38 of the North Dakota Century Code is

created and enacted as follows:

Housing incentive fund tax credit.

1. A taxpayer is entitied to a credit as determined under this section against state
income tax liability under section 57-38-30 or 57-38-30.3 for contributing to the
housing incentive fund under section 2 of this Act. The amount of the credit is
equal to the amount contributed to the fund during the taxable year. The
{axpaver may not ciaim more than twenty percent of the credit for each
separate contribution made in any {axable vear.

e

North Dakota taxable income shall be increased by the amount of the
contribution upon which the credit under this section is computed but only to
the extent the contribution reduced federal taxable income.

e

The contribution amount used to calculate the credit under this section may not
be used to calculate any other state income tax deduction or credit allowed by
law.

|~

If the amount of the credit exceeds the taxpayer's tax liability for the taxable
vear, the excess may be carried forward to each of the ten succeeding taxable

years.

The aggregate amount of tax credits aliowed to all eligible contributors is
limited to four million dollars per biennium. This limitation applies to all
contributions for which tax credits are claimed under section 57-35.3-05 and
this section.

jon

[©

Within thirty days after the date on which a contribution to the housing incentive
fund is made, the housing finance agency shall file with each contributing
taxpayer. and a copy with the tax commissioner, completed forms that show as
to each contribution to the fund by that taxpayer the following:

a. The name, address, and social security number or federal employer
identification number of the taxpayer who made the contribution.

3



Housing incentive fund tax credit under section 6 of this Act.
SECTION 8. EFFECTIVE DATE-EXPIRATION DATE. Sections 1, 2 and 3 of this Act

are effective through June 30, 2013, and are thereafter ineffective. Sections 4, 5, 6, and 7 of

this Act are effective for the first two taxable years beginning after December 31, 2010, and are

thereafter ineffective.

Renumber accordingly

Page No. 4 11.0630.02003



Prepared for the House
Finance and Taxation Committee
March 18, 2011

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED SENATE BILL NO. 2210

Page 1, line 1, after “A BILL” replace the remainder of the bill with “for an Act to create and

enact two new sections to chapter 54-17, a new subdivision to subsection 2 of section 54-
60.1-01, a new subsection to section 57-35.3-05, a new section to chapter 57-38, and a

% new subdivision to subsection 7 of section 57-38-30.3 of the North Dakota Century Code,
“~=Xelating to a housing incentive fund and tax credits for contributions to the fund; to amend

and reenact subsection 2 of section 54-17-07.2, and section 57-35.3-07 of the North
Dakota Century Code, relating to the definition of multifamity housing facility and payment
of the financial jn *“stltutlora‘taax to prowde an effectlve dat?l and to provide a continuing

appropriation. ' Page

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF NORTH DAKOTA:

SECTION 1. AMENDMENT. Subsection 2 of section 54- 17 07.2 of the North Dakota
Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows - W oLf

residential dwelling units; prowi t least twenty percent of the units in
each facility must be held for occupan by persons or families of low and
moderate income for such the period of time as the industrial commission may
determine and may include such the related public or private facilities intended
for commercial, cultural, recreational, community, or other civic purpose as the
commission may approve.

SECTION 2. Two new sections to chapter 54-17 of the North Dakota Century Code
are created and enacted as follows:

2. "Multifamily housing fac{ty means an acmty containing five four or more
I

Housing incentive fund - Continuing appropriation.

1.  The housing incentive fund Is created as a special revolving fund at the Bank of

H)(vj 2.  After a public hearing the housing finance agency shall create an annual

g allocation pian for the distribution of the fund. At least twenty-five percent of the

- Sc“ \J fund must be used to assist developing communities with a population of not

more than ten thousand individuals to address an unmet housing need or
alleviate a housing shortage. At least fifty percent of the fund musi be used to
benefit households with incomes at not more than fifty percent of the area

1
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HOUSING AFFORDABILITY BY INDUSTRY {AVERAGE WAGE)

The average employee in nearly every industry in North Dakota can afford to pay the rent on a two-bedroom
apartment. Less than half of households with a single-wage earner can manage hameownership.

Al Indestries a 355,189 85,866

Accommaodation and Fopd Services 30,389 $1.049 §1.888
Administrative & Waste Services 12.350 $2,123 §3.821
Agriculture, Forestry, Fish & Hunting 4,132 $2.350 6,030
Arts, Entertainment & Recreation 7288 §1469 $2,544
Construction 22641 $4221 $7.598
Educational Services 34,539 $2,958 §5.342
Finance & Insurance 16,643 §4.117 $741
Health Care & Social Assistance 54,477 $3,458 $6.224
{nformation 7.533 §1.974 $7.153
Management of Companies & Enterprises 4.251 £5,382 $3.588
Manufacturing 23512 33878 6,980
Mining - 7438 $6.626 $11.927
Dther Services, Except Public Administration 11673 §2.054 $3.697
Cannat Attord Lo
Professional & Technical Services 13,187 $4.567 38.221 Buy or Rent
Public Administration .27 $2,582 $6,466
Real Estate & Hental Leasing 3.879 $2.990 $5,382
Retal Trade 44208 82,108 $632 s3.190 Gan Dely fiord
Transpartation & Warehousing 12,436 $3.714 T ey $6.685
Utilities. 3,626 365617 $11.911 : !
Whotesale Trade . 20,259 54813 & $8.314 Con Aftard ta

Rent er Buy

2010 Fair Market Rent Range for 2-bedroom apartment for North Oakota: $518-$631 (3539 Average)
2009 Monthly Payment on Average Priced Home for Nerth Dakota: $1055

Employment Growth and Housing Affordahility by Industry data by Metrapolitan Statistical Areas and Planning Regiens is available on the North Dakota Housing
finance Ryency's website, www.ndhfa.org. .

Notes:

+ The average industrial employment represents the number of positions, not the number of pecple employed,

. Eue to there being only average wage data availsble for industries in North Dakata, not median, the average home prices were used to display
ousing osts.

+ Assumes secend earner’s wage to be 80% of the primary's wage.

Sources:

Job Service North Dakota. 2007-2009. "Quarterly Census of Employment. & Wages.”

North Dakota Association of Realtors. 2009. "Multiple Listing Service

U.5. Department of Housing & Urban Development. 2010. “The Final FY 2010 North Dzkota Fair Market Rent. Summary.”
Institute for Women's Policy Research. 2010, "Fact Sheet: The Wage Gap: 2008."
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Cannat. Affard 10
Buy or Aent

Can Afford to
Rent or Buy

North Dakota Housing

used to display

HOUSING AFFORDABILITY BY OCCUPATIONS APPENDICES

' Co BISMARCK MSA ' '

i il &

Rl

36

2010 Fair Market Rent for 2-bedroom apartment for Bismarck MSA: $5E5
2009 Monthly Payment on Median Priced Home for Bismarck-Mandan: 51,031

Note:

+ Metropolitan Statistical Areas (MSAY have at least one urbanized area of 50,000 or more population, plus adjscent territory that has & high
degree of social ard economic integration with the core as measured by commuting patterns.

+ Assumes second earner's wage to be B0% of the primary’s wage.

Sourge:

Job Service North Dakota. 2009. "Occupational Employment Statistics.”

U.5. Census Burezu. 2008. American Community Survey 1-Year Estimates, "PUMS File."

U.S. Department of Housing & Urban Development. 2010, “The Final FY 2010 Narth Oakota Fair Market Rent Summary.”

North Dakota Association of Realtors. 2009. "Multiple Listing Service.”

Social Security Administration: Dffice of Retiremant and Disability Palicy. 2009. "Annua! Statistical Summary: Oid Age, Survivors, and Disability
insurance, Benefits in Current Payment Status, Geegraphic Data.”

Institute for Women's Policy Research. 2010. “Fact Sheet; The Wage Gap: 2009

2010 REPORT |
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. median income. The agency may collect a reasonable administrative fee from
the fund.

joo

The housing finance agency shall adopt guidelines for the fund so as to
address unmet housing needs in this state. Assistance from the fund may be
used solely for:

a.  New construction, rehabilitation, or acquisition of a multifamily housing
project;

b. Gap assistance, matching funds, and accessibility improvements;

c. Assistance that does not exceed the amount necessary to qualify for a
loan using underwriting standards acceptable for secondary market
financing or to make the project feasible; and

d. Rental assistance, emergency assistance, or targeted supportive services

designated to prevent homelessness.

4. Eligible recipients include units of local, state, and tribal government; iocal and
tribal housing authorities; community action agencies; regional planning
councils: and nonprofit organizations and for-profit developers of multifamily

\( ngfnmviduals may not receive direct assistance from the fund.
@2 ié th the exceptionbf subdivision d of subsection 3, assistance is subject to

. ‘”‘6*\%’8\_)( re'ﬁMure under the quidelines adopted by the housing finance

agency. Any assistance that is repaid or recaptured must be deposited in the
fund and is appropriated on a continuing basis for the purposes of this section.
Report.

Upon request. the housing finance agency shall report to the industrial commission
on the activities of the housing incentive fund.

SECTION 3. A new subdivision to subsection 2 of section 54-60.1-01 of the North
Dakota Century Code is created and enacted as follows:

Assistance from the housing finance agency through housing incentive funds.

SECTION 4. A new subsection to section 57-35.3-05 of the North Dakota Century
Code is created and enacted as follows: '

There is allowed a credit against the tax imposed by sections 57-35.3-01 through 57-
35.3-12 in an amount equal to the contribution to the housing incentive fund under
section 2 of this Act. The taxpayer may not claim more than twenty percent of the
credit for each separate contribution made in any taxable year. For the purposes of
the credit allowed in this subsection, subsections 2 through 8 of section 6 of this Act

apply.

SECTION 5. AMENDMENT. Section 57-35.3-07 of the North Dakota Century Code
. is amended and reenacted as follows:
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57-35.3-07. Payment of Tax. Y\Q R (/u

Two-sevenths of the tax before credltSfaItowed under section 57-35.3-05, less
the eredit credits allowed under subg o}ror‘: of section 57-35.3-05 and section 4 of
this Act, must be paid to the.commyssion gh or before April fifteenth of the year in
which the return is due, regardle:g\oiaaf extension of the time for filing the return
granted under 57-35.3-06. Five-sevenths of the tax before credits allowed under
section 57-35.3-05, less the credit allowed under subsection 2 of section 57-35.3-05,
must be paid to the commissioner on or before January fifteenth of the year after the
return is due. Payment must be made by check, draft, or money order, payable to the

commissioner, or as prescribed by the commissioner under subsection 15 of section
57-01-02.

SECTION 6. A new section to chapter 57-38 of the North Dakota Century Code is

created and enacted as follows:

Housing incentive fund tax credit.

1.  Ataxpayer is entitled to a credit as determined under this section against state

income tax liability under section 57-38-30 or 57-38-30.3 for contributing to the
housing incentive fund under section 2 of this Act. The amount of the credit is
equal to the amount contributed to the fund during the taxable year. The
taxpayer may not claim more than twenty percent of the credit for each
separate contribution made in any taxable year,

North Dakota taxable income shall be. mc; J&S%?t amount of the

contribution upon which the credit under this section_is computed but only to
the extent the contribution reduced federal taxable income.

The contribution amount used to calculate the credit under this section may not
be used to calculaie any other state income tax deduction or credit allowed by
law.

If the amount of the credit exceeds the taxpaver's"'tax liability for the taxable
year, the excess may be carried forward to each of the ten succeeding taxable

years.

q he aggregate amount of tax credits allewed to all eligible contributors is
mited to four mitlion dollars per bienniuijhis limitation applies to all
contributions for which tax credits are clarrﬁed under section 57-35.3-05 and

this section. Wllzgr%f/ "‘*0‘-":2—-_
\
Within thirtydays after the date on which a contrrbutlo o the housmq incentive )
CW&%M housing finance agency shall file with eM1but4@/
payer, and a copy with the tax commissioner, compieted forms that show as

to each contribution to the fund by that taxpayer the following:

I~

|

a. The name, address, and social security number or federal empioyer
identification number of the taxpayer who made the contribution.

3
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b. The dollar amount paid for the contribution by the taxpayer.
c. The date the payment was received by the fund. SMQ-'O

To receive the tax credit provided under this section, a taxpaveﬁnust ¢laim the
credit on the taxpayer's state income or financial institutions taxm in the
manner prescribed by the tax commissioner and file with the return a copy of
the form issued by the housing finance agency under subsection 6.

Notwithstanding the time limitations contained in section 57-38-38, this section
does not prohibit the tax commissioner from conducting an examination of the
credit claimed and assessing additional tax due under section 57-38-38.

A partnership, subchapter S corporation, limited partnership, limited liability

company, or any other passthrough entity making a contribution to the housin

incentive fund under this sectlonénust-be‘ccnsld‘rﬁd‘fo be fn }fe taxpayer for~ 5 ,,_i"""“
purposes of this section, and the “amount of the credit allowed must be

determined at the passthrough entity level. The amount of the totai credit

determined at the entity level must be passed through to the partners,

shareholders, or members in proportion to their respective interests in the

passthrough entity.

SECTION 7. A new subdivision to subsection 7 of section 57- 38 30:3 of the North -

Dakota Century Code is created and enacted as follows: \

pd \

Housing mcentwe fund tax credit under section 6 of this Act. e } \




11.0630.02002 : Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for
Title. Representative Keiser

. March 10, 2011

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED SENATE BILL NO. 2210
Page 1, line 1, replace "two" with "four"
Page 1, line 2, after "new" insert "subdivision to"
Page 1, line 2, replace "to section 57-35.3-05" with "7 of section 57-38-30.3"
Page 1, line 3, remove "a financial institutions"
Page 1, line 3, replace "credit" with "credits"

Page 1, line 4, after the semicolon insert "to amend and reenact subsection 2 of section
54-17-07.2 and section 57-35.3-07 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the
definition of multifamily housing facility and payment of the financial institutions tax;"

Page 1, after line 5, insert;

"SECTION 1. AMENDMENT. Subsection 2 of section 54-17-07.2 of the North
Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

2. "Multifamily housing facility" means any facility containing fivefour or more
residential dwelling units; provided, that at least twenty percent of the units
in each facility must be held for occupancy by persons or families of low
and moderate income for such period of time as the industrial commission

‘ may determine and may include such related public or private facilities
intended for commercial, cultural, recreational, community, or other civic
purpose as the commission may approve."

Page 1, line 8, replace "A" with "Four”
Page 1, line 8, replace "section" with "sections"
Page 1, line 6, replace "is" with "are"
Page 1, after line 7, insert:
"Definitions.

As used in section 2 of this Act:

1. "Agency" means the industrial commission of North Dakota acting as the
state housing finance agency.

2. "Director” means the director of the state housing finance agency.

3. "Eligible investor" means a person as defined in section 57-38-01, an
exempt organization as described in subsection 1 of section 57-38-09
subject to the tax described in subsection 2 of section 57-38-09, or a

financial institution as defined in subsection 2 of section 57-35.3-01 making
an eligible investment in the housing incentive fund.

. 4.  "Tax commissioner" means the state tax commissioner.”

Page No. 1 11.0630.02002



Page 1, line 10, replace "Loans" with "Assistance"

Page 1, line 10, replace "made" with "disbursed"

Page 1, line 11, remove "Loans from"

Page 1, remove lines 12 through 15

Page 1, line 23, remove the second "the"

Page 1, line 24, after "needs" insert "in this state"

Page 1, line 24, replace "These forms of assistance" with "Assistance from the fund"

Page 2, line 2, remove the second "and"

Page 2, line 3, replace "Gap financing assistance” with "Assistance"
Page 2, line 5, after "financing" insert "or to make the project feasible: and

d. Rental assistance, emergency assistance, or targeted supportive

services designated to prevent homelessness"

Page 2, line 10, after the underscored period insert "With the exception of subdivision d of

subsection 3, assistance is subject to repayment or recapture under the guidelines
adopted by the agency.”

Page 2, line 10, replace "returned" with "recaptured"

Page 2, after line 11, insert:

"Housing incentive fund tax credit.

1

o

|eo

|~

|

A credit against state tax liabjlity as determined under sections 57-35.3-01
through 57-35.3-12, 57-38-30, or 57-38-30.3 is allowed for investments in
the housing incentive fund. The amount of the credit is equal to the amount
invested in the fund during the taxable year. The taxpayer may not claim

more than twenty percent of the credit in any taxabie vear. The amount of

credit that may be claimed in any taxable year which exceeds the
taxpayer's tax liability for the taxable year may be carried forward after the

taxable year in which the investment is made.

A partnership, subchapter S corporation, limited partnership, limited liability
company, or any other passthrough entity entitled to the credit under this
section must be considered to be the taxpayer for purposes of this section,

and the amount of the credit allowed must be determined at the
passthrough entity ievel. The amount of the total credit determined at the

entity level must be passed through to the partners, shareholders, or

members in proportion to their respective interests in the passthrough
entity.

A taxpayer may not be delinquent in payment of any state and local tax
liability to be eligible for a tax benefit under this section.

The agaregate amount of tax credits allowed under this section to all

eligible investors is limited to four million dollars.

Within thirty days after the date on which an investment in the housing
incentive fund is made, the Bank of North Dakota shall file with the tax

Page No. 2 11.0630.02002



commissioner and the director and provide to the investor compieted forms
prescribed by the tax commissioner which show as to each investment in

the fund the following;

a. Thename, address, and social security number or federal employer
identification number of the taxpayer who made the investment.
b. The dollar amount paid for the investment by the taxpayer.

¢. The date on which full consideration was received by the fund for the
investment."

Page 2, remove lines 12 and 13
Page 2, replace lines 21 through 27 with:

"SECTION 4. AMENDMENT. Section 57-35.3-07 of the North Dakota Century
Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

§7-35.3-07. Payment of tax.

Two-sevenths of the tax before credits allowed under section 57-35.3-05, less
the ereditcredits allowed under subsection 1 of section 57-35.3-05 and section 2 of this
Act, must be paid to the commissioner on or before April fifteenth of the year in which
the return is due, regardless of any extension of the time for filing the return granted
under section 57-35.3-06. Five-sevenths of the tax before credits allowed under section
57-35.3-05, less the credit allowed under subsection 2 of section 57-35.3-05, must be
paid to the commissioner on or before January fifteenth of the year after the return is
due. Payment must be made by check, draft, or money order, payable to the
commissioner, or as prescribed by the commissioner under subsection 15 of section
57-01-02.

SECTION 5. A new subdivision to subsection 7 of section 57-38-30.3 of the
North Dakota Century Code is created and enacted as follows:

Housing incentive fund tax credit under section 2 of this Act."

Renumber accordingly

Page No. 3 11.0630.02002



Become a member of HAND:
Who can belong?

Any individual or organization that has a
concern with housing issues in the state -
whether those issues are homelessness,
affordability/limited income, special
needs/accessibility, availability, etc.

~ =\ Housing Allance
. "'North' Dakota

Benefits of joining HAND

* Increase awareness of housing
opportunities for North Dakota citizens;

© Ensure every North Dakotan has access

to decent, safe, affordable, accessible
place to live;

* Positively impact Community Develop-
ment and housing for North Dakota citi-
Zens;

¢ Build stronger and longer term housing
relationships;

e Assist in the development of statewide
housing policy; and

° Strengthen the link between housing
and economic stability.

For more information or to become a

member please contact:

Tom Alexander Ensuring every North
Email: tom.alexander@minotstateu.edu o 2 EQ »Q&Q: \.~ as access to a
Phone: 1.800.233.1737 M.umum w

= 4 decent, safe, affordable,
Or visit the HAND website at: =y

housingallianceofnd.or

accessible place to live.

g wet
P i
; \
R

Avdailable in Alternative Formats
P ‘J




=~ Ensuring everyNot

akotan'has access to a decent, safe; affordable;acces

i R P

m:u_m H.m_m.n,

Housing Alliance of North
Dakota (HAND) Mission:

The Housing Alliance of North Dakota is
a statewide network established to

identify and address the diverse unmet
housing needs in North Dakota.

HAND Vision:

A state where everyone has access to a
decent, safe, affordable, accessible place
to live.

HAND Values:

e Grassroots efforts with a local focus
having statewide applicability;

e Address any and/or all unmet housing
needs;

» Flexibility as needs and challenges
change;

e Address both rural and urban issues;
and

e Provide options that are based on need
and offer choice.

HAND Organizational Structure:

HAND is organized under the guidance of a
steering committee, In addition the follow-
ing HAND workgroups are in place:
Structure and Resource Development
Membership and Participation
Education and Marketing
Legislative and Partnership
HAND is independent and private in its
operation.

HAND Principles:

Work to promote the fact that housing is a

- basic human need;

Work to make housing a top priority for all
North Dakotans;

Educate others to see that without housing
all other activities, including work, are
unattainable;

Work to achieve the development and
adoption of a uniform, statewide housing
policy; and

Work to encompass a full range of unmet
housing needs for all populations, in all ar-
eas of the state.

Who will benefit from HAND's

work?
All North Dakotans will benefit.

Why it is important;

As one of the basic needs of life, housing is
important to all of us. In North Dakota,
with our aging population, the diversity
between urban and rural needs, economic
stresses, weather extremes, limited re-
sources, and the special needs of various
groups, we must make every effort to en-
sure that all of the citizens of this state
have access to decent, safe, affordable
accessible housing.

Activities & Functions of HAND:

¢ Education and Advocacy;

¢ Assess and Identify Housing Needs and
Data;

* Networking;
e Communication and Sharing; and
s Efficient and Effective Use of Re-

sgurces.

This product was developed under the North Dakota Medicaid Infra-
structure Grant, Award Number: 1QACMS300054/04; CFDA No.,
93.768 from the U.S, Department of Health and Human Services
Center for Medicare and Medicaid Services received by the North
Dakota Center for Persons with Disabilities, However, these contents
do not necessarily represent the policy of the U, ment of
Health and Human Services and the North D T for Persons
with Disabilities.




‘ h Testimony
' Senate Bill 2210 - Housing Incentive Fund

Senate Appropriations
Senator Holmberg, Chairman
January 21, 2011

Chairman Holmberg, members of the Senate Appropriations Committee, |
am Tom Alexander, Project Director for the ND Medicaid Infrastructure Grant, a
project of the North Dakota Center for Persons with Disabilities at Minot State
University. | am providing testimony today in support of SB 2210 as Chair of the
Housing Alliance of North Dakota (HAND) board of directors.

The Housing Alliance of ND is a statewide network (please see a list of
current HAND members) established to identify and address the diverse unmet
housing needs of North Dakotan's. Some general principles which HAND

operates from include the following:

e Works to promote the fact that housing is a basic human need;
e Works to make housing a top priority for all North Dakotans;

e Educate others to see that without housing all other activities, including
work, are unattainable;

e Works to achieve the development and adoption of a uniform, statewide
housing policy; and

e Works to encompass a full range of unmet housing needs for all
populations, in all areas of the state.

(See HAND brochure for more information.)

A safe and decent place to live is the cornerstone of a high quality of life.
North Dakota is a great place to live, but rehabilitation and replacement of aging
housing stock will be key to maintaining livability in many North Dakota

communities. New and refurbished housing adds to the value of the

neighborhood and community and further enhances the quality of life for

1|Page



everyone. Housing is an investment that yields returns and creates revenue at all
levels—income taxes from construction jobs; sales taxes on materials; property
taxes; and ongoing participation in the local economy by the new residents and
those who are able to afford to continuing living in a community. Investment in
housing provides substantial financial benefits for a community as welt as the
basic benefit of having new and available housing options for families.

SB 2210 would establish a Housing Incentive Fund. The fund would create
a special revolving fund in the state treasury of 54 million for the biennium. After
a public hearing, the Housing Finance Agency would create an annual allocation
plan for the distribution of the Housing Incentive Fund. At least twenty-five
percent of the fund would be used to benefit communities with a population of
ten thousand individuals or less, regardless of the incomes of the households
benefited. At least fifty percent of the fund would be used to benefit households
with incomes at not more than fifty percent of the area median income. The
agency may cotlect a reasonable administrative fee from the fund.

The Housing Finance Agency shall adopt rules for the fund to address the
unmet affordable housing needs through loans, forgivable loans, grants,
subsidies, guarantees, and credit enhancements. These forms of assistance may
be used solely for:

a. New construction, rehabilitation, or acquisition of an affordable
multifamily or a single-family residence;

b. Gap assistance, matching funds, and accessibility improvements;

C. Single-family down payment or gap assistance that does not exceed the
amount necéssary to qualify for a loan using underwriting standards

acceptable for secondary market financing. If there is a profit from a sale,
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either a proportion or the entire amount of single-family down payment or
gap assistance is subject to recapture based on the level of assistance and
household income; and

d. Rental assistance, emergency assistance, or targeted supportive services

designated to prevent homelessnhess.

Eligible recipients include units of local, state, and tribal government; local and
tribal housing authorities; community action agencies; regional planning councils;
and nonprofit organizations and for-profit developers of affordable housing.
Individuals may not receive direct assistance from the fund.

Any assistance that is repaid or returned must be deposited in the fund and
appropriated on a continuing basis. Upon request, the ND Housing Finance -
Agency shall report to the Industrial Commission the activities of the Housing
Incentive Fund.

Why do we need ND state funds for housing issues? Aren’t there enough

Federal programs to fund all of ND’s needs? While it may appear that there are

more than enough Federal funds available, many of these funds have restrictions
on their use that makes them unavailable or limits the availability; some are one-
time only funds; and the amount available to ND is generally the smallest portion
(due to ND’s small population). The need in energy-impacted areas of ND is
pushing the ability of the state to respond: all Federal funds are in use and the tax
credits are oversubscribed (of 14 applications, only 5 could be funded}. Many
Federal funds have matching requirements and ND State funds would extend the

use of federal dollars by being used as match.
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Why 4 million dollars? The housing needs in ND range from low-income to

market rate apartments, from moderate homeownership to barrier-free homes
and apartments, from special needs housing to workforce housing. The amount
requested is a small portion, spread over two years that would help the housing
providers (both developers and service providers) leverage existing funds to
create and maintain low and moderate income housing.

Isn’t this a hodge podge of unrelated items? The bill is crafted to allow the

greatest flexibility in addressing the housing needs in ND and provides a list of
tools to address needs as they change. Focusing on a single issue today could

outdate the fund tomorrow.

What are the needs in ND? They range from workforce housing in the

energy impacted areas of the west to the special needs populations across the
state, and include the increasing homeless population as well as the increasing
senior population.

Why doesn’t the bill focus on the energy impacted areas of western ND?

All forms of housing are related: as demand increases, rents and housing prices
rise, forcing lower income families and the elderly to seek other housing, which
may not be available or suitable. Flexibility in the bill is key — housing needs
change and this bill can accommodate those changes. The Housing Finance
Agency has a great track record in developing allocation plans for distribution of
tax credits that are responsive to the changing needs of the state. This bill would
use this expertise to make sure the Housing Incentive Fund dollars are similarly

targeted.

Why does the Fund target 50% to families with incomes less than 50% of

Median Family Income (MF1)? The rising number of high-paying jobs, especially in
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western ND, is putting pressure on the number of units available for low income

individuals, families and the elderly. These units are harder to build and maintain
due to the lower rent structure and special building needs. By specifying a portion
of the funds to be available for households with incomes not more than 50% of

MFI, assistance will be available for this population.

Why do private and non-profit developers need public funds? Making

public funds available encourages private and non-profit developers to develop
housing that carries more risk: lower rents, elevators, accessibility features, and

unusual configurations such as group homes.

Why do communities with populations of 10,000 or less need a set-aside?

Communities with higher populations attract goods and services with the net

result of decreasing cost. Setting aside a portion of the funds for smaller

communities should encourage these communities to become more viable.

Affordable housing should be a priority in public policy. Affordable housing
options for all residents of our communities is needed so that no one has to
choose between basic necessities like food or medication and housing. The
elderly, people with disabilities, and disadvantaged are part of all communities
and require certain services including appropriate housing choices. Housing policy
should center on providing the opportunity for all to have access to safe, decent
and affordable housing. Currently, ND does not have a public policy statement on
housing {piease see HAND Public Policy Platform).

Rural areas of the state face unique challenges in developing housing.

‘ Finding suitable housing in many rural North Dakota communities is a very

difficult task. In some areas, it has been a generation since new homes or
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apartments were built. In that time, both the economy and the needs of the
people have changed. In many rural communities, the cost to develop new
housing or to refurbish existing housing often exceeds the final valuation of the
home upon completion. Because of this valuation gap, there are few developers
willing to speculate on new housing in rural communities without assistance. To
ensure the affordability of housing, financial and technical support from
government and non-profit organizations is needed in rural areas.

That concludes my testimony. On behalf of the HAND we encourage you to
recommend a do pass on SB 2210. | would be happy to answer any questions that

you have at this time.
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HeusmgA[hance
I'North Dakota

Ensuring every North Dakotan has access to a decent, safe, affordable, accessible place to live.

Housing Alliance of ND - Membershi

AARP - North Dakota
Centre, Inc.
Dakota Center for Independent Living
Domestic Violence and Rape Crisis Center
ND APSE
Hettinger County JDA
Independence, Inc.
Interagency Program for Assistive Technology (IPAT)
Mental Health America of ND
Missouri Valley Coalition for Homeless People, Inc.
ND Association of Builders
ND Coalition for Homeless People, Inc.

North Dakota Center for Persons with Disabilities
North Dakota Council on Abused Women's Services
North Dakota Department of Human Services
North Dakota Disabilities Advocacy Consortium
North Dakota Economic & Prosperity Alliance
North Dakota Housing Finance Agency
Prairie Harvest Mental Health
Protection & Advocacy Project
Red River Human Services
Rural Collaborative
Salvation Army
Urban Development Department City of Grand Forks
USDA Rural Development
Youthworks

YWCA Cass Clay
. Jim Moench

Linda Wright




o\ Housing Alnce

1 North Dakota

Ensuring every North Dakotan has access to a decent, safe, affordable, uccessible place to live.

PUBLIC POLICY PLATFORM

The Housing Alliance of North Dakota (HAND) is a statewide organization of individuals
and housing and client service professionals. HAND’'s mission is to ensure every North
Dakotan’s access to a decent, safe, affordable, accessible place to live. Government
bodies (local, state and national) play a critical role in establishing the legal and social
environment within which services are provided to the residents of North Dakota.
Recognizing the importance of government to its membership, HAND maintains an active
public policy platform.

HAND advocates for government policies that:

« Reflect a philosophy that all North Dakotans have access to a decent, safe,
affordable and accessible place to live.

e Recognize affordable housing as a necessary component of economic
development.

« Adhere to the “housing first” doctrine.
o Direct state and local resources to meet the housing needs of the state.

+ Foster development of affordable housing for all communities across the state,
both rural and urban.

e Support independent living by creating opportunities, encouraging choices, and
advancing equal access for all people.

With regard to the actions of government bodies in the policy areas listed above, HAND
shall:
« Advocate for the adoption of a formal State housing policy that ensures decent,
safe, affordable, accessible housing.

+« Promote legislation that addresses the housing needs of citizens in North Dakota.

« Elevate awareness of executive and legislative actions and initiatives at the
federal, state and local level.

« Inform decision-makers on the need for decent, safe, affordable, accessible
housing.

« Provide timely updates to the membership on critical issues and actions.
+ Orchestrate membership voices to influence action.

« Develop cooperative relationships with other like-minded organizations to ensure
every North Dakotan’s access to a decent, safe, affordable, accessible place to
live.
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. SB 2210 - Housing Incentive Fund
Organizational Support

AARP of ND

Abused Adult Resource Center

Children's Defense Fund

Community Action Partnership - Dickinson/Williston

Community Action Partnership-Minot

Community Action Program Reg. VIl - Bismarck

Community Action Region VI - Jamestown

Dakota Prairie Community Action - Devils Lake

Fargo Housing and Redevelopment Authority

Fargo-Moorhead Coalition for Homeless Persons

interagency Program for Assistive Technology’'s Consumer Advisory Committee

Lutheran Social Services of North Dakota

Minot Area Homeless Coalition

Minot Housing Authority

Missouri Valley Habitat for Humanity

ND Council on Abused Women's Services

ND Homeless Coalition

North Dakota Conference of Social Welfare

North Dakota Disabilities Advocacy Consortium

Prairie Harvest Mental Health - Grand Forks

Red River Valley Community Action - Grand Forks

Region V Community Development Corporation, Fargo

Southeastern North Dakota Community Action Agency - Fargo

North Dakota Association of Persons in Supported Employment

North Dakota Center for Persons with Disabilities

North Dakota Economic Security & Prosperity Alliance

North Dakota Women's Network

ND Protection & Advocacy Project

Grand Forks Homes

Rehab Services, Inc. - Minot

Dakota Center for Independent Living

North Dakota League of Cities

Homestead Place - Grand Forks

Continental Homes - Grand Forks

Grand Forks Housing Authority

North Dakota Association of Builders

Economic Development of North Dakota

Updated: 1-21-11
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SENATE APPROPRIATIONS COMMITTEE
TESTIMONY IN SUPPORT OF SB 2010: “Housing Incentive Fund”
January 21,2011, 10:15 AM — Harvest Room

As a rural ND community developer and a board member of EDND I would like to

address the housing needs communities are experiencing throughout the state.

I realize the housing needs in the oil impact area have been studied and are well defined
but the needs are boarder. 1 think you will all recognize the availability of affordable
housing is a fundamental element that provides North Dakota Communities the ability
to sustain the community as well as stimulate economic development. With the present
economic conditions in the state, a number of “RURAL?” communities have been able
to create economic activity thus creating jobs. But what are the limitations to further
development and opportunities? Why do the rural communities so ofien get “passed
over” by businesses relocating to the state or expanding? The primary question s
“WHERE WILL WE LIVE”? Without quality affordable housing our
communities have limited sustainability options, no growth opportunity, the rural
areas continue to lose population, the schools close and the communities viability

continues to expire.

Throughout the state of North Dakota the existing housing inventory is aging and there
is very limited new housing being constructed. In many of our meetings with economic
developers, our city councils and housing boards that have been established in the cities

we continue to ask what are the problems to achieve housing development?
The problems that typically occur in the rural North Dakota communities are:

v Developers typically perceive there is greater risk building in a smaller
community and do not enter those markets
v' Size of projects limit the économic returns

v" Building in rural communities can sometimes be more costly
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o Limited availability to materials and labor
v Financing housing projects in rural communities typically present unique
challenges
o Comparable sales are limited or non-existent
o Secondary Markets will not buy the loans
o Loan to value ratio is often 30-40 percent which limits the lenders
participation
v State and Federal programs that might be able to assist are often complex and

developers/lenders will shy away from them.

It is critical we address this need “Constructing New Housing (both single family and
multi-family) or do Substantial Rehab to Existing Homes That Already Exist But are in

Poor Condition” that could provide additional housing units at a lesser cost.

‘ This past year the North Dakota Housing Finance Agency established a pilot program to
provide incentives for private sector investment in housing development in difficult to
develop areas in the state. The program provided for housing project financing
incentives. The consensus of developers and communities was it worked and provided
opportunities for project development in rural communities that otherwise would not
have been accomplished. This bill would provide the NDHFA funding to continue that
model program.

Rural communities would encourage your support of SB 2010 that will provide

“Dollars” for the “Housing Incentive Fund”.

John Phillips, Vice President
Economic Development North Dakota



Purpose:

Difficult to Develop Areas:

Application:

Eligible Applicant:

Eligible Housing Projects:

Eligible Investors/Contributors:

Eligible Investment/Contributions:

Maximum/Minimum Project Investment:

North Dakota Housing Finance Agenc

Rural Housing Investment Incentive Pilot Program

To encourage investment in housing in Difficult to
Develop Areas (DDA) of North Dakota.

Communities with a population of 5,000 or less and who
can demonstrate an unmet housing need or housing
shortage.

Agency will hold an RFP competitive process.
Applications will be judged on financial feasibility,
impact on a DDA, demonstrated need, and project
readiness to  proceed including applicant's
demonstrated ability to raise capital. The applicant must

-be able to demonstrate that this project would not have

been feasible (built) without this assistance.

City, County, or Tribal Housing Authorities; Non-profit or
for-profit developers; or any entity or individual acting in
a developer role.

New construction of Single Family and Multi-Family
housing. Substantial Rehab of structures that create
additional housing units.

Individuals;  corporations;  financial  institutions;
municipal governmental entities; and other businesses.

Cash, donated land and infrastructure improvements;
buildings; property tax incentives, and other municipal
incentives that reduces the gap on project feasibility.

For new construction, the Agency will match, on a dollar
for dollar basis, the eligible investment/contribution up
to a combined total of the lesser of 1) the gap between
cost of construction and appraised value; or 2) 20% of
the cost of construction. For purposes of determining
agency match, cost of construction is defined as site
acquisition, hard construction costs, associated soft

.costs. and. acceptable profit. margins. Recognizable

construction costs for new single family homes will be
capped at $190,000 and at $125,000 per unit for
multifamily properties. For rehabilitation, the Agency will
match private investment up to a combined total of 50%
of the hard construction cost of the rehabilitation.
Rehabilitation must meet a minimum level of $40,000 in
hard construction costs per unit to be eligible. For
purposes of determining the match, hard construction
costs for rehabilitation will be capped at $100,000 per
unit for both single and multi-family units. Profit
margins of 10% or less for combined builder profit,
builder overhead and general requirements and 15% or



Recapture

Available Funds:

Processing Fees:

Eligible Costs:

less for developer fees will be considered reasonable.
These limitations will be applied against hard
construction costs when determining reasonableness.

Single family homeownership units will be subject to full
recapture by the Agency using a shared equity
relationship during the first five years of ownership with
a phase out of recapture over the next five years
(forgiveness of 20% each year). Agency funds in a
multifamily project wifl be structured as deferred loans
payable out of positive cash flow after appropriate
reserves are fully funded.

Agency will commit up to $400,000 of reserves and will
use best efforts to allocate 50% for multi-family and
50% for single-family development. Muiti-family
projects will be limited to no more than $100,000 per
project. A community will be limited to no more than
25% of the total available funds.

$500 due at application, 1% of amount of Agency
investment in project due upon award.

New Construction: Pre-development costs including
site acquisition, hard and normal soft costs associated
with new construction as well as financing costs are
eligible.
Rehabilitation: Only hard construction costs will be
eligible.



North Dakota Housing Finance Agency
Rural Housing Investment Incentive Program

Pilot Program Activity Summary

INTRODUCTION

The North Dakota Housing Finance Agency {the Agency) is dedicated to maximizing
housing opportunities for all North Dakotans and proactively addressing the housing
needs of low and moderate income households.

During the past legislative session, the Agency was directed to establish a pilot program
to provide incentives for private sector investment in housing development in difficult to
develop areas of the state. This directive was provided by amendment to SB 2014
(section 14) of the Agency's budget bill and authorized the use of Agency reserves for
the program. The purpose of the pilot program is to demonstrate that private or local
investment can spur housing development in difficult to develop areas. The Agency has
committed up to $400,000 of its reserves for this pilot program.

AWARD SUNMMARY
in December 2009, a Request for Proposals (RFP) was issued for interested parties to
be considered for funding under this pilot program, named the Rural Housing Investment
Incentive Program (RHIIP). Eleven applications for thirteen activities requesting a total
of $970,000 were received in response to the RFP. A selection committee comprised of
the Executive Director, the Planning Division Director, and a Planning Division staffer
evaluated and issued awards based on the following criteria:
« Did the applicant provide clear evidence of an unmet housing need or housing
shortage in a community of less than 5000 population?
e Was the applicant able to clearly demonstrate that the proposed activity would
address this need?
¢ Was the applicant able to demonstrate that the proposed activity wouid not be
feasible without the investment of Agency Pilot funds?
« Did the applicant provide evidence of both short and long term feasibility of the
project based on an Agency investment of $100,000 or less?
» Did the applicant provide a reasonable timeline for start and completion of the
activity? Priority was given to the earliest achievable completion dates.
« Was the applicant able to demonstrate the ability to raise capital through private
investment?
__The following projects best fulfilled these criteria, and were therefore awarded funding in
accordance with RHIIP program parameters;

Applicant Activity Location = Amount Awarded
Underwood Area Economic Development  Underwood $18,000

Lutheran Social Services Housing, Inc. Maddock $50,000

Eddy County Housing Authority New Rockford $50,000

Lutheran Social Services Housing, inc. Parshall $100,000
Whitetait Properties, LLC Velva $38,366

Lutheran Social Services Housing, Inc. Stanley $100,000
Lutheran Social Services Housing, Inc. Beach $43,634*

Program Total: $400,000

RHIIP Activity Summary 1



*One project received a conditional approval based on their initial application packet.
However, upon review of significant changes contained within the final application, the loan
committee determined the project no longer required RHIIP funding in order to be feasible.
An RFP was reissued in July, and the remaining funds were awarded in August to LSS
Housing for a project in Beach.

PROJECTS IN DETAIL
Underwood ~ $18,000 Award
= Applicant: Underwood Area Economic Development Corporation
» Purpose: New construction of 1 single family home for speculative resale.
= Total Project Cost: $186,000
» Anticipated Value Upon Completion: $150,000
» Projected Value Gap: $36,000
= Sources of Private or Local Matching Investment:
o $10,000 in owner equity from the developer, Building innovations
o $2,000in land from the City of Underwood
o $3,000 in land from the Underwood Economic Development Corporation
o $5,000 in the form of a forgivable loan from the City of Underwood
= Without RHIP funding, and the required matching investment generated by it,
the gap between cost of construction and appraised value would render
construction of this home not cost-effective.

Maddock ~ $50,000 Award
» Applicant: Lutheran Social Services Housing, Inc.
= Purpose: Major rehabilitation of a foreciosed and abandoned building into 8
units of rental housing.
» Tofal Project Cost: $371,900
» Anticipated Vaiue Upon Completion: $180,000
» Projected Value Gap. $191,900
» Sources of Private or Local Matching Investment:
o $20,000 cash contribution from local major employer Summers
Manufacturing;
o $30,000 cash contribution from the Maddock Economic Development
Corporation.
= Without RHIIP and matching equity funding, $100,000 in additional debt would
be required in the project. The increased project income needed to service that
additional debt would require rents to be, on average, $87.58 higher than
currently projected.

New Rockford ~ $50,000 Award
" 7 ’s Applicant: Eddy County Housing Authority
= Purpose: New construction of 4 units of rental housing.
= Total Project Cost: $525,000
= Anticipated Value Upon Completion: $300,000
» Projected Value Gap: $225,000
» Sources of Private or Local Matching Investment:
o $50,000 owner cash contribution from Eddy County Housing Authority;
o $10,000 cash contribution from the New Rockford Area Betterment Corp.
= Without RHIIP and matching equity funding, $100,000 in additional debt would
be required in the project. The increased project income needed to service that
additional debt would require rents to be, on average, $126.66 higher than

RHIIP Activity Summary 2



currently anticipated. At that rent level, the units may be unaffordable to some
. jow-income households.
Parshall ~ $100,000 Award

» Applicant; Lutheran Social Services Housing, Inc.

» Purpose. New construction of 20 units of rental housing.

» Tofal Project Cost: $2,344,000

» Anticipated Value Upon Completion: $1,000,000

» Projected Value Gap: $1,344,000

» Sources of Private or Local Maiching Investment:

o $21,000 in land from the City of Parshall;

o $10,000 in infrastructure from the City of Parshall;

o $25,000 in a soft note from Mountrail County Housing Board;
o $44,000 in owner cash contribution from LSS Housing, Inc.

» Without RHIIP and matching equity funding, $200,000 in additional debt would
be required in the project. The increased project income needed to service that
additional debt would require rents to be, on average, $119.02 higher than
currently anticipated. At that rent level, the units would be unaffordable for very
low income households. Several units in this project will be set aside for very-
low income households (those with incomes at or below 50% of area median).

Velva ~ $38,366 Award
» Applicant: Whitetail Properties LLC
» Purpose: Major rehabilitation of 3 uninhabitable units of rental housing.
» Total Project Cost: $153,464
. » Anticipated Value Upon Completion: $65,000
* Projected Value Gap: $88,464
= Sources of Private or Local Matching Investment:
o $13,000 in building equity from the owner Whitetail Properties;
o $26,000 in donated improvements from the owner Whitetail Properties.
= Without RHIIP and matching equity funding, $76,732 in debt would be required
in the project. It is estimated that the increased project income needed to
service that debt would require rents to be, on average, $168.80 higher than
currently anticipated. At that level, rents would be well in excess of the HUD-
published fair market rents for McHenry County.

Stanley ~ $100,000 Award
= Applicant: Lutheran Social Services Housing, Inc.
= Purpose: Major rehabilitation of a former hospital into 17 units of rental housing.
» Total Project Cost: $2,000,000
» Anticipated Value Upon Completion: $900,000
T : -»-Projected -Value-Gap:-$1,100,000 - - -
= Sources of Cormmitted Private or Local Matching Investment:
o $50,000 in a soft note from Mountrail County Housing Board;
o $50,000 cash contribution from the American Lutheran Church;
o $50,000 cash contribution from the Otto Bremer Foundation.
* RHIIP funding, and the matching equity investment generated by it, helps
reduce the massive value gap seen in this project. Without the infusion of a
. large amount of equity, the project would not be cost-effective.

RAIIP Activity Summary 3



Beach ~ $43,634 Award
= Applicant: Lutheran Social Services Housing, Inc.
= Purpose: Creation of 12 additional units of rental housing through the major
rehabilitation of 6 uninhabitable units, and the new construction of 6 senior-
friendly units.
» Total Project Cost: $1,032,550
= Anticipated Value Upon Completion: $660,000
* Projected Value Gap: $372,550
» Sources of Commilted Private or Local Matching Investment:
o $12,400 in donated infrastructure from the City of Beach;
o $40,000 owner equity contribution from Lutheran Social Services.
*RHIIP funding, and the matching equity investment generated by it, helps
reduce the massive value gap seen in this project. Without the infusion of a
large amount of equity, the project would not be cost-effective.

RHIP Activity Summary 4
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Testimony of
Economic Development Association of North Dakota
SB 2210
January 21, 2011

Chairman Holmberg and members of the committee, my name is Cal Klewin. | am
representing the Economic Development Association of North Dakota (EDND).

EDND is the voice of the state’s economic development community and provides
networking for its 80 members, which include development organizations, communities,
businesses and state agencies. Qur mission is to increase cconomic opportunities for
residents of the state by supporting primary sector growth, professionalism among
economic development practitioners and cooperation among development organizations.

EDND recognizes that the availability of housing, particularly atfordable housing, 1s a
fundamental element that provides North Dakota communities the ability to foster
economic development. EDND supports the efforts of North Dakota communities and
regions to advance legislation that will promote the development of affordable housing in
areas where the lack of affordable housing is limiting primary sector growth.

EDND supports SB 2210.
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TESTIMONY PRESENTED TO ND SENATE APPROPRIATIONS COMMITTEE
IN SUPPORT OF $B2210: “Housing Incentive Fund”
January 21, 2011, 10:15 a.m.

Lutheran Social Services Housing is a non-profit housing developer that was established in 2008 to help
address North Dakota housing challenges, primarily in rural communities. We accomplish our work both
by trying to preserve existing affordable housing that is at risk of being lost because of issues related to
capital investment and/or management challenges, and also by engaging in the construction of new
housing in communities where supply is lacking. Our units serve both today’s workforce and retirees,
depending on community needs.

E
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Housing issues affect all corners of the state, albeit with different economic drivers and varying degrees
of urgency. For some communities, their greatest housing challenge is an aging housing stock that,
without reinvestment, will become unlivable and, essentially be lost from the inventory of housing units.
For others, ecanomic drivers have created housing market forces that make it very difficult for people to
find safe, decent, affordable places to live.

The question | always ask myself is, if the need exists, why is a particular community’s housing need not
being met? Why isn’t development happening?

| believe the answer is that, from a purely economic perspective, the ratio of risk to reward is out of
balance. | would like to make two points as itlustration.

1. The perceived risk of rural housing development is higher,

a. In communities with historically inactive, untested markets, it is hard to find comparable
projects that have succeeded and/or failed by which you can gauge how a new project
will be accepted by the market.

b. A smaller population base means housing projects have to be able to capture a
relatively larger share of a smaller market to succeed.

c. The relatively small size of the housing market makes it difficult to maintain appropriate
market share.

2. Economic returns are usually greater elsewhere.

a. The cost to build in smaller communities is the same or higher than it is in larger
communities, and the capacity for rent is typically lower.

b. Smaller projects make it hard to achieve cost savings generated from economies of
scale.

/ c. Appraisal gaps require larger equity investment than would be required in markets
where cost and values track more closely to each other.

So how does Lutheran Social Services Housing do what it does, which is to develop affordable mixed
income rental housing in rural ND? We:

Testimony in support of 582210
Submitted by Lutheran Social Services Housing
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1. identify communities ready to tackle housing challenges and develop partnerships. We truly
believe that together we can do more than any of us can do alone.

2. Define a project that will work in the community {new construction v preservation, tenant mix,
location, etc).

3. Develop, own and manage the property as a long-term community partner, in the end creating a
community asset that will contribute to long-term community success.

Developing a project that can overcome the issues noted above requires us as a developer to mix
several funding sources to help make a project financeable. A typical project for us will include five to
eight separate funders that are secured during a 12-18 month-long advance process, often including:

* City/County economic and job development authorities

¢ ND Housing Finance Agency loan products

¢ Federal funds passed through the Department of Commerce to Regional Councils and regional

housing development organizations
e Private philanthropic partners (churches, individuals, foundations)
e Bank financing {via tax exempt bonds, guaranteed debt, or conventional commercial loans)

Regardiess of the financing sources, every project is essentially financed the same way: with a
combination of debt (money you pay back) and equity (money you are not required to pay back).

On average, t¢ make project financing work and to help keep rents as affordable as we can, we need to
raise 35-50% of the total development cost in project equity. Why? If a “typical” multifamily project can
be financed with 20-25% equity, why does it take so much more to develop affordable housing in rural
communities?

The short answer is that you design a project with a particular balance of equity and debt for two
reasons; to help keep rents affordable and to deal with loan-to-value lending requirements.

1. Affordable Rents. The more equity you can bring to a project, the less debt you will need. Less
debt means a smaller loan payment for the project. And a smaller loan payment means that you
need less income to make the pro forma work. Bottom line: you can charge people lower rents.

2. LTV Requirements. In the current bank examining environment, most banks cannot make loans
with a loan-to-value ratio in excess of 70-75%. A simple example illustrates the impact this LTV
requirement has on a project’s ability to borrow money for development. In the example below,
we assume that the property appraises for 20% less {$200,000} than it cost to develop.

S1 million
$800,000

Project cost to develop
Project value {as per appraisal)

The maximum borrowing ability as per bank requirements is a 75% Loan-to-Value {LTV}. In
other words, the size of loan cannot exceed 75% of property value,

75% of total development cost = $750,000
But...
75% of value (as per appraisal) = $600,000

Testimony in support of SB2210
Submitted by Lutheran Social Services Housing
Page 2013



In the end, even if the project income can support the payments on a larger loan, you can only
borrow $600,000 toward the development of the project. The remaining $400,000 of the total 51
million development cost will have to be secured by the developer as an up-front equity investment.

So instead of having to bring in 25% equity {which would be the case if the development cost and
appraised value were equal), a developer now has to bring in 40% equity. The difference between
the two {in this case, $150,000) is the gap commonly referred to as the “appraisal gap”.

. The Housing incentive Fund that is being proposed in SB2210 can provide an important source of

' equity for housing projects across the state of North Dakota. The incentive is designed to
encourage the development of housing that is needed to serve a variety of kinds of North Dakota
households, it leverages other resources that are already being devoted to the creation of
affordable housing, and in my opinion, is an effective way to help communities with a criticat
concern, which is making sure they have suitable housing available to people who want to call their
communities home.

Lutheran Social Services Housing is committed to helping North Dakota communities succeed by
providing housing. We support the Housing tncentive Fund outlined in $82210, and believe that a
resource like this could truly help support continued economic growth in communities across North
Dakota. -

Respectfully submitted by:
Jessica Thomasson, Director

Lutheran Social Services Housing, Inc.
A 501c3 subsidiary of Lutheran Social Services of North Dakota

Without housing,
There is no community,

Contact Infermation

Email - jthomasson@lssnd.org
Web - www.lssnd.org/housing
Phone - 701-271-3207

Employers

can't hire

Famities can't
make a
community their
home

Housing powers the gears of growth.

Testimony in support of SB2210
Submitted by Lutheran Social Services Housing
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P.O. Box 2081

Bismarck, ND 58502-2081
701.222.1854
veronica.zietz@thearcofbismarck.org
www.thearcofbismarck.org

Testimony of Support Senate Bill 2210
Appropriations Committee
January 21, 2011

Good morning Chairmen Holmberg and members of Appropriations Committee. My name is Veronica
Zietz (#99); t am the Executive Director at The Arc of Bismarck and 'm here today representing both
The Arc of Bismarck and The Arc of Cass County. The Arc is an organization that provides education
and advocacy to people with disabilities to foster empowerment and full inclusion in the community.

The Arc strongly supports Senate Bill 2210 which establishes an affordable housing fund within the
state treasury. This fund would provide opportunities for low to moderate income families and
individuals in North Dakotan to obtain affordable housing. This will aid individuals, especiaily those
with disabilities in the areas of gap assistance, rental assistance and accessibility improvements. This is
necessary because people with disabilities often have difficulty finding affordable housing. For
example, in 2008, the annual income of a single individuai receiving SSI payments was 58,016, that is
equal to about 18 percent of the national median income for a one-person household and almost 30
percent below the 2008 federal poverty level of $10,400. This gap between income and housing
expense leads to many problems for people with disabilities; for instance, it leaves many people unable
to live independently or leaves them living in substandard environments all of which lead to poor
quality of life, increased health issues and dependency on government programs.

The Supreme Court Gimstead decision states that people with disabilities need to be in the least
restrictive setting possible, this means that people need to be living independently in the community;
one barrier to this federal mandate is a lack of affordable housing in North Dakota. A recent economic
boom has pushed many locals including those with disabilities out of their homes, in order to
accommodate transient workers with greater incomes. While the laws of supply and demand are
obviously at work here, North Dakota residents need to have access to safe and affordable housing. |
believe this bill could help remedy the problem of housing shortages and rising housing costs.

This bill will not only help people with disabilities obtain housing, but will provide many benefits to
communities. First, this bill will provide local businesses and agencies the opportunity to develop
affordable housing, which could boost job opportunities and enhance economic growth by employing
local developers and contractors to build and refurbish homes. Second, this bill will also aid
communities in dealing with problems such as homelessness and blight that can be seen in many of
North Dakota’s communities that have affordable housing shortages.

| believe Senate Bill 2210 is a wonderful opportunity for all North Dakotans, especially peopie with
disabilities. This bill holds many benefits for communities in our state by addressing the issue of
affordable housing. | urge the committee to support Senate Bill 2210. Thank you for your time and
consideration.



Testimony
Senate Bill 2210 — Housing Incentive Fund
Senate Appropriations
Senator Holmberg, Chairman

January 21, 2011

Chairman Holmberg, members of the Senate Appropriations Committee, my
name is Royce Schultze, Executive Director of Dakota Center for Independent

Living, Inc. | am here today to provide testimony in favor of SB 2210.

One of the services we provide to people with disabilities is to assist them in
finding affordable, accessible housing. We also provide nursing facility transitions
thru the Money Follows Person Project. In providing these services, our biggest
challenge is finding affordable, accessible housing. There is a huge need for
accessible apartments and it’s nearly impossible to find an accessible single family
home, this | know from personal experience. Of our transitions of individuals
from nursing facilities only one has been able to use a Section Eight Voucher. The
rest have had to move into a Section Eight Project Based building where the
population is mostly elderly (transition ages are 20’s-70’s) or move in with family
members which should be by choice and not because they don’t have anywhere
else to go. This severely limits choices for people with disabilities in choosing
where like want to live independently and these needs to be addressed. | think SB
2210 will alleviate a portion of this. In conclusion, | support SB 2210 and would

encourage you to do same. | would be happy to answer any questions. Thank You.
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Testimony by Michael Anderson, Executive Director

Senate Appropriations Committee

Chairman Holmberg and members of the Senate Appropriations Commitiee, my name
is Mike Anderson, executive director for the North Dakota Housing Finance Agency
(Agency). Since SB 2210 names the Agency as the administering agency for the
Affordable Housing Fund (Fund) I am here today to offer the Agency’s perspective on
administering the Fund, as well as answer any questions.

However, before I do that I want to let you know that the Fund and the proposed
activity do fall within the Agency’s authorized activities as defined in NDCC 54-17.
While our assigned Assistant Attorney General is still reviewing this bill and that review
could lead to some recommended technical changes, we do know that the general goals
and objectives of the Affordable Housing Fund are consistent with our intended mission
set forth in ND Century Code to provide housing finance programs for persons and
families of low or moderate income or to otherwise assist a developing community
address an unmet housing need or alleviate a housing shortage.

Further, I can say with confidence that, at the onset, the Agency has the capacity to
administer the Fund with minimal cost to the Agency and without the need of additional
FTE authority. We currently have internal systems in place that are compatible with the
proposed process for establishing a plan for distribution and monitoring the Fund
proceeds. I am referring to the development of an annual allocation plan, review and
scoring of project proposals, and awarding and monitoring successful proposals.

This system has been used by us for awarding federal Low Income Housing Tax
Credits, last year’s Rural Housing Investment Incentive Pilot Program, and a portion of
the Neighborhood Stabilization Program.

The bill requires the Fund proceeds be awarded through an annual allocation plan that
is developed and scrutinized through a public hearing process. This process gives
stakeholders, policy makers, and the general public the opportunity to provide input on
how and where the Funds will be allocated. As we do with an existing process for the
aforementioned programs, we anticipate this process would include a review of a draft
plan by our Advisory Board both before and after public hearings. The Advisory Board
would then make a recommendation to the Industrial Commission for its final adoption.

2624 Vermont Avenue * PO Box 1535 = Bismarck, North Dakota 58502-1535 www.ndhfa.org
Ph: 701/32B-B08B0 = Fax: 701/328-8090 = Toll Free: 800/292-8621 » BOO/366-6888 (TTY) info@ndhfa.ory



further define the priorities for use of the Fund. These could be defined geographically,
by housing type and tenure, by type of assistance, by population segments, or a
combination of some or all of the above. The plan should also provide for a scoring
mechanism for achieving these priorities and ultimately application selections.

‘ In addition to the set aside requirements defined in the bill, the allocation plan should

In order to leverage the Fund as much as possible, we would anticipate the allocation
plan would include a requirement for some form and level of match to be eligible. We
believe an allocation strategy should limit funding to only what is necessary to make a
project feasible. And finally, it is our philosophy that whenever feasible in achieving the
overall goals of the Fund and allocation plan, some form of repayment or recapture
provision is appropriate,

These strategies have been employed by the Agency in its history of distributing public
funds entrusted to us to administer. This system has transparency which leads to
accountability, it maximizes leveraging of public funds, it spreads the risk, and it also
incentivizes private investment.
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.. Doreen Riedman, Executive Officer
North Dakota Association of Butlders

Chairman Holmberg and members of the Senate

.

'Af)proprlatm‘ns Commnittee, the North Dakota Association of
Builders (NDAB), suppbrts Senate Bill 2210, relating to a Housing

Incentive Fund for our state.

The NDAB represents nearly 2,000 members statewide with

-employees numbering 46,589, We are affiliated with six local builders

associations in Bismarck-Mandan, Dickinson, Fargo-Moorhead, Grand
Forks, Minot, and Williston; and are all part of a larger federation, the
National Association of Home Builders (NAHB), which has over'160,000

‘

members.

We are proud members of the Housing Alliance of North
Dakota, and believe this Housing Incentive Fund is a smart step in

the right direction. It will assﬁsf with housing for low-income

families, for housing in rural areas, providing gap financing for

projects, and perhaps could be the last piece of the puzzle that will
help ensure that housing projects go forward.
“In addiﬁon, any proﬁts will go back into the fund to help it

'workipg for future housing needs. Having the North Dakota

"Housing Finance Agency as the oversight agency makes this effort

even stronger and more sen31ble
We. respectfully ask th1s comm1ttec to support Senate Bill

2210 to provide for a Housing Incentive Fund in our state.

C
1720 Burnt Boat Drive, Suite 207
K}

* Bismarck, ND 58503-0801  *#701/222-2401

-4 Fax: 7012223899  *www.ndbuild.com
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Senate Appropriations
SB 2210
January 21, 2011
Chairman Holmberg and members of the Senate Appropriations Committee. 1 am Paul
Ronningen, President of the North Dakota Conference of Social Welfare, Chair of the
North Dakota Economic Security and Prosperity Alliance and also the State Coordinator
tor the Children’s Defense Fund —- North Dakota. | have asked that my testimony be

entered into the record since I am not able to attend due to multiple conflicts.

| am presenting this testimony on behalf of these three organizations listed above.
Housing in our state has become a difficult issue for some North Dakotans living not only
in western North Dakota but also throughout the state. The news media has done a
superb job of capturing the sights and sounds of the camps in western North Dakota
where workers are unable to find suitable housing and where rents have been doubled and

tripled, forcing people on fixed incomes out of their living quarters.

However, housing issues for North Dakotan’s is not a new problem as illustrated on

Attachment A, dated December 18, 2008. This chart shows that the number of

Individuals on Waiting list for Public Housing Authority (PHA) by community/county:

The results of this survey were:

City/County Individuals on a waiting List
Fargo 950
Burleigh County 747
Grand Forks 500
Cass County 350
Williston 25

According to the National Low Income Housing Coalition (NLIHC) 85% of all extremely
low income renter households pay more than half of their income for their homes.
According to a study in 2008 by NLIHC, a North Dakotan must make $10.40/ hour to
afford a two-bedroom apartment. While a study by NDSU (Making Ends Meet in North



Dakota, May 2010) indicates that a single mother of two children ages 4 and 6 must carn
$20.95/hour to stay off of public assistance and pay her bills. To pay her taxes her hourly
income needs to be $25.75/hour. Needless to say, many of the homeless are children.

(Attachment B)

Dr. Maslow (1947) indicated in his Hierarchy of needs that housing is a basic need in
life...much like air, food, drink, warmth and sleep. (Attachment C)

SB 2210 begins to put structures in place to address these issues. This bill provides
flexibility in addressing the housing needs in North Dakota and provides the tools to
address the rapidly changing needs of our state. Thus, the housing issues of the west can
be dealt with along with the increasing homeless population and the needs of our seniors,

statewide.

Therefore, the Children’s Defense Fund, the North Dakota Conference of Social Welfare
and the North Dakota Economic Security and Prosperity Alliance wholeheartedly support

the passage of SB 2210 which will help address the multiple housing issues facing North
Dakota.

Thank You!



North Dakota Affordable Housing Fund

Dedicated to the establishment of o statewide Affordable Housing Fund fo assist

munities with their unmet housing needs.

Attochment A

i ——

Individuals on Waiting List for )
Housing Rehab using HOME Funds
Grand Total = 328 *CA = Community Action
CA- Region City of
&8, 35 Farge, 18 CA- Devils
Lake, 54
CA-
Bismarclk,
15 ¥ CA- Grand
Forks, 61
CA-
Jamestow,
25
CA- Fargo,
59
\fass County & Siutsman County Housing Auth. - NA y

* Average cost per individual in housing rehab= $25,000

o Total estimated cost of individuals on waiting list for
housing rehab ($25,000 x 328) =$8,200, 000

Individuals on Waiting List for )
Security Deposits using HOME Funds
Grand Total=665 *CA = Community Action
Cass Cty. CA-]’:I(;‘OL
Housing
Avuthority,
411 CA-Grand
Forks, 54
CA-Region
1&8,20
CA- Bismarck & Devils Lake— 0
\ CA —Jamestown & Fargo - NA )

e Average security deposit cost = $150.00/housing unit

¢ Total estimated cost for security deposits of individuals
on waiting list {$150.00 x 665) =$99,750

2008 Annual Median which can afford

income (AMI) in ND $57,872  a monthly rent of $1.,446
Very Low income earners which can afford

are at 50% AM! or $28,936  a monthly rent of $723
Extremely Low Income which can afford

earners are at 30% AMlor  $17,361 a monthly rent of $434
The Estimated Median which can afford

hourly Wage in ND is $9.75 a monthly rent of $507

mean 2 bedroom rent across the state of ND is $541/ month

National Low Income Housing Coalition,

Individuals on Waiting list for
Public Housing Authority (PHA)
Vouchers/Month

Grand Total = 2811 Fargo

Burleigh 950
Cty.

1000
800
600

Cass Cty,
400 Minot 350

220 McHenry/
200 Williston Pierce
J:. 25 19
0 e I

® Ali Public Housing Authorities (PHA) noted that the
street rents far exceed the Fair Market Rate
{FMR); the wait list time is anywhere from 4 months
to a year; and placement rates are dropping (lack
of rentals at voucher leveis),

* The additional voucher funding needed per month
is estimated by taking the difference between the
current 2 Bedroom FMR and the rent o family of 2
with 30% Adjusted Median Income [HUD definition)
could pay, and multiplying by the wait list,

s Estimated total statewide cost of additional PHA
vouchers needed is $559,397 /month.

(" Public Housing Authority Voucher )
Utilization Rates
2007 & 2008
70
100% 87% 409/-69%55%'7%8 %
3 :zé’%fzfa%___l””% ° .:.
- m—— W W
Y <A N\ o &
Sl & 3 o® o
\‘\ é’oo \zg? Q)‘)‘\ 0(\2;(
(}0 \x‘. O‘.
2007 =2008 Williston & Fargo-NA.
L Cass County 2007-NA y

Energy-impacted areas are finding it difficult for
vouchers to be used due to the high demand for
apartments driving up rents above the limit for
voucher use.

ore information contact: Tom Alexander, NDCPDMSU  or
800.233.1737 or 701.858.3436

tom.alexander@minotstateu.edu

Amy Armstrong/NDCPD/MSU
800.233.1737 or 701.858.3578
amy.armstron

December 18, 2008
minotstateu.edu

This was developed under the North Dakota Medicaid Infrastructure Grant, Award Number: 1QACMS300054/03; CFDA No. 83.768 from the U 8. Department of Health and Human Services Center for Medicare and Medicaid
Services received by the North Dakota Center for Persons with Disabilities. However, these contents do not necassarily represent the policy of the U.S Cepartment of Heaith and Human Services and the North Dakota

Center for Persons with Disabilities.
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What would an employed Calculating o Cost-of-living Budget
. mother with two children need to earn Since the beginning of this century, researchers have
to meet her monthly bills in North Dakota made efforts to determine the minimum costs of
without relying on government assistance? meeting a family’s monthly needs. Typically, these
efforts were based on actual household spending
Welfare reform has mandated the dual challenges (frequently urban households) as reported in surveys
of moving recipients off public assistance into or diaries.

employment and limiting access to public assistance
for a lifetime total of only 60 months. However,

these changes in the social safety net assume not or&.
that enough jobs will be available, but they will pay
sufficiently to end any further need for assistance.

Today, the discussion of a living wage arises in part
from the inability of the current minimum wage to
provide an income adequate for a family to live above
the poverty line. These debates are about whether
businesses applying for government grants or subsidies

So two questions need to be answered: What is the should be paying a wage sufficient to keep their work-
amount of monthly income necessary to support ers above the poverty line, eliminating the need for
a family without having to fall back onto public their employees to seek further government assistance.

assistance? And, is North Dakota’s economy producing
the kinds of full-time employment opportunities that
will eliminate the need for assistance?

A living wage is the amount of earnings necessary for
a family to meet minimum monthly costs. Typically
included in this are the costs for housing and utilities,
food, child care, transportation, and basic household

and personal care items. Not typically included are
DS I l costs for items such as entertainment, birthday or
other gifts, toys, tobacco products or alcohol.

Extension Service

North Dakota State University Existing models figure these costs to calculate what a

Fargo, North Dakota 58108 family must earn to meet 2 minimum monthly budget.
May 2010



Typically, advocacy groups calculate these for urban
areas, especially those with upcoming or pending
living-wage legislation. However, because costs are
not the same in rural and urban areas, the results
cannot be generalized across the geographic spectrum.

Differences in the local cost of living vary not only

by region but also by rural and urban residence.

In urban areas, public transportation is available not
only for getting to and from work, but also for grocery
shopping, visiting a doctor or many other purposes.
But in rural areas, public transportation is rare.

The only way for an individual to get around in

most rural communities is by personal transportation,
whether that's owning one’s own vehicle or sharing

a ride with someone who does.

Further evidence of this disparity can be found in the
2008 Consumer Expenditure Survey. Transportation
costs were 16.7 percent of urban but 21.2 percent of
rural monthly household expenditures. Utilities are
7.1 percent of urban but 8.6 percent of rural household
costs. Health-care costs consume just more than 5.7
percent of the average urban household’s expenditures,
ut nearly 8 percent of rural households’ expenditures.
'j&’hat, then, would an employed mother (age 24) with
two children (age 4 and 6) need to earn to meet her

monthly bills in North Dakota without relying on
goverrunent assistance?

The information designated * are costs associated
with essential living items that were collected through
research in the Fargo-Moorhead area. In instances
where local data were not available, reasonable
estimates were derived from the 2006 Consumer
Expenditure Survey for the Midwest region.

Food costs were taken from the Official USDA

Food Plans: Cost of Food at Home at Four Levels,

U.5. Average, Thrifty Food Plan, August 2008, for

a female age 19 to 50 and two children, age 4 and 6.

The estimated cost of living for an employed single

mother with two children in North Dakota is $838 a

week, $3,633 a month or $43,596 a year. To meet her

monthly cost of living, a single mother must eam a
ke-home wage of $20.95 an hour.

Adding OASDI (Old Age, Survivors and Disability
Insurance) and Medicare taxes (6.2 percent and
1.45 percent}, as well as income taxes (15 percent),

Item Monthly Cost
" Housing (rent, insurance, utilities)..................... ... 830
CPRhONe e, 35
FOOO .o e 401
*Child care o 993
Household, personal care items and clothing ........ 328
Transportation (car payments, gas,

repairs, INsurance, etC.).......o.oooeeeveiieee 811
Health care (insurance, prescriptions, etc.) ........ ... 235
Totalpermonth ... 3.633
Totalperyear. ..., 43,5696
* Based on local information

the necessary minimum monthly income needed to
generate the net income to make ends meet would
rise to approximately $4,464, or $53,570 per year.

This would require an hourly wage of $25.75 per hour
for full-time work for a year to both meet a minimum
monthly budget and pay these taxes.

Opportunities in
North Dakota’s Economy

In the last decade, North Dakota’s economic news
has been mixed. Unemployment rates have dropped
from 4.3 percent in 1989 to 3.6 percent in August 2008,
placing North Dakota’s unemployment rate
considerably below the 6.1 percent national rate.

The state has had an increase in the availability

of jobs, yet the per-capita income for North Dakotans
in 2007 was $34,846, compared with the national
per-capita income of $ 38,611. Given this, what are
the prospects of low-income North Dakotans enrolled
in Temporary Assistance to Needy Families (TANF)
achieving economic self-sufficiency, the stated goal

of the program?

According to the U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics, the
median weekly income for females employed full time
in 2007 was $614, or $15.35 per hour. The median
weekly income is the point where half of all weekly
incomes are more and half less than the median figure.
Median income for men was $766 a week, or $19.15
per hour.

Relying on an average wage masks the earning
differenices for men and women by educational level
and employment sector. In 1990, the median hourly
wage of all North Dakota women employed full time



was $8.70 an hour, compared with $12.13 for men.
These figures rose to $10.15 for women and $13.45 for
en in 1995. In 2000, the median wage for a woman
n North Dakota was $10 an hour, while for men it
as $13.90. In 2004, median weekly earnings for
men in North Dakota rose to $622, or $15.55 an hour,
while median weekly earnings for women were $467,
or $11.67 an hour. In 2007, median weekly earnings
for men in North Dakota rose to $ 589.2, or $ 14.73
an hour, while median weekly earnings for women
in North Dakota rose to $373.3%, or $9.3 an hour.

The 2007 American Community Survey shows the
four largest types of employers in North Dakota are
services, retail trade, agricultural and manufacturing.
Women are more likely than men to be employed in
services and retail trade than in agriculture and
manufacturing. In 2006, the national median weekly
earnings for the accommodation and food service
industries was $371:$355 for females ($ 8.88 per hour)
and $389 for males ($ 9.73 per hour). It was $538
($13.45 per hour) for females and $ 696 for males
($17.40 per hour) employed in sales (Highlights of
Women'’s Earnings in 2006, U.S. Bureau of Labor
tatistics September 2007).

The federal minimum wage is set at $6.55 an hour.

If a single mother-worked 2,080 hours a year at the
current minimum wage, she would earn only $13,624
a year before taxes. If this single mother had two
dependent children, these wages would not bring
her and her children above $17,600 a year, the current
poverty threshold for a family of three. This means that
to meet the basic cost of living in North Dakota for a
family of three, a single working mother would need
to earn an additional $19.20 an hour ($3,328 2 month
or $39,936 a year) on top of minimum wage. At the
current minimum wage, our single mother does not
have enough extra hours to work every week just to
meet the most basic monthly cost-of-living budget
without further assistance.

If the employer offered health insurance or other
benefits, the monthly cost of living for this family
would decrease significantly — more than $200 a month
f health insurance were provided. And arrangements
ay be available for child care that cost much less than
the average of $993 a month for two children. Food
stamps are another resource that can extend the earn-
ings of limited-resource individuals and families.

In addition, housing costs may be much lower in
rural areas, but food and transportation may be
higher. For this analysis, we have chosen to highlight
the Fargo-Moorhead area because it is the largest
community in the state where jobs arc available.

Conclusions

How much does an employed single mother with two
dependent children living in North Dakota need to
earn to meet her family’s monthly needs? And how
likely is this mother to find employment that meets
this monthly budget without also needing government
assistance? This analysis demonstrates that even
presuming employment oppeortunities in North Dakota,
a significant gap is likely between earnings and the
actual cost of meeting a monthly household budget

for the typical family receiving public assistance

(for example, a single mother with two dependent
children not receiving child support).

North Dakota’s labor market is heavily weighted
toward the services sectar, which has a high proportion
of minimum- to low-wage jobs. These are jobs unlikely
to provide wages at the $25.75 an hour before taxes
riecessary for a single mother with two dependent
children to live without additional assistance.

Yet the opportunity for welfare recipients to move

into jobs with adequate pay is the key assumption
upon which the success of welfare reform depends.

North Dakota adults receiving public assistance who
are required to move into the labor force as quickly
as possible face a labor market where jobs, when they
can be found, likely will be at or just above minimum
wage. Yet, because the majority of TANF cases are
single-parent families - typically single mothers —
they will need to find employment that pays enough
wages to meet their monthly costs of living,

This analysis indicates that with welfare reform,

North Dakota’s employed single mothers living

in rural areas are facing even greater challenges in
meeting their families’” minimum needs. The analysis
also highlights an unanswered question: If individuals
are employed full time but still do not eam enough to
meet their families” monthly costs of living, how do
they close the gap between earnings and monthly costs,
especially after exhausting their 60-month lifetime limit
of assistance?



. 2008 HHS Poverty Guidelines

Sampling of programs in which eligibility is
partially based on federal poverty guidelines:

People in Family 48 Contiguous .
or Household Statesand D.C.  Alaska Hawaii » Head Start........ . 100 percent of poverty or below
1 $10,400 $13,000  $11,960 * FOOd SIaMPS oo Gross income less than
P 14,000 17,500 16,100 130 percent of poverty
3 17,600 22,000 20,240 » Free school breakfast
4 21,200 26,500 24,380 and/or lunch ... 130 percent of poverty or below
5 24,800 31,000 28,520 * Reduced-price school
8 28 400 25 500 32 660 breakfast andfor lunch ............... 130 to 185 percent of poverty
7 32’000 40,000 36,800 s Medical Assistance ... 133 percent of poverty or betow*
8 35,600 44,500 40,940 * WIC (Women, Infants
For each additionat and Children) ............c..e.cceo..... 185 percent of poverty or below
person, add 3,600 4,500 4,140 * Healthy Steps {children’s
heatth insurance program) ......... 140 percent of poverty or below*

SOURCE: Federal Register, Vol. 73, No. 15, Jan. 23, 2008, pp. 38713972
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Dear Members of the Senate Hearing Committee:
Thank you for this opportunity to voice an opinion regarding SB 2210.

As executive director of Missouri Valley Habitat for Humanity for nine
years, I have witnessed many changes in the housing industry. Our
small non-profit organization has constructed eighteen homes in the
Bismarck-Mandan area. We have relocated over forty adults and
nearly seventy children from substandard housing to simple, decent and

affordable homes during this time.

You may be aware of how our program works through an application
process. Only working families who fall between 30-60% of the median
average income are qualified for a Habitat home. Among other
requirements, their credit scores must be fairly good, must be
employed, show proof they are able to pay a reasonable monthly
mortgage and commit to providing “sweat equity” in building their own
Habitat homes or another Habitat project. Property and all building
materials are purchased through donations, grants, and local business
in-kind gifts. All labor, with the exception of concrete, electrical and
plumbing is donated by volunteers from these communities. It takes

approximately 1,000 hours of volunteer time fo construct one Habitat



home. The homes, when completed, are then sold to the successful

applicant based on a 30 year mortgage at 0% interest.

In 2002, our Habitat affiliate could purchase property for $7,000-
$9,000. Today that same property sells for $20,000. The cost to
build a home at that same time was $52,000. Today it costs $100,000,

no matter how hard we try to reduce that cost.

We receive nearly one hundred applications in any given year.
Unfortunately, 90% of those applicants do not meet the income
requirements for a Habitat home. It's not because their income is too

high...unfortunately, their income is far too low for even Habitat

standards.

Grant programs have dramatically reduced awards in recent years and
competition for these same grants have become ever more
competitive. Small businesses are struggling to survive and are not
likely to provide the same level of support as they once did. Our
mission to eliminate poverty housing in these communities has become
so difficult we have debated closing the doors on more than one
occasion. There is simply not enough financial support to provide

housing for those in need, facing ever increasing odds against us.



Funding made possible, through SB 2210, would provide at feast one
more avenue of financial support for Habitat for Humanity and others
in the affordable housing industry. This bill, as I understand it, would
create a fund for new construction and allow this organization, and

others like us, to continue to provide our services to those in need.

On behalf of Missouri Valley Habitat for Humanity, the board of
directors, and those families in need of affordable homes, I fully
support this bill. I sincerely believe it is one step to a better Nerth
Dakota and better lives for its citizens. It isimportant for ali of us to
remember there good, deserving families in our state who work hard to
provide for their families but are unable to move from their incredibly
poor living conditions due to circumstances beyond their control. Many
of the families who do qualify for Habitat homes work two and
sometimes three jobs Yo make ends meet. They don't want a hand
out—they need a hand up. Please vote for SB 2210 and offer your
hand.

Thank youl
Jessie L. Quinn, Executive Director

Missouri Valley Habitat for Humanity
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Michael Carbone

Executive Director

North Dakota Coalition for Homeless People
2105 Lee Avenue, Bismarck, ND 58504
701-258-2240

director@ndhomelesscoalition.org

Testimony in Support of SB2210

Chairman Holmberg and members of the Senate Appropriations Committee, my
name is Michael Carbone and | am the executive director of the North Dakota

Coalition for Homeless People. | am writing in support of SB2210.

Homelessness is a serious and growing problem throughout the United States
and, in spite of North Dakota’s prosperity we are no exception. The rate of
increase in North Dakota is below the national average but the number of people
meeting HUD's restrictive definition of homelessness rose by 18% in 2008 and by
14% in 2009. The North Dakota Coalition for Homeless People will be conducting
its annual Point in Time Survey of Homeless Persons on January 27" of 2011 and a
similar increase is expected. According to the January 27, 2010 study, on any
given day 799 people fit HUD's definition. Using HUD's annualization formuia this
means that approximately 7100 North Dakotans experienced homelessness at
least once during 2010. It is important to note that one of the leading indicators
of homelessness is the presence of a disabling condition such as mental illness,
chemical dependency, and developmental and physical disabilities. Domestic
violence and veteran’s status also increase the likelihood of experiencing

homelessness.



Treating the condition of homelessness through emergency services such as
shelters, detox, emergency rooms and other services is expensive and does not
provide a solution to homelessness. The only solution to homelessness is basic,
safe housing. This housing comes in various forms. For some it is as simple as
affordable housing in the form of low cost rental units; for others it may mean
supportive housing in the form of housing subsidies and supportive services to
enable the person to become stable in housing and improve their lives while
becoming productive. There are programs that exist to provide this type of
housing combined with supportive services and this bill does not duplicate that.
From the perspective of the North Dakota Coalition for Homeless People, SB2210
provides a tool for North Dakota Housing Finance Agency to provide gap financing

to nonprofit providers who need to develop supportive housing for their clients.

Financing the development of supportive housing often requires several layers of
funding including some combination of federal, state and local sources,
foundations, and private investors and donors. There are several organizations in
North Dakota who are skilled at putting together these packages, but the last 10
to 15% of the funding is often very difficult to achieve and many projects have
experienced delays because of that difficulty. Cooper House in Fargo is an
example. Additionally, most supportive housing grants have match requirements
and gap financing from the Housing Incentive Fund would be helpful in leveraging

funding from other sources.

The North Dakota Coalition for Homeless People is responsible for the state’s
combined application to HUD’s Continuum of Care Competitive grant program

bringing approximately $1.8 million in to North Dakota each year to heip fund



housing for people with disabilities (primarily mental illness), victims of domestic
violence and others who would be experiencing the heartbreak of homelessness
without these programs. Part of our responsibility in that regard, is to work to
coordinate the development of new supportive housing that is in alignment with
North Dakota’s Consolidated Plan, North Dakota’s 10 Year Plan to End Long Term
Homelessness, and with the eight ending long term homelessness plans from
each of the state’s planning regions. SB2210 provides North Dakota Housing
Finance Agency with a tool that would enable them to assist the state’s homeless

service providers as we work toward the objectives in these plans.

| have described how this bill would help us in reaching the objectives iterated by
the state relative to homelessness; however, the bill contains enough flexibility to
allow the North Dakota Housing Finance Agency to apply the funding to the
state’s varied housing needs, including workforce housing, senior housing and

others.

For these reasons, the North Dakota Coalition for Homeless People strongly urges

you to support $82210.
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SB 2210 Committee Members:

I am writing in support of the Housing Incentive Fund bill, SB 2210. As a rural economic
developer, 1 see firsthand the effects that lack of adequate housing has on economic development
activities across the state.

Approximately 20 of my colleagues in economic/community development convened several
discussions in 2010 to identify the most pressing issues that affect a rural community’s ability to
attract business and workforce. Housing was one of four target areas we identified. Below is the
position statement we adopted from our discussions.

Primary Message: A large number of North Dakota’s communities have housing
infrastructure that is aging, and therefore expensive to rehabilitate and/or replace. Since
very few new housing units have been built in the last 20 vears, appraisal values of newly
constructed homes and multi-family properties are often lower than development costs.
This leaves little room for public housing entities to cash flow rural projects, much less for
developers to make a profit.

The Housing Incentive bill will provide much needed assistance to communities in their efforts
to provide affordable housing for the state’s workforce.

One example of how SB 2210 can help improve housing conditions across the state:

The Eddy County Housing Authority and New Rockford Area Betterment Corporation partnered
in 2009 to develop two duplex housing properties (four units) in New Rockford. The RHIIP
(Rural Housing Investment Incentive Program) from the North Dakota Housing Finance Agency,
one pilot program which would be funded through SB 2210, provided $50,000 in funds to our
project. Funds from this program were combined with HOME funds through the Eastern Dakota
Housing Alliance and essential function bonds. The project would not have been developed
without programs such as RHIIP. As a result, construction has begun on the first multi-family
rental properties built in New Rockford since 1980. Demand for the units has far exceeded
expectations, as our waiting list has enough names on it to fill the units at least four times.

[ strongly encourage you to support SB 2210, as “[relocation] starts with a home™. If we want to
prov1de workforce for our growing economy and to increase the enrollment at our public

" schools, we need to offer housing that meets the needs of families across all income levels. The
Housing Incentive Fund bill can and will be the catalyst for the construction of that housing.

Sincerely,

Amy Wobbema, Executive Director
New Rockford Area Betterment Corporation



